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Dear Fellow

Shareholders

2007 HIGHLIGHTS

* Acquired The Houston Exploration
Company; with asset additions to
the Eastern, Southern and Western
Business Units

* Sold Forest Oil's Alaska assets

¢ Record estimated proved reserves
of more than 2.1 Tcfe

+ Record adjusted earnings of
5223 million

* Record adjusted EBITDA of
$871 million

* Record adjusted discretionary
cash flow of $742 million

¢ Reduced total cash costs in
the fourth quarter of 2007 to
$2,32/Mcfe

* Replaced 703% of production
at an all-sources finding cost of
$2.27/Mcfe; organic finding costs
were even lower at $2.21/Mcfe

* Recapitalized the Company
subsequent to the close of the
Houston Exploration acquisition

* Two successful wells in Italy
resulted in first estimated
proved reserves outside of
North America

The end of 2007 marks another
record year for Forest Qil. Most
importantly, our share price perform-
ance reflected a 56 percent increase,
near the top of our peer group and
a 17-year high for our company: In
fact, the themes of our recent annual
reports illustrate this rapid transfor-
mation to the portfolio of assets we
desired a few years back. In 2004,
our theme was “Our People, Our
Strength” as the new management
team launched its Four Point Strategy.
In 2005, the theme “Improved
Focus” described the streamlining
of the Company’ asset base and cost
structure. In 2006, “Taking the Next
Step” reflected a series of major
transactions to shift the Company
from an offshore producer to an
onshore Noarth America exploitation
company. And now, in 2007, we are
“In the Zone™ as Forest Cil enjoys
the results of the “sweet spot” in the
portfolio we have created, with ils
enviable cost efficiencies and similar
geologic characteristics.

OUR TRANSFORMATION

The speed of Forest Oils transforma-
lion has been remarkable. The
utilization of innovative transactions
has played a pivoial role. Virtually
all of the assets we inherited in
2003 are gone, resulting in a "new”
company with the upside in front of
us, operated by an energized and
talented team of employees. Our
people have been wranstormed as well,
starting with their empowerment
and alignment with shareholders. -
Qur team has never been complacent,
always taking quick action ahead of
industry trends.

OUR RESULTS

During 2007, we set all-time records
for estimated proved reserves and
adjusted earnings, EBITDA and
discretionary cash flow while grow-
ing production by 28 percent. We
also reduced our cost structure to
one of the lowest in our industry.
These highlights are summarized on
the left hand side of this page. We
did exactly what we said we would
do. Reaching over 2 Tcfe in estimated
proved reserves for the first time in
the history of this company is even
more impressive when we consider
the recent sales of $1.8 billion in
assets to complete our exit from the
Gulf of Mexico and Alaska. Despite
those sales, we grew the Company
both overall and organically while
approximately spending our inter-
nally generated cash flow.

OUR TRANSACTIONS

During our transformation, we
acquired more than $3.7 billion in
assets while making complete exits
from the Gulf of Mexico, Alaska and
ten foreign countries. We chose to
buy in North America where our
exploitation and cost cutting expert-
ise would prove the most beneficial.
This “fork in the road” for Forest
Oil coincided with the industry
shift 1o resource plays and less

Forrest E. Hoglund
Chairman of the Board

H. Craig Clark
President and CEQ
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conventional reservoir largets. A
case in point is our entry into East
Texas, followed by the current
horizonal drilling phenomenon.
We purchased assets in the exact
areas we largeted while showing
discipline on our acquisition metrics.
Innovation was involved in most of
the transactions, notably the tax-free
nature of the Gulf of Mexico spin-off
and the $1 billion special dividend
to our shareholders. Other innovative
transactions include the Alaska term
loan financing, the sale lease-back
transaction associated with our
drilling rigs and several wholesale
capital expenditure re-allocations.
All of these acquisitions, including
the recent Houston Exploration
acquisition, are well on the way to
becoming successes, as most of
these have already paid out. The
upside created now belongs to the
Forest Oil shareholders.

unbooked future projects centaining
more than 2.8 Tefe of low-risk
drilling opportunities. Our confidence
regarding their potential is high.
These opportunities lie within differ-
ent geographic areas but within
similar types of geologic zones, which
makes them low risk. In addition

to a large project inventory, each area
has a sizeable acreage position. In
2007 alone, we added more than
800,000 undeveloped acres in our
focus areas.

on capital projects and acquisitions
will remain consistent and will
account for steady growth while
providing the excellent finding cost
melrics we have achieved over the
past several vears. Discipline may
well be the hallmark of this Company,
discipline 1o stay “In the Zone.”

OUR PORTFOLIO

Our new portfolio, focused primarily
in onshore Nerth America, is
concentrated in five producing
basins. By design, the portfolio is
proportionately balanced in terms
of production, reserves, cash flow,
capital spending and acreage. This
even distribution will prevent a single
asset from controlling our future

or determining our overall results.
Embedded in each of the four
producing business units are legacy
assets that provide more than 5,000

OUR FUTURE

Our future lies in the current
portfolio, with execution and more
growth planned for those areas. The
2007 metrics speak for the asset
quality; the finding costs, operating
costs, G & A costs, production and
estimated proved reserve additions
illustrate the quality of this relatively
new portfolio. Exploitation and the
use of new technology have only
just begun. Our efficiencies and new
technology are the main reasons we
chose to own these 1ypes of assets
several years ago. We intend (o add
value in many ways, including the
drillbit, acquisitions, divestitures,
marketing and new technolegy —in
other words, all of thc above. We
plan to further upgrade our asset
base with stralegic asset divestitures
while increasing our activity in
major areas like the Texas Panhandle,
Ark-La-Tex, Canadian Deep Basin and
South Texas. Our spending discipline

OUR THANKS

At the upcoming annual shareholder
meeting in May, Mr. Forrest Hoglund
will retire from our Board of Directors
and step down as our non-executive
Chairman. Forrest was the catalyst
for change in 2003. Under his
direction, the transformation of
Farest Qil was begun. His reputation
in our industry and on Wall Street
is impeccable. Mr. Jim Lightner will
succeed Forrest as non-executive
Chairman. Like Forrest, Jim has a
long record of creating shareholder
value as Chairman of Tom Brown,
Inc. and as a Forest Qil board
member. Thank you, Mr, Hoglund,
for all you have done for Forest Oil.

A edobind

FORREST E. HOGLUND
Chairman of the Board

H. CRAIGCLARK
President and CEQ
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Operations

in 2007, Forest announced and
closed the largest acquisition in its
history, which was integrated quickly
and efficiently Further, a significant
amount of non-strategic assets,
including its Alaska propertics, were
divested. These actions, coupled
with the expansion of the “Big 5"
areas into offset acreage, have

South Texas. While being geograph-
ically diverse, each of these plays
has similar geology. As displayed on
the well logs to the right, they all
have multiple, tight gas sand zones
that must be fracture stimulated in
multiple stages. The plays are at the
same approximate depth and the
commonality of fracture techniques
and production methodology
allows us to focus on cost efficiency.
Simply stated, “different geography,
similar geology, same {ocus on
operaticnal excellence.”

resulted in further repositioning the
Company for future growth within
its “Big 5" assets. This demonstrates
that Forest is “In the Zone” in its
acquisition, expleitation and organic
development strategies. The “Big 5”
assets now include the Greater
Buffalo Wallow Area in the Texas
Panhandle; the Deep Basin of
Alberta in Canada; the newly
expanded Cotien Valley Play in East
Texas; the newly acquired Arkoma
Basin asse1s in Western Arkansas;
and the newly acquired fields in

GREATER BUFFALO
WALLOW AREA

rates as high as 8,0 MMcfe/d. At
year-end the offsel acreage totaled
approximately 40,300 gross acres
out of a total Greater Buffalo Wallow
Area of approximately 50,300 gross
acres. Forest will utilize six rigs in
the Greater Buffalo Wallow Arca in
2008 and expects te drill approxi-
mately 70 wells. Forest will continue
its highly economical exploitation
efforts, using muliiple slick-water
fracture technology and an aggressive
marketing plan throughout the play
From this, Forest expects to exit
2008 with net production between
60 and 65 MMcfe/d.

40 7007 Het Production Exi Rate (Micfa/d} 4 CANADIAN DEEP BASIN

40 2008 Anticipoted et Production Exit Rofe {MMcfe/d)  60-65 401 2007 Hel Production Exit Rate {Micte/d) ki 3

40 2006 — 40 2007 Production Growth {%) 23 40 2008 Anticiputed Het Production Exit Rate (MMde/d) 4045

Totol number of locations (indluding PUDs) N7 40 2006 — 40 2007 Produciion Growth (%} 3

Total locations o drill in 2008 6575 Tetal number of locations (including PUBs} 155
Total locations 1o drill in 2008 3040

2007 marked a very important year
for the Greater Bulfalo Wallow Area
with a successful step-out effort into
offset acreage southeast of the legacy
acreage, with initial production

With the Wild River Field reaching
its maturity in the next few years,
Canadian Forest will see a shift in
focus to Sundance/Ansell and to



Hinton in 2008, just southeast of
Wild River. Sundance/Ansell shares
the same geologic pay horizons as
the Wild River Field, allowing Forest
to benefit from its three and a half
year successful drilling program
where the Company has seen net
production rates increase from 9
MMcfe/d 10 38 MMcle/d, an increase
of over 300%. The Sundance/Ansell
wells are multi-layer fracture stimu-
lated completions with production
commingled in the same method
that made the Wild River Field so
successful, With 120 potential wells
to drill in 1hese offset locations at
Sundance/Ansell, Forest has plenty
of running room to expand the
Cretaceous play while, at the same
time, further developing the Wild
River Field’s uphole, behind pipe
potential through recompletion
opportunities. From this, Forest
expects to exit 2008 with production
between 40 and 45 MMcfe/d. Efforts
on production cost reductions will
increase as the play was the most
recent recipient of Forests successful
“Project FOCUS” cost cutting program.

and thus will run two horizontal rigs
in 2008 uilizing this application.

Forest is anticipating to drill 10 to 12
horizontal wells on large undeveloped
acreage blocks and 40 vertical wells
in tighter spaced areas that have

hisiorically vielded highly economic

play lends itself favorably 10 multiple
stage recompletion programs and
possible horizontal exploitation that
Forest excels at in other areas.

COTTON VALLEY

40 2007 Net Production Exit Rate [MMcfe/d) 53
40 2008 Ansicipated Net Production Exit Rote (MMcfe/d} 5762
40 2006 — 40 2007 Prodution Growth (%) 152
Total number of locotions (including PUDs) 504
Total locations 1o drill in 2008 50-60

Horizontal wells in the Cotton Valley
Trend were the ‘play of the day’ in
East Texas in 2007. With 30,400
gross acres (total of 74,400 gross
acres at December 31, 2007) bolied
on o Forest’s existing position
through the Houston Exploration
acquisition, Forest significantly
increased the size of its footprint 10
drill both horizental and vertical
wells, using the same hybrid fracture
technology that is utilized through-
out its tight gas sand portfolio, while
commingling production to optimize
rates of return. Forest has been
highly successful drilling horizontally,

wells. From this, Forest expects 10 exit
2008 with net production of approxi-
mately 60 MMcfe/d.

ARKOMA

401 2007 Produriion Exit Rate {MMdfe/d) 4
40 2008 Anticipated Production Exit Rate {MMfs/d) 4045
Total number of kocations (including PUDs) 481
Toted loatiens to drllin 2008 95100

The conventional Arkoma play in
Western Arkansas has been another
great addition from the Houston
Exploration acquisition. With low
well costsrand faster drilling times
due to the use of air drilling and
extremely low operating costs, this
play vields attractive rates of return.
Forest expects net production to
increase by 5% in 2008, with a fourth
quarter exit rate of 43 MMcfe/d,
while generating significant cash
flow from the asset. Further, the

Conodion
Daep Basin

Greater Buffalo
Wattow Area

2500
500

SOUTH TEXAS

40 2007 Ne Produticn Exit Rate (MMcfe/d) 122
40 2008 Anticipated Net Production Exit Rals (Micfe/d) ¥4}
Total number of bocations (including PUDs) 405
Tatal locations to drill in 2008 50-55

The South Texas assets are significant
cash flow generators due to high rate
production from the Wilcox and
Vicksburg trends. The assets obtained
from the Houston Exploration acqu:-
sition fit very well with Forest’s
legacy assets such as McAllen Ranch
(Vicksburg) and the Katy Field
(Wilcox). The significant acreage and
production acquired in 2007 yielded
critical mass for South Texas. While
drilling activity was reduced in ihe
second half of 2007 te allow for
prospect refinement, a large acreage
position combined with an extensive
3-D seismic inventory will provide for
an expanded drilling program in 2008.
Five rigs are currently being utilized
with a planned program of 52 wells.

Cotton Volley
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Operational
Fact Sheet

Western
2007 2006 2005

Eastern
2007 2006 2005

NET PRODUCTION NET PRODUCTION

Gos (MMcl/d) 774 no 387 Gos (MMd/d) 66.0 36.2 1A
Liquids {MBhls/d} 107 102 94 Liquids (MBbls/d) 4.1 30 27
ESTIMATED PROVED RESERVES ESTIMATED PROVED RESERVES

Gas (Bef) 408.7 339.0 367.1 Gas (Bef) 4707 1324 125.2

Liquids (MMBbls} 599 60.9 523
Equivalent (Bcfe)  767.9 704.1 680.9

Liquids {MMBbIs) 21.6 17.6 10.1
Equivalent {(Bcfe}  600.3 338 185.8

DEVELOPED ACREAGE

DEVELOPED ACREAGE

Gross 353,754 262461  2748M) Gross 172633 184,475 101,554
et N84 154267 157,556 Net 113557 102,385 59,118
UNDEVELOPED ACREAGE UNDEVELOPED ACREAGE

Gross 1,128,547 207,190 197,206 bross 82,298 252482 259,310
Net 789494 103820 97,678 Net 139,001 124252 172,583
GROSS WELL COUNT GROSS WELL COUNT

Gas 3,663 3,091 3,655 Gos 898 #41 344
0il 1,251 2,674 1,661 0il 350 345 165

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES In thousands

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES In thousands

S778,701 $799,398 5492123

2007 HIGHLIGHTS

* Inreased estimated proved reserves 9% to 768 Befe of an
oll-sources reserve replocement rofia of 306%

* Intreased net production 7% to 141 MMce/d in 2007 from
132 MMcfe/d in 2006

 Retord nef production of 4% MMcfe/d in the Greater Buffalo
Wallow Areq in the fourth quarter of 2007

® 100% success rate in the Greoter Buffolo Wallow Area with
initiol net production rates os high os 8.0 MMcfe/d due 1o
tontinued improvement with the uiilization of slick-water
fracture technology and deeper pay completions

« Added 4,900 acres in the Greater Buffalo Wallow Area
increasing fotal gross acreape fo 50,300 ocres

® Drilled 24 wells in the Midland Basin at o 100% success rate

and an additional 23 wells were successfully recompleted in
the some areo

FUTURE STRATEGY

= 2008 drillin? program calls for 250 wells and & confinyed
high pate of additionsl projects

» rill 70 wells in 2008 in the Greater Buffale Wallow Areo with
o tofal of 917 [itotential Granite Wosh/Atoka locations identi-
fied on 20 und 40 acre spacing

» Process ond imersret seismic related to the Greater Vermejo/
Haley Aseq in 2008 while using ¢ one rig program

« Drill 20 wells in 2008 in the Vinio Besin incuding tests ro
evaluate the Deep Mesaverde, Mancos, and Dakota objectives

® Ingrease activity in 2008 in the Midlond Bosin with o total of
780 patentiat locotions identified

5221587 S412803 539,645

2007 HIGHLIGHTS

* Increased estimaied proved reserves 151% to 600 Bele of
an afl-sources reserve replocement ratio of 1,160%

* Increased net produdion 40% 1o ¢ record 90 MMcfe/d in
2007 from 54 MMcle/d in 2006

* Record nef production of 53 MMcfe/d in the Eost Texas
Cotton Volley Play in the fourth quorter of 2007

 100% sucess rate in the East Texes Cotton Vafley Ploy with
inifiol net praduction rates os high as 7.8 MMde/d through
the utiization of horizoniuk drilfing on arge undevelop
acrenge blocks

* Added 30,400 gross acres in the Easi Texos Cottan Volley
Play increasing totl gross acreage to 74,400 ocres

» Added conventionul Arkoma Basin assats in Western
Arkonsos thet utilize similar tight gos sand completion
techniques that ore found in Forest's lorgest assets

« Drilled seven welks in 2007 in Forest's Barnett Shate Play, ll
i Hill County ot o 100% success rate

* Increosed size and scope of Forest's Bornett Shole Ploy,
increasing tofad acreage to over 70,000 gross acres and
added ncreege in Erath County through  form-in agreement

FUTURE STRATEGY

* 2008 drilling program cal’s for 178 wells and a continued
high pace of edditional projecs

* Drill 50 wells in 2008 in the Eost Texos Coton Valley Ploy
with o total of 594 patential locations identified

= Drill 100 wells in 2008 in the conventional Arkoma Bosin
with a total of 481 potential locations ideatfied




Canada
2007 2006 2005

Southern
2007 2006 2005

International j
007 2006 2005

NET PRODUCTION

NET PRODUCTION

NET PRODUCTION

Equivalent (Bcfe})  252.1 2321 171.5

Equivalent (Bcle) 4426 N/A N/A

Gos (MMct/d) 8.7 66.7 51.8 Gos (MMd/d) 80.3 N/A N/A Gos (MMd/d) - - H -
Liquids (MBbls/d) 2.9 3 34 Liquids (MBbls/d) 1.6 N/A N/A Liguids {MBbls/d) - - -
ESTIMATED PROVED RESERVES ESTEMATED PROVED RESERVES ESTIMATED PROVED RESERVES )

Gas (Bcf) 082 1979 WIS Gos {Bdf) 408.5 H/A N/A Gos (Bdf) 56.3 - H -
Liquids {MMBbls) 13 57 50 Liguids {MMBbls) 57 N/A N/A Liquids (MMBbls) - - i

Equivalent (Bele) 56.3 - -

DEVELOPED ACREAGE

DEVELOPED ACREAGE

DEVELOPED ACREAGE i

Gross 86016 267157 236,678 Gross 19272 WA WA Gross 2,500 - =
Net 151737 151,645 136,87 Net 135852 WA WA Net 2,250 - i-
UNDEVELOPED ACREAGE UNDEVELOPED ACREAGE UNDEVELOPED ACREAGE |

Gross 852,704 1,082,504 1,118,462 Gross 3843 WA WA Gross 5469514 5835867 5,937,828
Net 35398 581,746 598,481 Net MW WA WA Net 2,967,091 3333194 3,194227
GROSS WELL COUNT GROSS WELL COUNT GROSS WELL COUNT T

Gos 626 572 515 Gos 149 NA WA Gas 2 - -
oil Ml 329 303 oil B NA WA oil - - |-

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES In thousends

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES In thousands

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES In thousands i

SI73N2  $150,955  S115,019

2007 HIGHLIGHTS

* Increased estimoted proved reserves 9% fo 252 Befe at on
all-sources reserve replocement ratio of 211%

» Increased net production 1% fo 86 MMde/d in 2007 from
85 MMcfe/d in 2006

* Net production of 38 MMcte/d in the Deep Basin in the
fourth quarter of 2007

* 100% suecess rate in the Deep Basin with initiol net
production rates as high as 6.0 MMcfe/d through the
utilizatian of slick water fraclure technology

* Added 7,040 gross acres in the Deep Basin increasing fotol
gross ncreage to 73,000 acres

FUTURE STRATEGY

* 2008 drilling program calls for 62 wells ond o continued
high pare of addifional projects

» [xill 35 wells in 2008 in the Deep Basin with o total of 155
potential focations identified

® [ncrense activity ol Sundance/Ansell as the Wild River Field
ploy moves south and east

« Test recomplefion apportunities urhole in the Wild River
Field with possible horizontal drifiing activity

* (antinua development at Hinton

® (ontinye reaclivation activity af Hoyler during 2008 ofter
salt water disposal capacity b5 incrensed

« [rill opproximately 13 wells in 2008 af Evi with tw of the
wells being drilled and completed horizantally

$103,614 N/A /A

2007 HIGHLIGHTS
* Estimated proved reserves of 443 Befe

= Averaged 90 MMdle/d in 2007 in this newly meated
Business Unit os o result of the ocquisition of the Housion
Explaration Company

+ 87% sutcess rte in the Charco and Rincon Fields with inifial
net production rates os high os 9.0 MMde/d

* Koty production increased 100% i 2007 with gross
produiion reaching 28 MMcfe/d

* South Texas gross acreage position of 190,000 acres

FUTURE STRATEGY
« 2008 drilling program calls for 59 wells and o continued
high poce o? udditionol projects

 Drill 52 wells in 2008 in the Charco, Rincon ond McAllen
Ranch Fields

« Exploratary drilling s plonned in oreas near Charco ond
Rincon for deeper objectives utilizing 3-0 seismic

* Diill five wells in 2008 in Katy in the Wilcox formation

15853 6,984 sa,ﬁaa

SOUTH -
AFRICA ¢

2007 HIGHLIGHTS H
* Booked esfimoted proved reserves of 56 Befe in lialy |

o Drilled two wells during the year ot Monte Palfano, whid tested
af o combined 22 MMde/d rote without frocture stimutation

* Suecessfully divested Austrolion assefs for 7 million that bod no
associated estimoted proved reserves or production !

FUTURE STRATEGY |

« (apital spending in 2008 is planned for the pipeline u‘nd
focifities ot the alume Pallano discovery in onshore cefftral
Iraly, with first sales expected in 2009

o Additionol exploratory drilling in the Po Valley, Nouthérn lialy
in 2008 I

* (ontinue Jnrngress in securing Ibhubesi Produdtion Right and
ossotinted gus contracts in South Africo ‘




Executive Officers

H. CRAIG CLARK, 51
President and
Chief Executive OFicer

Years of Service: 7

DAVID H. KEYTE, 51
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial OFficer
Years of Service: 20

CYRUS D. MARTER IV, 44
Senior Vice President,

General Counsel and Secretary
Years of Service: &

JOHN C, RIDENS, 52
Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer
Years of Service: 4

CECIL N. COLWELL, 57
Senior Vice President,
Worldwide Drilling

Years of Service: 19

LEONARD C. GURULE, 51
Senior Vice President
Years of Service: 5

Years of Service: 7
MARK E. BUSH, 48

Years of Service: 10

Years of Service; 6

Board of Directors

WILLIAM L. BRITTON, age 73, has been o
director since 1996. Mr. Britton is Chairman
Emeritus of the law firm of Bennett Jones LLP.
He served as a pariner of Bennett Jones
from 1962 untl December 2004, and was
Managing Partner and Chairman from 1981
to 1997 Mr. Britton is Vice Chairman of
ATCO Lid., Canadian Utilities Limited and
CU Inc. and Chairman of Hanzell Vineyards,
lid. and Gearg-Market Investment Company
of Califernia. He is a director of Barking
Power Limited, Akita Drilling Ltd. and The
Denver Broncos Football Club. He is a
member of our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee.

LOREN K. CARROLL, age 64, has been a
director since November 2006. Mr. Carroll
served as President and Chief Executive
Officer of M-I SWACO, a supplier of drilling
and completion Ruids and waste manage-
ment products and services company owned
60% by Smith International, Inc., and as
Executive Vice President of Smith Internationdl,
Inc., a supplier of products and services fo
the oil and gas, petrochemical, and other
industrial markets from March 1994 until his
retirement in April 2006. He initially joined
Smith International in December 1984 and
was serving as Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer when he left in 1989
and returned in 1992, Mr. Carroll is a director
of Smith International, Inc., Fleetwood
Enterprises, Inc., a producer of recreational
vehicles and manufactured homes,
CGG-Veritas, a geophysical services and
equipment company and KBR, Inc., an
engineering and construction company. Mr.
Corroll is @ member of our Compensation
Committee and is the Chairman of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee.

DOD A. FRASER, age 57, has been a
director since 2000. Mr. Fraser is President
of Sackett Partners Incorporated, a consulting
company, and member of corporate boards,
since 2000. Previously, Mr. Fraser was an

investment banker, a General Partner of
Lozard Freres & Co. and most recently a
Managing Director and Group Executive of
Chase Manhattan Bank, now JP Morgan
Chase, where he led the global oil and gas
group. Mr. Fraser is a board member of
Smith International, Inc., an oilfield service
company, and Terra Industries, Inc., a nitrogen-
based fertilizer company. Mr. Fraser is the
Chairman of our Audit Committee and is @
member of cur Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee.

FORREST E. HOGLUND, age 74, has been
a director since 2000. Mr. Hoglund has
served as our non-executive Chairman of the
Board since September 2003. Mr. Hoglund
has served as Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of SeaOne Maritime Corp., a natural
gas fransportation company, since December
2004. He served as Chairman of the Board
of EOG Resources, Inc. from 1987 to 1999
and President from 1990 to 1996, Mr. Hoglund
serves as Chairman of our Executive Committee
and is @ member of our Compensation
Committee. He has announced that he will
retire as a Forest director in May 2008,

JAMES H. LEE, age 59, has been a director
since 1991, Mr. Lee has served as the
Managing General Partner of Lee, Hite &
Wisda Ltd., an oil and gas consulting and
exploration firm, since 1984, Mr. lee is @
director of Frontier Qil Corporation, o crude
oil refining and wholesale marketing company.
He is a member of cur Audit Committee and
our Executive Committee.

JAMES D. LIGHTNER, age 55, has been o
director since 2004, Mr, Lightner has been a
Partner and Chief Executive Officer of Orion
Energy Partrers, an oil and gas exploration
and producfion company, since its inception
in August 2004. From 1999 to 2004, Mr.
Lightner served in various capacities with Tom
Brown, Inc., an oil and gas exploration and
production company, including Director,
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and

GLEN J. MIZENKO, 45
Senior Vice President, Business
Development and Engineering

Vice President, Eastern Region

RONALD C, NUTT, 50
Vice President, Southern Region
Years of Service: 1

VICTOR A. WIND, 34
Corporate Controller
Years of Service: 3

STEPHEN 7. HARPHAM, 44
Vice President, Western Region

President. Prior to 1999, he served as Vice
President and General Manager of EOG
Resources, Inc. Mr. Lightner is o director of
W.H. Energy Services inc., an oil field services
company, and Cornerstone E&P Company LP,
a private oil and gos exploration and
production company, He is the Chairman of
our Compensation Committee. Effective at the
2008 Annual Meeting, the Board has elected
Mr, Lightner to serve os the non-executive
Chairman of the Board.

PATRICK R. MCDONALD, age 50, has been
a director since 2004, Mr. McDonald has
served as Chief Executive Officer, President
and Director of Nytis Exploration Company,
an oil and gas exploration company, since
April 2003. From 1998 to 2003, Mr.
McDonald served as President, Chief Executive
Officer, and Director of Carbon Energy
Corporation, an ofl and gos exploration and
production company. Prior to 1998, he
served as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
aond President of o company that he founded,
Interenergy Corporation, a natural gas
gathering, processing, and marketing
company. Mr. McDonald is o member of
our Audit Committee.

H. CRAIG CLARK, age 51, has served as
our President and Chief Executive Officer and
as a director of Forest since July 2003. Mr.
Clark joined Forest in September 2001 and
served as President and Chief Operating
Officer. He was appeinted President and
Chief Executive Officer on July 31, 2003.

Mr. Clark was previously employed by Apache
Corporation in Houston, Texas, an independent
energy company, from 1989 1o 2001. He
served in various management positions
during this period, including Executive Vice
President— U.S. Operations and Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Pro Energy, an
affiliate of Apache. Mr. Clark is a member of
our Executive Commitiee.
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PART 1
Item 1. Business.
General

Forest is an independent oil and gas company engaged in the acquisition, exploration,
development, and production of natural gas and liquids primarily in North America. Forest was
incorporated in New York in 1924, as the successor to a company formed in 1916, and has been a
publicly held company since 1969. Throughout this Form 10-K we use the terms “Forest,” “Company,”
“we,” “our,” and “us” to refer to Forest Oil Corporation and its subsidiaries.

We currently conduct our operations in three geographical segments and five business units.
Geographical segments include: the United States, Canada, and International. Business units include:
Western, Eastern, Southern, Canada, and International. We conduct exploration and development
activities in each of our geographical segments; however, substantially all of our estimated proved
reserves and all of our producing properties are located in North America. Forest’s total estimated
proved reserves as of December 31, 2007 were approximately 2.1 Tefe. At December 31, 2007,
approximately 85% of our estimated proved oil and gas reserves were in the United States,
approximately 12% were in Canada, and approximately 3% were in Italy. See Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about our geographical segments.

In the following discussion, we make statements that may be deemed “forward-looking” statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. See “Forward-Looking Statements,” below, for more details. We also use a
number of terms used in the oil and gas industry. See the heading “Glossary of Qil and Gas Terms,”
below, for the definition of certain terms.

Over the last several years, we have implemented a strategy directed at transforming Forest from a
predominantly Gulf of Mexico oil and gas producer with frontier exploration emphasis to a North
American onshore producer with numerous low risk opportunities for growth. As part of this
transformation, we have made several key acquisitions and dispositions, including most recently the
acquisition of The Houston Exploration Company (“Houston Exploration™) in June 2007, the sale of
our Alaska operations in August 2007, and the disposition of our offshore Gulf of Mexico properties in
March 2006.

Acquisition of Houston Exploeration

On June 6, 2007, Forest completed the acquisition of Houston Exploration in a cash and stock
transaction totaling approximately $1.5 billion and the assumption of Houston Exploration’s debt.
Houston Exploration was an independent natural gas and oil producer engaged in the exploration,
development, exploitation, and acquisition of natural gas and oil reserves in North America. Houston
Exploration had operations in four producing regions within the United States: South Texas, East Texas,
the Arkoma Basin of Arkansas, and the Uinta and DJ Basins in the Rocky Mountains. At the time of
the acquisition in June 2007, Forest estimated the Houston Exploration oil and gas reserves to be 653
Bcfe, of which 71% were classified as proved developed and the remaining amounts were classified as
proved undeveloped. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the agreement and plan of merger
(“Merger Agreement”), Forest paid total merger consideration of $750 million in cash and issued
approximately 24 million common shares, valued at $30.28 per share. The per share value of the Forest
common shares issued was calculated as the average of Forest's closing share price for a five day period
surrounding the announcement date of the acquisition on January 7, 2007. The cash component of the
merger consideration was financed from a private placement of $750 million of 7%4% sentor notes due
2019 and borrowings under our $1.0 billion second amended and restated credit facilities that were
executed on June 6, 2007.



Sale of Alaska Assets

On August 27, 2007, Forest sold all of its assets located in Alaska (the ‘Alaska Assets”) to Pacific
Energy Resources Ltd. (“PERL”). Forest estimated the proved oil and gas reserves associated with the
Alaska Assets at closing to be 173 Befe. The total consideration received for the Alaska Assets included
$400 million in cash, 10 million shares of PERL common stock (subject to certain restrictions), and a
zero coupon senior subordinated note from PERL due 2014 in the principal amount at stated maturity of
$60.8 million.

Spin-off of Offshare Guif of Mexico Operations

On March 2, 2006, Forest completed the spin-off of its offshore Gulf of Mexico operations by
means of a special dividend, which consisted of a pro rata spin-off (the “Spin-off”) of all outstanding
shares of Forest Energy Resources, Inc. (hereinafter known as Mariner Energy Resources, Inc. or
“MERI”), a total of approximately 50.6 million shares of common stock, to holders of record of Forest
commeon stock as of the close of business on February 21, 2006. Immediately following the Spin-off,
MERI was merged with a subsidiary of Mariner Energy, Inc. (“Mariner”) (the “Merger”). Mariner’s
common stock commenced trading on the New York Stock Exchange on March 3, 2006. Forest
estimated the proved oil and gas reserves associated with the Spin-off to be 313 Befe.

The Spin-off was a tax-free transaction for federal income tax purposes. Prior to the Merger, as
part of the Spin-off, MERI paid Forest approximately $176.1 million. The $176.1 million was drawn on
a newly created bank credit facility established by MERI immediately prior to the Spin-off. This credit
facility and the associated liability were included in the Spin-off. Subsequent to the closing, in 2006
Forest received additional net cash proceeds of $21.7 million from MERI for a total of $197.8 million.
In accordance with the transaction agreements, Forest and MERI each submitted post-closing
adjustments, from which Forest paid MERI a total of $5.8 million during 2007. Additional adjustments
to the cash amount may occur during 2008 pending the resolution of certain accounting matters that
are the subject of ongoing arbitration between Forest and MERI. The arbitration is currently expected
to be concluded in the second haif of 2008.

Business Strategy

We adopted a new business strategy in 2003 that includes four key points: make strategic
acquisitions, increase production organically, control costs, and remain financially flexible.

Make Strategic Acquisitions

We pursue strategic acquisitions that meet our criteria for investment returns and that are
consistent with our operational focus. We believe this enables us to leverage our technical expertise and
existing land and infrastructure positions. Since the inception of our four-point strategy in 2003,
through 2007 we have incurred approximately $3.7 billion (including deferred tax gross ups of
$.7 billion recorded in connection with business combinations) to acquire oil and gas assets including
approximately 1.5 Tcfe of estimated proved reserves, over 1.5 million net acres, drilling rigs, and
transportation infrastructure. In general, our acquisition program has focused on acquisitions of
properties that have substantial development drilling opportunities and undeveloped acreage.

During 2007, we made approximately $2.2 billion of o1l and gas acquisitions (including approximately
$559 million of deferred tax gross ups), including the acquisition of Houston Exploration in June 2007 as
discussed above. The oil and gas properties of Houston Exploration included approximately 926,000 net
acres, an estimated 633 Bcefe of estimated proved reserves, and production of 204 MMcfe per day. Of the
926,000 net acres, approximately 738,000 net acres were undeveloped.

During 2006, we made approximately $316 million of oil and gas acquisitions, including the
acquisition of oil and gas properties located primarily in the Cotton Valley trend in East Texas




(“Cotton Valley assets™) for approximately $255 million in cash, as adjusted to reflect an economic
effective date of February 2, 2006. At the time the acquisition was announced, the Cotton Valley assets
included approximately 26,000 net acres, an estimated 110 Befe of estimated proved reserves, and
production of 13 MMecfe per day. Of the 26,000 net acres, approximately 14,000 net acres were
undeveloped.

During 2005, we made approximately $314 million of oil and gas acquisitions (including
approximately $71 million of deferred tax gross ups). The largest acquisition was of oil and gas
properties in the Buffalo Wallow area in the Texas Panhandle in April 2005. The Buffalo Wallow
transaction included the payment of $197 million in cash and the assumption of $35 million of debt to
acquire approximately 120 Befe of estimated proved reserves and approximately 28,000 net acres
primarily in Hemphill and Wheeler Counties, Texas.

Organic Growth

Our acquisition program has provided oil and gas properties conducive to low-risk, repeatable
development and exploitation opportunities focused primarily in unconventional tight gas sand
reservoirs. In 2008, Forest expects continued organic growth from its planned exploitation activities,
including exploration and development drilling, workovers, stimulation treatments, enhanced oil
recoveries, and recompletions.

Focus on Cost Control

Maintaining capital spending discipline and a focus on cost control are keystones of Forest’s
business philosophy. A critical area of our cost control efforts is lease operating expenses. While in a
period of rising costs in the oil and gas sector, we decreased our per-unit lease operating expenses from
the level achieved in 2005. See “Lease Operating Expenses” and the accompanying table in Item 7—
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Lease
operating expenses decreased 11% to $1.08 per Mcfe in 2007 compared to $1.21 per Mcfe in 2005.

Maintain Financial Flexibility

We seek to maintain financial flexibility and sufficient liquidity to capitalize on opportunities as
they arise. Generally, we attempt to maintain a debt-to-book capitalization ratio of between 30%
and 40% but may exceed this range when conditions warrant using leverage to make strategic
acquisitions. At December 31, 2007, for example, our debt-to-book capitalization ratio was 42%, which
was teduced from 49% at mid-year 2007. Subsequent to the acquisition of Houston Exploration in June
2007, our debt-to-book capitalization ratio increased to 49% as a result of the issuance of 7/4% senior
notes due 2019 and debt assumed in the acquisition. However, strategic sales in 2007, including the
Alaska Assets and a sales lease back transaction of previously owned drilling equipment, reduced our
debt-to-book capitalization ratio to 42% at December 31, 2007.

We also employ a “free cash flow” business model where we expect each of our producing business
units to generate cash flows from operations (before changes in working capital) equal to or in excess of
the business unit’s capital expenditures used in exploration and development activities. We believe this
policy provides for sustainable and sensible growth while providing the opportunity to use leverage to
capitalize on acquisition opportunities. Hedging is also an important part of our strategy to cushion our
exposure to commodity price volatility. We have a board-approved policy related to commodity hedging
activities. As of February 27, 2008, we have hedged, via swaps and collar instruments, approximately
75 Befe of our 2008 production.

At December 31, 2007, we had approximately $10 million of cash on hand and $703 million
available under our credit facilities.



Business Unit Activities

The production volumes, estimated proved reserves, and exploration and development expenditures
for our business units as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 are summarized below. The
acquisition of Houston Exploration on June 6, 2007 had a significant impact on the Western, Eastern,
and Southern business units. Accordingly, the production volumes and the exploration and development
expenditures reflected in the table below are not indicative of full-year results.

Estimated Exploration and

Proved Development
Production Volomes Reserves Expenditures™
Natural
Gas Liquids Total Total Total

Business Unit (MMcf)  (MBbls) (MMcfe) (Bcfe) {In Thousands)
KL 3 1 o + U 28,261 3,892 51,613 767.9 $278,701
Eastern . ... ... ... 24,102 1,498 33,090 600.3 227,587
Southern .......... ... . i, 29,327 573 32,765 442.6 103,614
Canada ..........0 i 25,079 1,060 31,439 252.1 173,212
International® ., . .. .... .. ... .. ... ... ... — — — 56.3 15,853
Alaska® . .. .. e 1,273 922 6,805 — 4,601
Total ... ... ... . . 108,042 7,945 155,712 2,119.2 $803,568

M Includes estimated discounted asset retirement obligations of $1.4 million.
@ All estimated proved reserves in the International business unit are in Italy.
3 On August 27, 2007, Forest sold its Alaska Assets to PERL.

Western

The Western business unit’s operations are located in the Texas Panhandle, West Texas, New Mexico,
North Dakota, western Oklahoma, Colorado, Utah, and Wyoming. A significant area of activity for the
Western business unit is in the Buffalo Wallow area located in Hemphill and Wheeler Counties in the
Texas Panhandle. In 2007, we drilled 63 gross wells in the Buffalo Wallow area and plan to drill over
70 gross wells in 2008 targeting the Granite Wash and Atoka sands. As of December 31, 2007, we have
identified approximately 700 non-proved potential locations in the Buffalo Wallow area, some of which
have been approved for 20 acre downspacing. Current production from the Buffalo Wallow area
represents approximately 35% of the Western business unit’s total production. Capital expenditures in the
Buffalo Wallow area are expected to comprise approximately $180 million of the business unit’s
2008 capital expenditure budget of approximately $300 million.

The Western business unit added the Rocky Mountain leasehold positions acquired from Houston
Exploration in 2007 including the Niobrara area in eastern Colorado and the Uinta Basin in western
Utah, The Niobrara area has a significant number of potential drilling locations on approximately
475,000 net acres. With attractive, low risk, low decline rates, and low development costs, we expect to
further optimize the gas gathering infrastructure and drill approximately 25 wells in the Niobrara field
in 2008 utilizing 3D seismic. Our leaseholds in the Uinta Basin also have a significant number of
potential drilling locations on approximately 100,000 net acres with substantial gas resource in place.
Although we decreased the level of activity in the Uinta Basin in 2007 to allocate capital on higher
rate-of-return projects in East Texas and the Arkoma Basin, we plan to continue a consistent level of
activity in 2008 as we believe ficld economics have improved since 2007,

Eastern

The Eastern business unit’s operations are located in East Texas, Arkansas, and Louisiana. The
business unit’s most significant area of focus has been in the Cotton Valley trend in East Texas since




the initial acquisition of 26,000 net acres in early 2006. Since the initial acquisition, we have drilled a
total of 83 net wells targeting multi-pay zones including the upper and lower Cotton Valley Taylor sands
and, together with the additional net acreage acquired from the Houston Exploration acquisition, our
net acreage position has increased to over 60,000 net acres. In 2008, we expect to drill over 50 gross
wells including 12 horizontal wells on large undeveloped acreage in blocks in the area. The Eastern
business unit also added another core area in the Arkoma Basin in western Arkansas as a result of the
Houston Exploration acquisition. The Arkoma Basin has over 39,000 net acres and provides for
additional low risk, low cost repeatable drilling opportunities with downspacing potential. In addition to
a significant amount of surface work that commenced in 2007 and will continue in 2008, we plan to
drill over 100 gross wells in the Arkoma Basin in 2008. Current production from the East Texas and the
Arkoma Basin properties represents approximately 75% of the Eastern business unit’s total production.
We expect capital expenditures in these areas to comprise approximately $195 million of the business
unit’s 2008 capital expenditure budget of approximately $285 million.

Southern

The Southern business unit’s operations are located in South Texas. The business unit’s core
operations include the Charco and Rincon fields acquired from Houston Exploration as well as the
Katy and McAllen Ranch fields, which are legacy Forest properties. With the utilization of an extensive
seismic database, we have identified a significant number of drilling locations in South Texas, and we
plan to drill approximately 59 wells in the area in 2008. In 2008, we also plan to continue our
extensional and infill drilling and recompletion program in the Katy field after achieving excellent
resuits in 2007. Current production from the Rincon, Charco, Katy and McAllen Ranch fields
represents approximately 65% of the Southern business unit’s total production. Capital expenditures in
the Rincon, Charco, Katy and McAllen Ranch fields are expected to comprise approximately
$125 mitlion of the business unit’s 2008 capital expenditure budget of approximately $215 million.

Canada

The Canada business unit’s operations are located primarily in central Alberta. The Canada
business unit’s primary area of focus is in the Deep Basin in central Alberta. In 2007, a total of
45 gross wells were drilled utilizing new fracture stimulation techniques resulting in the best wells
drilled in the area to date by Forest in terms of initial production rates. We plan to drill approximately
35 gross wells in the Deep Basin in 2008. With the business unit's Wild River field anticipated to reach
full development of its Cretaceous zones on 160-acre spacing, we plan to direct further capital at
Sundance/Ansell, a multi-zone, Cretaceous play similar to Wild River in 2008 and focus on further
development of additional reservoirs in the Wild River field. The Canada business unit also expanded
its acreage position in the Deep Basin in 2007 to approximately 73,000 gross acres, with extensive
3D seismic coverage. Current production from the Deep Basin represents approximately 50% of the
Canada business unit’s total production. Capital expenditures in the Deep Basin are expected to be
approximately $80 million of the business unit’s 2008 capital expenditure budget of approximately
$140 million.

International

The International business unit’s operations are located in Italy and South Africa. In 2007, the
International business unit drilled and completed two wells in Italy, which established estimated proved
reserves of approximately 56 Befe as of December 31, 2007. Production from these wells is expected to
come on line in 2009. In South Africa, the business unit continued to pursue commercial development
of the Ibhubesi field discovery. The business unit filed a production right application and also
continued efforts toward securing gas sales contracts for the Ibhubesi field. See “Acreage” below, for
further details.




Reserves

The following table shows our estimated quantities of proved reserves as of December 31, 2007
and 2006. Substantially all estimated proved reserves are currently located in North America. See
Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding estimated
proved reserves.

December 31,

2007 2006

Proved developed:

Natural gas (MMcf) .. ... ... . e 1,092,075 566,139

Liquids (MBbIS) . .. .. . e 66,597 78,280

Total (MMefe) . ... ... e e 1,491,657 1,035,819
Proved undeveloped:

Natural gas (MMcf) .. ... ... . e e 460,301 211,900

Liquids (MBbIS) . . .. ... .. e e 27,879 34,584

Total (MMcfe) ... ... e 627,575 419,404
Total proved:

Natural gas (MMcf) . ... ... e e 1,552,376 778,039

Liquids (MBbIS) . . .. ... s 94,476 112,864

Total (MMcfe) ... . . 2,119,232 1,455.223

Uncertainties are inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves, including many factors
beyond our control. Reserve engineering is a subjective process of estimating subsurface accumulations
of oil and gas that cannot be measured in an exact manner, and the accuracy of any reserve estimate is
a function of the quality of available data and its interpretation. As a result, estimates by different
engineers often vary, sometimes significantly. In addition, physical factors such as the results of drilling,
testing, and production subsequent to the date of an estimate, as well as economic factors such as
change in product prices or development and production expenses, may require revision of such
estimates. Accordingly, oil and gas quantities ultimately recovered will vary from reserve estimates. See
Item 1A—"“Risk Factors,” for a description of some of the risks and uncertainties associated with our
business and reserves.

Forest annually files estimates of its oil and gas reserves with the U.S. Department of Energy
(“DOE”). During 2007, we filed estimates of our oil and gas reserves as of December 31, 2006 with the
DOE, which were consistent with the reserve data reported for the year ended December 31, 2006 in
Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Independent Audit of Reserves

For financial reporting purposes, including this Form 10-K, Forest uses reserve estimates prepared
by its internal staff of engineers. We engage independent reserve engineers to audit a substantial
portion of our reserves. Our reserve audit procedures require the independent reserve engineers to
prepare their own independent estimates of proved reserves for fields comprising at least 80% of the
aggregate value of our year-end proved reserves, discounted at 10% per annum, for e¢ach country in
which we own fields for which proved reserves have been recorded. The ficlds selected for audit
comprise at least the top 80% of Forest’s fields based on the discounted value of such fields and a
minimum of 80% of the value added during the year through discoveries, extensions, and acquisitions.
Forest may also include fields that fall outside of the top 80% that represent material volumes of
proved reserves, have experienced material revisions to prior estimates of proved reserve volumes or
value, or have experienced changes as a result of new operational activity. The procedures prohibit
exclusions of any fields, or any part of a field, that comprises part of the top 80%. The independent
reserve engineers then compare their estimates to those prepared by Forest. The independent reserve



audits prepared for Forest are not financial audits and are not performed in accordance with the
established generally accepted financial audit procedures. Instead, a reserve audit is conducted based
on reserve definition and cost and price parameters specified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).

For the year-end 2007, we engaged DeGolyer and MacNaughton, an independent petroleum
engineering firm, to perform reserve audit services. DeGolyer and MacNaughton independently audited
estimates relating to properties constituting approximately 81% of our reserves, as of December 31,
2007, based on reserve values. When compared on a field-by-field basis, some of Forest’s estimates of
net proved reserves were greater and some were less than the estimates prepared by DeGolyer and
MacNaughton. However, there was no material difference, in the aggregate, between Forest’s internal
estimates of total net proved reserves and the estimates prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton for
the fields subject to the audit.

Drilling Activities

During 2007, we drilled a total of 495 gross wells, of which 52 were classified as exploration and
443 were classified as development. Our 2007 drilling program achieved a 96% success rate. The
following table summarizes the number of wells drilled during 2007, 2006, and 2005, excluding any wells
drilled under farmout agreements, royalty interest ownership, or any other wells in which we do not
have a working interest. As of December 31, 2007, we had 40 gross (28 net) wells in progress in the
United States and 14 gross (8 net) wells in progress in Canada.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2008
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Development wells, completed as:

Gaswells. . ..o e 392 210 210 52 232 32
DIl wells oo e s 34 29 13 1 16 14
Non-productive®™ .. ... .. ... . .. e 17 4 1 1 3 3
TOMAL .« oot e e e 443 253 224 64 251 49
Exploratory wells, completed as:
Gas wellS. . o oo e e 41 28 135 68 100 51
Oilwells . ..o e 2 15 9 3n 27
Non-productive . ... ... 5 3 8 5 10 5
TOtal . .ot e e e 52 33 158 82 141 83

) A non-productive well is a well found to be incapable of producing either oil or natural gas in sufficient quantities to justify
completion as an oil or natural gas well; also known as a dry well (or dry hole).

Productive Wells

Productive wells consist of producing wells, and wells capable of production, including shut-in
wells. A well bore with multiple completions is counted as only one well. As of December 31, 2007,
Forest owned interests in 458 gross wells containing multiple completions. The following table



summarizes our productive wells as of December 31, 2007, all of which are located in the United
States, Canada, and Italy:

United States Canada Italy Total
Operated and
Operated Non-gperated Operated Non-operated Operated Non-operated Non-operated

Wells Wells'! Wells Wells Wells Wells Weils
Gross  Net Gross Net Gross Net  Gross Net Gross Net  Gross Net Gross Net
Gas.., 2674 2560 3316 176 3715 295 251 70 2 2 —_ — 6,618 3,103
Qil ... 2020 1,987 604 56 46 21 95 20 — — — — 2,965 2284
Total .. 4,694 4547 3920 232 621 516 346 90 2 2 - - 9,583 5,387

(D The large variance between gross and net non-operated wells is primarily a result of our ownership interest in approximately
2,589 gross gas wells in the San Juan Basin with an average working interest of approximately 5%.

Acreage

The following table summarizes developed and undeveloped acreage in which we owned a working
interest or held an exploration license as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. A majority of our developed
acreage in the United States and Canada is subject to mortgage liens securing our bank credit facilities.
Acreage related to royalty, overriding royalty, and other similar interests is excluded from this summary,
as well as acreage related to any options held by us to acquire additional leasehold interests.

December 31,

2007 2006
Developed Undeveloped Developed Undeveloped
Acreage Acreage Acreage Acreage
Location Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
United States:
Western® ... ... ... ... 353,754 217,814 1,128547 789,494 262,461 154,267 207,190 103,820
Eastern®™ . ... ... ..... 172,633 113,557 282,298 139,101 115,554 64,034 229,797 118,497
Southern™ . ........... 192,752 135,852 73,843 34,208 68,921 38,351 22,685 5,755
Alaska® . .. ... . ... .. —_ —_ —_ — 52242 32,155 1,038,532 1,012,637
719,139 467223 1,484,688 962,803 499,178 288,807 1,498204 1,240,709
Canada ................ 286,016 157,737 852,704 375,398 267,157 151,645 1,082,504 581,746
International:
South Africa ,.......... —_ — 2,771,695 1,474,542 —_ — 2,771,695 1,474,542
Gabon ............... - — 2,409,276 1,204,638 —_ — 2,409,276 1,204,638
Ialy ......... .. ... 2,500 2,250 288,543 287911 — — 654,396 654,014
2,500 2,250 5,465,514 2,967,091 —_ — 5,835,867 3,333,194
Total .................. 1,007,655 627,210 7,806,906 4,305,292 766,335 440452 8,416,575 5,155,649

) Changes in acreage positions for the Western, Eastern, and Southern business units from 2006 are primarily the result of
the Houston Exploration acquisition in 2007, which included 1,279,883 gross acres and 926,047 net acres. 2006 acreage
amounts have been reclassified among U.S. locations to conform with the 2007 business unit structure.

@ The Alaska Assets were sold to PERL in August 2007.

At December 31, 2007, approximately 13% and 7% of our net undeveloped acreage in the United
States and Canada was held under leases that have terms that will expire in 2008 and 2009, respectively, if
not extended by exploration or production activities. In addition, approximately 170,000 net undeveloped
acres in the Niobrara area in eastern Colorado are scheduled to expire in 2008 but are held under leases




that may be extended for an additional five years. In the first quarter of 2007, we relinquished two permits
in Italy comprising 363,853 gross and net undeveloped acres. The South African national government
implemented new legislation in 2004 that revised the regulations and process pursuant to which it grants
petroleum exploration and production licenses. Under the new regulations, we have applied to the
government (o convert one existing prospecting sublease into an exploration right and have applied for a
production right covering the geographic area of our other existing prospecting sublease. The government
has not taken final action on these applications. Because the regulations implementing the new legislation
are not final and the potential work obligations that could be imposed pursuant to any new rights, when
and if they are granted, are still uncertain, we cannot predict whether these rights will meet our economic
or operational requirements. If the rights do not meet our internal requirements, we may choose to
relinquish these leases. See “Our International operations may be adversely affected by currency fluctuations
and economic and political developments” in Part 1, Item 1A—"Risk Factors”, for further details.

Production, Average Sales Prices, and Production Costs

The following table reflects production, average sales price, and production cost information for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and. 2005.

United States i Canada Total Company
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Natural Gas: '

Sales price received (per Mcf) . . . .. .. .. $ 595 6.2} 753 529 507 670 5.79 5.83 7.38

Effects of energy swaps and collars

(perMcD® ... L — (31 (1.24) — — — - (25 (.02)

Average sales price (per Mcf)™. . ... ... $ 595 584 629 529 507 4.70 5.79 5.58 6.36

Natural gas sales volumes (MMcf) . . . . .. 82,963 48,674 82,912 25079 24,350 18921 108042 73,024 101,833
Liquids:

0il and Condensate:

Sales price received (per Bbl) .. ..... .. $ 6791 6218 5278 5805 5089 4192 6644 6079 5167

Effects of energy swaps and collars

(per BBOM .. — (494 (1122) — — — — (438 (1007

Average sales price (per Bb)M . . ... ... $ 6791 5724 4156 5805 5089 4192 6644 5645 4160

Natural gas liquids:

Average sales price (per Bbl) . ... ..... $ 3932 3202 2961 4354 4140 3615 3975 3385 3076

Total liquids:

Average sales price {per BbD® . .. .. ... $ 5802 5122 3912 5440 4755 4004 5754 5070 3923

Liquids sales volumes (MBbls) . ....... 6885 6,887 9316 1060 1,139 1,252 7945 8026 10568
Average sales price (per Mcfe)). .. ... ... $ 718 7.08 638 605 569 669 6.96 6.72 6.43
Total sales volumes (MMcfe) . . ... ... ... 124,273 89,996 138,808 31,439 31,184 26,433 155712 121,180 165,241
Production costs (per Mcfe):

Lease operating expenses . . .. .. ... ... $ 109 1.41 1.30 1.00 91 A 1.08 1.28 1.21

Production and property taxes. . . . ... .. .42 A0 29 1 10 i 35 32 .26

Transportation and processing costs . . . . . .08 A3 A0 33 32 22 13 .18 12
Total production costs {(per Mcfe} . . . ... .. $ 159 1% 1.9 144 132 104 1.56 1.78 1.58

' Include the effects of hedging under cash flow hedge accounting in 2006 and 2005. See Fart II, Ttem 7—"“Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” concerning our hedging activities and the
effects of energy swaps and collars not accounted for under cash flow hedge accounting.

Marketing and Delivery Commitments

Qur oil and gas production is sold to various purchasers in accordance with our credit policies and
procedures. These policies and procedures take into account, among other things, the credit-worthiness
of potential purchasers and concentrations of credit risk. We believe that the loss of one or more of
our current oil and gas purchasers would not have a material adverse effect on our ability to sell our




production, because any individual purchaser could be readily replaced by another purchaser, absent a
broad market disruption. In 2007, there were no purchasers who exceeded 10% of our total revenue.

Qur natural gas production is typically sold on a month-to-month basis in the spot market, priced
in reference to published indices. Our production of oil and natural gas liquids is typically sold under
short-term contracts at prices based upon posted field prices, and is typically sold at the welthead. In
Canada, a portion of our natural gas production is also sold through a joint venture with other
producers {the “Canadian Netback Pool”), which is a long-term commitment, or under direct sales
contracts or spot contracts. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

Competition

Forest encounters competition in all aspects of its business, including acquisition of properties and
oil and gas leases, marketing oil and gas, obtaining services and labor, and securing drilling rigs and
other equipment necessary for drilling and completing wells. Our ability to increase reserves in the
future will depend on our ability to generate successful prospects on our existing propertics, execute on
major development drilling programs, acquire new producing properties, and acquire additional leases
and prospects for future development and exploration. Factors that affect our ability to acquire
properties include, among others, availability of desirable acquisition targets, staff and resources to
identify and evaluate properties, available funds, and internal standards for minimum projected return
on investment. Higher recent commodity prices have increased both equipment, service, and labor costs
in the industry as well as the cost of properties available for acquisition, and a large number of the
companies that we compete with have substantially larger staffs and greater financial and operational
resources than we have. Because of the nature of our oil and gas assets and management’s experience
in exploiting our reserves and acquiring properties, management believes that we effectively compete in
our markets.

Regulation

Our oil and gas operations are subject to various United States federal, state, and local laws and
regulations and foreign laws and regulations.

United States

Vartous aspects of our oil and natural gas operations are subject to regulation by state and federal
agencies. All of the jurisdictions in which we own or operate producing crude oil and natural gas
properties have adopted laws regulating the exploration for and production of crude oil and natural
gas, including laws requiring permits for the drilling of wells, imposing bonding requirements in order
to drill or operate wells, and providing authority for regulation relating to the location of wells, the
method of drilling and casing wells, the surface use and restoration of properties upon which wells are
drilled, and the abandonment of wells. Qur operations are also subject to various conservation laws and
regulations. These include the regulation of the size of drilling and spacing units or proration units, the
number of wells which may be drilled in an area, and the unitization or pooling of crude oil and
natural gas properties. In addition, state conservation laws sometimes establish maximum rates of
production from crude oil and natural gas wells, generally prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas,
and impose certain requirements regarding the ratability or fair apportionment of production from
fields and individual wells.

Certain of our operations are conducted on federal land pursuant to oil and gas leases
administered by the Bureau of Land Management {(“BLM™). These leases contain relatively
standardized terms and require compliance with detailed BLLM regulations and orders (which are
subject to change by the BLM). In addition to permits required from other agencies, lessees must
obtain a permit from the BLM prior to the commencement of drilling and comply with regulations
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governing, among other things, engineering and construction specifications for production facilities,
safety procedures, plugging and abandonment of Outer Continental Shelf (“OCS”) wells, the valuation
of production, and the removal of facilities. Under certain circumstances, the BLM or the Minerals
Management Service, as applicable, may require our operations on federal leases to be suspended or
terminated. Any such suspension or termination could materially and adversely affect our financial
condition and operations.

Additional proposals and proceedings that might affect the oil and gas industry are regularly
considered by Congress, the states, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”), and the
courts. We cannot predict when or whether any such proposals may become effective. No material
portion of Forest’s business is subject to renegotiation of profits or termination of contracis or
subcontracts at the election of the federal government.

Canada

The oil and natural gas industry in Canada is subject to extensive controls and regulations imposed
by various levels of government. Federal authorities do not regulate the price of oil and gas in export
trade. Legislation exists, however, that regulates the quantities of oil and natural gas which may be
removed from the provinces and exported from Canada in certain circumstances. Regulatory
requirements also exist related to licensing for drilling of wells, the method and ability to produce
wells, surface usage, transportation of production from wells, and conservation matters. We do not
expect that any of these controls and regulations will affect Forest in a manner significantly different
from other oil and natural gas companies of similar size with operations in Canada.

The provinces in which we operate have legislation and regulation which govern land tenure,
royalties, production rates and taxes, environmental protection, and other matters under their
respective jurisdictions. The royalty regime in the provinces in which we operate is a significant factor
in the profitability of our production. Crown royaltics are determined by government regulation and are
typically calculated as a percentage of the value of production. The value of the production and the
rate of royalties payable depend on prescribed reference prices, well productivity, geographical location,
and the type or quality of the product produced. Any royalties payable on production from privately
owned lands are determined by negotiations between Forest and the landowners.

The majority of our Canadian operations are located in Alberta, Canada, and, in October 2007,
the Alberta Government announced a new oil and gas royalty framework to take effect in January
2009. The new framework establishes new royalties for conventional oil, natural gas, and bitumen that
are linked to price and production levels and apply to both new and existing conventional oil and gas
activities and oil sands projects.

Under the new framework, the formula for conventional oil and natural gas royalties will be set by
a sliding rate formula, dependant on the market price and production volumes. Royalty rates for
conventional oil will range from 0% to 50%. New natural gas royalty rates will range from 5% to 50%.
Under the current royalty regime, royalty rates range from 10% to 35% for conventional oil and from
5% to 35% for natural gas.

The implementation of the new framework is subject to certain risks and uncertainties. The
significant changes to the royalty regime require new legislation, changes to existing legislation and
regulation, and development of proprietary software to support the calculation and collection of
royalties. In addition, certain proposed changes contemplate further public and/or industry consultation.
Accordingly, there may be modifications introduced to the new framework prior to its implementation
on January 1, 2009. If the new framework is implemented in the same form as announced, the rate
caps will be raised for conventional oil from $30 to $120 per barrel. The rate caps for natural gas will
be raised from $3.90 to $17.50 per MMBtu. The tiers in conventional oil and natural gas that
distinguish ‘vintages’ based on discovery date will be eliminated. Several special royalty programs for
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conventional oil and natural gas will also be extinguished, except for the Otherwise Flared Solution Gas
Royalty Waiver Program and Deep Gas Drilling Program, both of which will be amended. The royalties
for natural gas liquids will be set at 40% for pentanes, from the previous 22% to 50% for old tiers and
22% 10 35% for new. The new royaliies for butanes and propane will be 30%, from the current 15% to
30%. The Alberta government will extinguish the option to use the Corporate Average Price to
determine natural gas royalties in lieu of a single reference price. If adopted in its current form, we
expect that our royalty payments on our Canadian oil and gas sales will increase.

Environmental Regulation

As a lessee and operator of onshore and offshore oil and natural gas properties in the United
States and Canada, we are subject to stringent federal, state, provincial, and local laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection as well as controlling the manner in which various substances,
including wastes generated in connection with oil and gas exploration, production, and transportation
operations, are released into the environment. Compliance with these laws and regulations can affect
the location or size of wells and facilities, prohibit or limit the extent to which exploration and
development may be allowed, and require proper closure of wells and restoration of properties when
production ceases. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in the assessment of
administrative, civil, or criminal penalties, imposition of remedial obligations, incurrence of capital costs
to comply with governmental standards, and even injunctions that limit or prohibit exploration and
production operations or the disposal of oilfield generated substances.

We currently operate or lease, and have in the past operated or leased, a number of properties
that for many years have been used for the exploration and production of oil and gas. Although we
have utilized operating and disposal practices that were standard in the industry at the time,
hydrocarbons or other wastes may have been disposed of or released on or under the properties
operated or leased by us or on or under ather locations where such wastes have been taken for
disposal. In addition, many of these properties have been operated by third parties whose treatment
and disposal or release of hydrocarbons or other wastes was not under our control. These properties
and the wastes disposed thereon may be subject to laws and regulations imposing joint and several,
strict liability without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct that could require us to
remove or remediate previously disposed wastes or property contamination, or to perform remedial
plugging or pit closure to prevent futurc contamination. We believe that it is reasonably likely that the
trend in environmental legislation and regulation will continue toward stricter standards.

While we believe that we are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental taws and
regulations in effect at the present time and that continued compliance with existing requirements will
not have a material adverse impact on us, we cannot give any assurance that we will not be adversely
affected in the future. We have established internal guidelines to be followed in order to comply with
environmental laws and regulations in the United States, Canada, and other relevant international
jurisdictions. We employ an environmental, health, and safety department whose responsibilities include
providing assurance that our operations are carried out in accordance with applicable environmental
guidelines and safety precautions. Although we maintain pollution insurance against the costs of
cleanup operations, public liability, and physical damage, there is no assurance that such insurance will
be adequate to cover all such costs or that such insurance will continue to be available in the future.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 728 employees. None of our employees is currently represented
by a union for collective bargaining purposes.
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Geographical Data

Forest operates in one industry segment. For information relating to our geographical operating
segments, see Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

Offices

Our corporate office is located in leased space at 707 17t Street, Denver, Colorado 80202. We
maintain offices in Houston, Texas and Calgary, Alberta, Canada and also lease or own field offices in
the areas in which we conduct operations.

Title to Properties

Title to our oil and gas properties is subject to royalty, overriding royalty, carried, net profits,
working, and similar interests customary in the oil and gas industry. Under the terms of our bank credit
facilities, we have granted the lenders a lien on a majority of our properties. In addition, our properties
may also be subject to liens incident to operating agreements, as well as other customary encumbrances,
easements, and restrictions, and for current taxes not yet due. Forest’s general practice is to conduct a
title examination on material property acquisitions. Prior to the commencement of drilling operations, a
title examination and, if necessary, curative work is performed. The methods of title examination that we
have adopted are reasonable in the opinion of management and are designed to insure that production
from our properties, if obtained, will be salable for the account of Forest.

Glossary of Oil and Gas Terms

The terms defined in this section are used throughout this Form 10-K. The definitions of proved
developed reserves, proved reserves, and proved undeveloped reserves have been abbreviated from the
applicable definitions contained in Rule 4-10(a)(2-4) of Regulation S-X. The entire definitions of those
terms can be viewed on the SEC’s website at Attp://www.sec.gov.

Bbl.  One stock tank barrel, or 42 U.S. gallons liquid volume, of crude oil or liquid hydrocarbons.
Bcf. Billion cubic feet of natural gas.

Bcfe. Billion cubic feet equivalent, determined using the ratio of six Mcf of natural gas to one bbl
of crude oil, condensate, or natural gas liquids.

Bbtu. One billion British Thermal Units.

Btu. A British Thermal Unit, or the amount of heat necessary to raise the temperature of
one pound of water one degree Fahrenheit.

Condensate. Liquid hydrocarbons associated with the production of a primarily natural gas
reserve.

Developed acreage. The number of acres which are allocated or held by producing welis or wells
capable of production.

Development well. A well drilled within the proved area of an oil or gas reservoir to the depth of
a stratigraphic horizon known to be productive.

Dry hole; dry well. A well found to be incapable of producing either oil or gas in sufficient
quantities to justify completion as an oil or gas well.

Equivalent volumes. Equivalent volumes are computed with oil and natural gas liquid quantities
converted to Mcf on an energy equivalent ratio of one barrel to six Mcf.
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Exploitation.  Ordinarily considered to be a form of development within a known reservoir.

Exploratory well. A well drilled to find and produce oil or gas reserves not classified as proved, to
find a new reservoir in a field previously found to be productive of oil or gas in another reservoir, or to
extend a known reservoir,

Farmouwt. An assignment of an interest in a drilling location and related acreage conditional upon
the drilling of a well on that location or the undertaking of other work obligations.

Field. An area consisting of cither a single reservoir or multiple reservoirs, all grouped on or
related to the same individual geological structural feature and/or stratigraphic condition.

Full cost pool.  The full cost pool consists of all costs associated with property acquisition,
exploration, and development activities for a company using the full cost method of accounting.
Additionally, any internal costs that can be directly identified with acquisition, exploration, and
development activities are included. Any costs related to production, general and administrative
expense, or similar activities are not included.

Gross acres or gross wells. The total acres or wells, as the case may be, in which a working interest
is owned.

Lease operating expenses. 'The expenses of lifting vil or gas from a preducing formation to the
surface, constituting part of the current operating expenses of a working interest, and also including
labor, superintendence, supplies, repairs, short-lived assets, maintenance, allocated overhead costs, and
other expenses incidental to production, but not including lease acquisition or drilling ar completion

€Xpenses.

Liquids. Describes oil, condensate, and natural gas liquids.
MBbls. Thousand barrels of crude oil or other liquid hydrocarbons.
Mcf. Thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

Mcfe. Thousand cubic feet equivalent determined using the ratio of six Mcf of natural gas to
one bbl of crude oil, condensate, or natural gas liquids.

MMBtu. One million British Thermal Units, a common energy measurement.
MMcf. Million cubic feet of natural gas.

MMcfe. Million cubic feet equivalent determined using the ratio of six Mcf of natural gas to
one bbl of crude oil, condensate, or natural gas liquids.

NGL. Natural gas liquids.

Net acres or net wells. The sum of the fractional working interest owned in gross acres or gross
wells expressed in whole numbers.

NYMEX. New York Mercantile Exchange.

Productive wells.  Producing wells and wells that are capable of production, including injection
wells, salt water disposal wells, service wells, and wells that are shut-in.

Proved developed reserves.  Estimated proved reserves that can be expected to be recovered
through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods.
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Proved reserves. Estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids which
geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years
from known oil and gas reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions.

Proved undeveloped reserves. Estimated proved reserves that are expected to be recovered from
new wells on undrilled acreage or from existing wells where a relatively major expenditure is required
for recovery to occur.

Reservoir. A porous and permeable underground formation containing a natural accumulation of
producible oil and/or gas that is confined by impermeable rock or water barriers and is individual and
separate from other reservoirs.

Standardized measure or present value of estimated future net revenues. An estimate of the present
value of the estimated future net revenues from proved oil and gas reserves at a date indicated after
deducting estimated production and ad valorem taxes, future capital costs, and operating expenses, but
before deducting any estimates of U.S. federal income taxes. The estimated future net revenues are
discounted at an annual rate of 10%, in accordance with the SEC’s practice, to determine their
“present value.” The present value is shown to indicate the effect of time on the value of the revenue
stream and should not be construed as being the fair market value of the properties. Estimates of
future net revenues are made using oil and natural gas prices and operating costs at the estimation
date and held constant for the life of the reserves.

Tefe. Trillion cubic feet equivalent, determined using the ratio of six Mcf of natural gas to one bbl
of crude oil, condensate, or natural gas liquids.

Undeveloped Acreage. Acreage on which wells have not been drilled or completed to a point that
would permit the production of commercial quantities of oil or natural gas, regardless of whether such
acreage contains estimated proved reserves.

Working interest.  An operating interest which gives the owner the right to drill, produce, and
conduct operating activities on the property, and to receive a share of production.

Available Information

Forest’s website address is www.forestoil.com. Available on our website, free of charge, arc Forest’s
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K,
reports on Forms 3, 4, and 5 filed on behalf of directors and officers, as well as amendments to these
reports. These materials are available as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials are
electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC.

Also posted on Forest’s website, and available in print upon written request of any shareholder
addressed to the Secretary of Forest, at 707 17" Street, Suite 3600, Denver, Colorado 80202, are
Forest’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, the charters for each of the committees of our Board of
Directors (including the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee), and codes of ethics for our directors and employees entitled
“Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” and “Proper Business Practices Policy,” respectively.

In May 2007, we submitted to the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) the certification of the
Chief Executive Officer of Forest required by Section 303A.12 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual,
relating to Forest’s compliance with the NYSE’s corporate governance listing standards with no
qualifications. Also, we have included the certifications of the Principal Executive Officer and Principal
Financial Officer of Forest required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related
rules, relating to the quality of Forest’s public disclosure, in this Form 10-K as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2.
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Forward-Looking Statements

The information in this Form 10-K includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All
statements, other than statements of historical facts or present facts, that address activities, events,
outcomes, and other matters that Forest plans, expects, intends, assumes, believes, budgets, predicts,
forecasts, projects, estimates, or anticipates (and other similar expressions) will, should, or may occur in
the future are forward-looking statements. Generally, the words “expects,” “anticipates,” “targets,”
“goals,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “‘believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” variations of such words, and
similar expressions identify forward-looking statements, and any statements regarding Forest’s future
financial condition, results of operations, and business are also forward-looking statements, These
forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and assumptions about future events
and are based on currently available information as to the outcome and timing of future events. When
considering forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary
statements described under the heading “Risk Factors” included in this Form 10-K.

These forward-looking statements appear in a number of places and inciude statements with
respect to, among other things:

+ estimates of our oil and gas reserves;

+ estimates of our future natural gas and liquids production, including estimates of any increases
in oil and gas production,

* the amount, nature, and timing of capital expenditures, including future devetopment caosts, and
availability of capital resources to fund capital expenditures;

* the amount, nature, and timing of any synergies or other benefits expected to result from
acquisitions;

* our outlook on oil and gas prices;

* the impact of political and regulatory developments;

* our future financial condition or results of operations and our future revenues and expenses; and
* our business strategy and other plans and objectives for future operations.

We caution you that these forward-looking statements are subject to all of the risks and
uncertainties, most of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control, incident
to the exploration for and development, production, and sale of oil and gas. These risks inciude, but
are not limited to, commodity price volatility, inflation, lack of availability of drilling and production
equipment and services, environmental risks, drilling and other operating risks, regulatory changes, the
uncertainty inherent in estimating proved oil and natural gas reserves and in projecting future rates of
production, cash flow and access to capital, the timing of development expenditures, and the other risks
described under the caption “Risk Factors,” The financial results of our operations outside the United
States are also subject to currency exchange rate risks.

Reserve engineering is a process of estimating underground accumulations of oil and natural gas
that cannot be measured in an exact way. The accuracy of any reserve estimate depends on the quality
of available data, the interpretation of such data, and price and cost assumptions made by reservoir
engineers. In addition, the results of drilling, testing, and production activities may justify revisions of
estimates that were made previously. If significant, such revisions would change the schedule of any
further production and development drilling. Accordingly, reserve estimates may differ significantly
from the quantities of oil and natural gas that are ultimately recovered.
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Should one or more of the risks or uncertainties described above or elsewhere in this Form 10-K
occur, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results and plans could differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements, expressed or implied, included in this Form 10-K and attributable
to Forest are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. This cautionary
statement should also be considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-looking
statements that Forest or persons acting on its behalf may issue. Forest does not undertake to update
any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of filing this
Form 10-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission, except as required by law.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our business activities are subject to certain risks and hazards, including the risks discussed below.
If any of these events should occur, it could materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations. Further, these risks are not the only risks we face. We
may experience additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or, as a result of
developments occurring in the future, conditions that we currently deem to be immaterial may also
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations.

Oil and natural gas prices fluctuate due to a number of factors outside of our control, and declining
prices will adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Our results of operations and
future rate of growth depend upon the prices that we receive for our oil and natural gas. We sell most
of our oil and gas at current prices rather than through fixed-price contracts. Historically, the markets
for oil and natural gas have been volatile and are likely to remain volatile in the future. Oil and gas
prices are currently at or near historical highs, and they may decline in the future. The prices we
receive depend upon factors beyond our control, including among others:

+ domestic and foreign supply, consumer demand for oil and gas, and market gxpectations
regarding supply and demand;

weather conditions;

political instability and armed conflicts in oil-producing and gas-producing regions;

+ actions by the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries (“OPEC”);

+ domestic and worldwide economic conditions;

» the price and availability of foreign exports and the availability of alternate fuels; and
* governmental regulations and taxes.

Further, oil prices and natural gas prices do not necessarily fluctuate in direct relation to each
other. Approximately 73% of our estimated proved reserves at December 31, 2007 was natural gas,
and, as a result, our financial results in 2008 will be more sensitive to fluctuations in natural gas prices.

To the extent we have not hedged our production, a significant or extended decline in the prices of
oil and gas below current levels will negatively impact:

« our revenues, cash flows, profitability, and earnings;

« our ability to make capital expenditures;

« our ability to replace our production and our future rate of growth;
+ our ability to meet our financial obligations;

« our ability to raise capital or borrow money and our cost of such capital;
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* the amount that we are allowed to borrow under our credit facilities; and

* the amount of oil and natural gas that we can produce economically.

We have substantial capital requirements, and we may be unable to obtain needed financing on
satisfactory terms necessary to execute our operating strategy. 'We incur, and will continue to incur,
substantial capital expenditures for the acquisition, development, and exploration of our oil and natural
gas reserves. In 2007, 2006, and 2005, we incurred approximately $3.0 billion, $943 million, and
$854 million on capital expenditures, respectively, including approximately $2.2 billion, $316 million,
and $314 million on property acquisitions. Our exploration and development expenditures budget for
2008 is approximately $900 million to $1 billion. We intend to finance our ongoing capital expenditures
primarily through cash flow from operations and our bank credit facilities, and any exceptional
expenditures with public or private equity and debt offerings.

Our ability to access these sources of capital will depend upon a number of factors, some of which
are outside our control. These factors include:

+ oil and natural gas prices;

* the value and performance of Forest debt and equity securities;

* the credit ratings assigned to Forest by independent rating agencies; and
» general economic and financial market conditions,

For example, oil and natural gas prices are currently at or near historic highs, and a significant
decline in oil and natural gas prices would reduce our cash flow and could affect our access to the
capital markets. Further, our access to funds under our credit facilities is based on a global borrowing
base, which is based on our estimated proved reserves, and is redetermined semi-annually by the
lenders and may be redetermined at other times during the year at the option of Forest or the lenders.
The global borrowing base may be reduced if oil and natural gas prices decline, or if we have
downward revisions in estimates of our proved reserves, which may adversely affect our planned capital
expenditures.

We belicve that our available cash, cash provided by operating activities, and funds available under
our bank credit facilities will be sufficient to fund our operating, interest, and general and
administrative expenses, our capital expenditure budget, and our short-term contractual obligations,
including the 8% senior notes that will come due on June 15, 2008, at current levels for the foreseeable
future. If revenues decrease, however, and we are unable to obtain additional debt or equity financing
or alternative sources of funds, we may have to reduce our capital expenditures and may lack the
capital necessary to replace our reserves or maintain cur production at current levels.

We have substantial indebtedness and may incur more debt in the future, and our leverage may
materially affect our operations and financial condition. We have incursed substantial debt. At
December 31, 2007, the principal amount of our outstanding consolidated debt was approximately
$1.7 billion, including $294 million outstanding under our combined U.S. and Canadian credit facilities.
Our outstanding consolidated debt represented approximately 42% of our total capitalization at
December 31, 2007. Further, we may incur more debt in the future, including in connection with
acquisitions and refinancings. The level of our debt has several important effects on our business and
operations; among other things, it may:

* require us to use a significant portion of our cash flow to pay principal and interest on the debt,
which will reduce the amount available to fund working capital, capital expenditures, and other
general purposes;

* increase our costs as our access to the capital markets and our cost of borrowing is predicated
on the credit ratings assigned by third party rating agencies, which have in the past and may in
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the future downgrade their ratings of our debt and other obligations due to changes in market
conditions, our debt level or our financial condition,;

» limit our access to the capital markets, increase our borrowing costs, and impact the terms,
conditions, and restrictions contained in our debt agreements, including the addition of more
restrictive covenants;

» impact our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our business as covenants and
restrictions contained in our existing and possible future debt arrangements may require that we
meet certain financial tests and place restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness;

» place us at a disadvantage compared to similar companies in our industry that have less debt;
and

« make us more vulnerable to economic downturns and adverse developments in our business.

Our ability to meet our debt obligations and other expenses will depend on our future
performance, which will be affected by financial, business, domestic and foreign economic conditions,
regulatory, and other factors, many of which we are unable to control. If our cash flow is not sufficient
to service our debt, we may be required to refinance the debt, sell assets, or sell shares of our stock on
terms that we do not find attractive, if it can be done at all. Further, our failure to comply with the
financial and other restrictive covenants relating to our credit facilities and the indentures pertaining to
our outstanding senior notes could result in a default under these agreements, which could adversely
affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

For example, of the principal amount of outstanding consolidated debt at December 31, 2007,
$265 million will come due in June 2008. Qur ability to refinance this debt will depend on our cash
flow and our borrowing base and ability to access funds under our credit facility. If we do not have
sufficient funds available, we may need to access the capital markets. Over the recent months, the
capital markets have limited the availability of funds due to distressed conditions in the sub-prime
securities market and other factors. We can not predict whether we will need to access the capital
markets to refinance any portion of our debt obligations or whether the market conditions existing at
such time will allow us to obtain the necessary funds.

Our use of hedging transactions could result in financial losses or reduce our income. To reduce our
exposure to fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices, we have and expect in the future to enter into
derivative instruments (or, hedging agreements) for a portion of our oil and natural gas production.
Our commodity hedging agreements are limited in duration, usually for periods of one year or less;
however, in conjunction with acquisitions, we sometimes enter into or acquire hedges for longer
periods. As of February 27, 2008, we had hedged, via commodity swaps and collar instruments,
approximately 75 Bcfe of our 2008 production. Our hedging transactions expose us to certain risks and
financial losses, including, among others:

« we may be limited in receiving the full benefit of increases in oil and natural gas prices as a
result of these transactions;

» we may hedge too much or too little production depending on how oil and natural gas prices
fluctuate in the future;

« there is a change to the expected differential between the underlying price and the actual price
received; and

* a counterparty to a hedging arrangement may default on its obligations to Forest.

For further information concerning our commodity price hedging transactions and information
concerning prices, market conditions, and our swap and collar hedging agreements, see Part II,
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Item 7A—"“Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk—Commodity Price Risk” of
this Form 10-K, and Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our proved reserves are estimates and depend on many assumptions. Any material inaccuracies in these
assumptions could cause the quantity and value of our oil and gas reserves, and our revenue, profitability,
and cash flow, to be materially different from our estimates. The proved oil and gas reserve information
and the related future net revenues information included in this Form 10-K represent only estimates,
which are prepared by our internal staff of engineers. Estimating quantities of proved oil and natural
gas reserves is a subjective, complex process and depends on a number of variable factors and
assumptions, To prepare estimates of economically recoverable oil and natural gas reserves and future
net cash flows:

* we analyze historical production from the area and compare it to production rates from other
producing areas;

* we analyze available technical data, including geological, geophysical, production, and
engineering data, and the extent, quality, and reliability of this data can vary; and

* we must make various economic assumptions, including assumptions about prices, production
costs, severance and excise taxes, capital expenditures, and workover and remedial costs.

Ultimately, actual production, revenues, and expenditures relating to our reserves will vary from
our estimates, Any significant inaccuracies in our assumptions or changes in operating conditions could
cause the estimated quantities and net present value of the reserves shown in this Form 10-K to be
different from our estimates.

You should not assume that any present value of future net cash flows from our producing
reserves shown in this Form 10-K is the market value of our estimated oil and natural gas reserves. We
base the estimated discounted future net cash flows from our proved reserves on prices and costs as of
the date of the estimate. Actual future prices and costs may be materially higher or lower. Further,
actual future net revenues will be affected by factors such as the amount and timing of actual
development expenditures, the rate and timing of production, and changes in governmental regulations
and, or taxes. In addition, the 10% discount factor that we use to calculate the net present value of
future net revenues and cash flows may not necessarily be the most appropriate discount factor based
on our cost of capital in effect from time to time and the risks associated with our business and the oil
and gas industry in general.

Lower oil and gas prices and other factors may cause us to record ceiling test writedowns, We use the
full cost method of accounting to report our oil and gas operations. Accordingly, we capitalize the cost
to acquire, explore for, and develop oil and gas properties. Under full cost accounting rules, the net
capitalized costs of oil and gas properties may not exceed a “ceiling limit,” which is based upon the
present value of estimated future net cash flows from proved reserves, discounted at 10%. If net
capitalized costs of oil and gas properties exceed the ceiling limit, we must charge the amount of the
excess to earnings. This is called a “ceiling test writedown.” Under the accounting rules, we are
required to perform a ceiling test each quarter. A ceiling test writedown would not impact cash flow
from operating activities, but it would reduce our shareholders’ equity.

The risk that we will be required to write down the carrying value of our oil and gas properties
increases when oil and gas prices are low or volatile. In addition, writedowns may occur if we
experience substantial downward adjustments to our estimated proved reserves or our undeveloped
property values, or if estimated future development costs increase. We cannot assure you that we will
not experience ceiling test writedowns in the future. Qur Canadian full cost pool, in particular, could be
adversely impacted by moderate declines in commodity prices. In addition, our ceiling test cushion is
subject to fluctuation as a result of our corporate development activity, which is difficult to fully assess
prior to completion.
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Qur failure to replace our reserves could result in a material decline in our reserves and could adversely
affect our financial condition, In general, our proved reserves decline when oil and natural gas is
produced, unless we are able to conduct successful exploitation, exploration, and development activities,
or acquire additional properties containing proved reserves, or both. Our future performance,
therefore, is highly dependent upon our ability 1o find, develop and, or acquire additional reserves.
Exploring for, developing, or acquiring reserves is capital intensive and uncertain. We may not be able
to economically find, develop, or acquire additional reserves, or may not be able to make the necessary
capital investments if our cash flows from operations decline or external sources of capital become
limited or unavailable. We cannot assure you that our future exploitation, exploration, development,
and acquisition activities will result in additional proved reserves or that we will be able to drill
productive wells at acceptable costs.

Drilling oil and natural gas wells is a high-risk activity and subjects us to a variety of factors that we
cannot control. Dirilling oil and natural gas wells involves numerous risks, including the risk that we
may not encounter commercially productive oil or natural gas reservoirs. The presence of unanticipated
pressures or irregularities in formations, miscalculations, or accidents may cause our drilling activities to
be unsuccessful and result in significantly higher than expected costs and, or the total loss of our
investment. Further, the cost of drilling, completing, and operating wells is often uncertain. Our drilling
operations may be shortened, delayed, curtailed, or canceled as a result of a variety of factors, many of
which are beyond our control, including:

* unexpected drilling conditions;

» geological irregularities or pressure in formations;

s equipment failures or accidents;

* costs of, or shortages or delays in the availability of, drilling rigs and related equipment;
* shortages in labor;

« adverse weather conditions;

* fires, explosions, blow-outs, or surface cratering; and

* restricted access to land necessary for drilling or laying pipelines.

Forest has a drilling subsidiary that provides services to Forest and third parties. The operations of
our drilling subsidiary are subject to various factors outside of our control, including the factors
described above, and the risks associated with conducting drilling activities, such as natural gas leaks,
oil spills, pipeline ruptures, and discharges of toxic gases, any of which could result in substantial losses,
injuries or loss of life, environmental damage and clean-up responsibilities, and the suspension of our
operations.

We cannot assure you that any new wells we drill will be productive or that we will recover all or
any portion of our investment,

The marketability of our production is dependent upon transportation and processing facilities over which
we may have no control. The marketability of our production depends in part upon the availability,
proximity, and capacity of pipelines, natural gas gathering systems, and processing facilities. Any
significant change in market factors affecting these infrastructure facilities, as well as delays in the
construction of new infrastructure facilities, could harm our business. We deliver the majority of our oil
and natural gas through gathering facilities that we do not own. As a result, we are subject to the risk
that these facilities may be temporarily unavailable due to mechanical reasons or market conditions, or
may not be available to us in the future. We have formed a natural gas gathering subsidiary to hold
pipeline and related equipment, which currently operates solely within the State of Texas. The
subsidiary transports natural gas produced by Forest as well as third parties.
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We may not be insured against all of the operating risks to which our businesses are exposed. The
exploration, development, and production of oil and natural gas and the activities performed by our
drilling subsidiary and gas gathering subsidiary involve risks. These operating risks include the risk of
fire, explosions, blow-outs, pipe failure, damaged drilling and oil field equipment, abnormally pressured
formations, and environmental hazards. Environmental hazards include oil spills, gas leaks, pipeline
ruptures, or discharges of toxic gases. If any of these industry operating risks occur, we could have
substantial losses. Substantial losses may be caused by injury or loss of life, severe damage to or
destruction of property, natural resources, and equipment, pollution or other environmental damage,
clean-up responsibilities, regulatory investigation and penalties, and suspension of operations. In
accordance with industry practice, we maintain insurance against some, but not all, of the risks
described above. Generally, pollution related environmental risks are not fully insurable. We do not
insure against business interruption. We cannot assure that our insurance will be fully adequate to
cover other losses or liabilities. Also, we cannot predict the continued availability of insurance at
premium levels that justify its purchase.

Our international operations may be adversely affected by currency fluctuations and economic and
political developments. We currently have oil and gas properties and operations in Canada, Italy,
Gabon, and South Africa. As a result, we are exposed to the risks of international operations, including
political and economic developments, royalty and tax increases, changes in laws or policies affecting our
exploration and development activities, and currency exchange risks, as well as changes in the policies
of the United States affecting trade, taxation, and investment in other countries.

We have significant operations in Canada. In 2007, the revenues and expenses of such operations
represented approximately 18% of our consolidated oil and gas revenues and 19% of our consolidated
production costs. The revenues and expenses of these operations are denominated in Canadian dollars.
As a result, the profitability of our Canadian operations is subject to the risk of fluctuation in the
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar. In addition, our Canadian operations may
be adversely affected by recent regulatory developments. The majority of our Canadian operations are
located in Alberta, Canada, and in October 2007, the Alberta Government announced a new oil and
gas royalty framework to take effect in January 2009. The new framework establishes new royalties for
conventional oil, natural gas, and bitumen that are linked to price and production levels and apply to
both new and existing conventional oil and gas activities and oil sands projects. Under the new
framework, the formula for conventional oil and natural gas royalties will be set by a sliding rate
formula, dependent on the market price and production volumes. Royalty rates for conventional oil will
range from 0% to 50%. New natural gas royalty rates will range from 5% to 50%. Under the current
royalty regime, royalty rates range from 10% to 35% for conventional oil and from 5% to 35% for
natural gas.

The implementation of the new royalty framework in Canada is subject to risks and uncertainties.
The significant changes to the royalty regime require new legislation, changes to existing legislation and
regulation, and development of proprietary software to support the calculation and collection of
royalties. In addition, certain proposed changes contemplate further public and/or industry consultation.
Accordingly, there may be modifications introduced to the new framework prior to its January 1, 2009
implementation. If the new framework is implemented in the same form as announced, the rate caps
will be raised for conventional oil from $30 to $120 per barrel. The rate caps for natural gas will be
raised from $3.90 to $17.50 per MMBtu. The tiers in conventional oil and natural gas that distinguish
‘vintages’ based on discovery date will be eliminated. Several special royalty programs for conventional
oil and natural gas will also be extinguished, except for the Otherwise Flared Solution Gas Royalty
Waiver Program and Deep Gas Drilling Program, both of which will be amended, The royalties for
natural gas liquids will be set at 40% for pentanes, from the previous 22% to 50% for old tiers and
22% to 35% for new. The new royalties for butanes and propane will be 309, from the current 15% to
30%. The Alberta government will extinguish the option to use the Corporate Average Price to
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determine natural gas royalties in lieu of a single reference price. If adopted in its current form, we
expect that our royalty payments on our Canadian oil and gas sales will increase.

Although we do not have material operations in Italy, Gabon, and South Africa, our ongoing
operations may be adversely affected by political, economic, and regulatory developments, changes in
the local royalty and tax regimes, and currency fluctuations. In Italy, we have increased the level of our
drilling and related exploration and development activities over the last several years. In 2007, we
successfully completed two wells in Italy and are currently planning to construct pipelines and facilities
to deliver the natural gas. During 2007, we assigned estimated proved reserves to these properties and
expect to bring these wells on production in the first half of 2009.

In South Africa, we have an interest in offshore properties that have tested natural gas, although
we have not assigned any proved reserves to these properties as we have not yet established
commercial sales contracts. If we are unable to arrange for commercial use of these properties, we may
not be able to recoup our investment and may not realize our anticipated financial and operating
results from these properties. In 2004, the South African government implemented new legislation that
revises the regulations and process pursuant to which it grants petroleum exploration and production
licenses. Under the new regulations, we have applied to the government to convert one existing
prospecting sublease into an exploration right and have applied for a production right covering the
geographic area of our other existing prospecting sublease. The government has not taken final action
on these applications. We cannot predict whether these applications will be granted. Further, because
not all of the regulations implementing the new legislation are final and the potential work obligations
that may be imposed pursuant to the rights, when and if they are granted, are still uncertain, we cannot
predict whether these rights will meet our economic or operational requirements. If the rights do not
meet our internal requirements, we may choose to relinquish these leases and lose our investment,
which totals approximately $50¢ million.

Competition within our industry may adversely affect our operations. 'We operate in a highly
competitive environment. Forest competes with major and independent oil and gas companies in
acquiring desirable oil and gas properties and in obtaining the equipment and labor required to
develop and operate such properties. Forest also competes with major and independent oil and gas
companies in the marketing and sale of oil and natural gas. Factors that affect our ability to acquire
properties include, among others, availability of desirable acquisition targets, staff and resources to
identify and evaluate properties, available funds, and internal standards for minimum projected return
on investment. Higher recent commodity prices have increased both equipment, service, and labor costs
in the industry as well as the cost of properties available for acquisition, and a large number of the
companies that we compete with have substantially larger staffs and greater financial and operational
resources than we have. In addition, oil and gas producers are increasingly facing competition from
providers of non-fossil energy, and government policy may favor those competitors in the future. Many
of these competitors have financial and other resources substantially greater than ours. We can give no
assurance that we will be able to compete effectively in the future and that our financial condition and
results of operations will not suffer as a result.

Our growth depends on our ability to acquire oil and gas properties on a profitable basis. Acquisition
of producing oil and gas properties is a key element of maintaining and growing reserves and
production. Competition for these assets has been and will continue to be intense. The success of any
acquisition will depend on a number of factors, including:

+ the acquisition price;
+ future oil and gas prices;
* our ability to reasonably estimate or assess the recoverable volumes of reserves;

» rates of future production and future net revenues attainable from reserves;
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« future operating and capital costs;

* results of future exploration, exploitation, and development activities on the acquired properties;
and

*+ future abandonment and possible future environmental liabilities.

When acquiring new properties, there are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities
of proved oil and gas reserves, future production rates, and associated costs and potential liabilities
with respect to prospective acquisition targets. Actual results from an acquisition may vary substantially
from those assumed in the purchase analysis, and acquired properties may not produce as expected, or
there may be conditions that subject us to increased costs and liabilities including environmental
liabilities.

Our oil and gas operations are subject to various environmental and other governmental regulations that
materially affect our operations. Our oil and gas operations are subject to various United States federal,
state, and local regulations, Canadian federal and provincial governmental laws and regulations, and
local and federal regulations in Italy. These regulations may be changed in response to economic or
political conditions. Matters subject to these governmental regulations include permits for discharge of
waste and other substances generated in connection with drilling and production operations, bonds or
other financial responsibility requirements to cover drilling contingencies and well plugging and
abandonment costs, reports concerning our operations, the spacing of wells, and unitization and pooling
of properties, and taxation. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in the
assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of remedial obligations and the
issuance of injunctions that could delay, limit or prohibit certain of our operations. At various times,
regulatory agencies have imposed price controls and limitations on oil and gas production. In order to
conserve supplies of oil and gas, these agencies may restrict the rates of flow of oil and gas wells below
actual production capacity. Further, a significant spill from one of our facilities could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, competitive position, or financial condition. The laws in the
United States, Canada, and Italy regulate, among other things, the production, handling, storage,
transportation, and disposal of oil and gas, by-products from oil and gas, and other substances and
materials produced or used in connection with oil and gas operations. We cannot predict the ultimate
cost of compliance with these requirements or their effect on our operations. We may not be able to
recover some or any of these costs from insurance.

We have limited control over the activities on properties we do not operate. Although we operate the
properties from which most of our production is derived, other companies operate some of our other
properties. We have limited ability to influence or control the operation or future development of these
non-operated properties or the amount of capital expenditures that we are required to fund for their
operation. The success and timing of drilling development or production activities on properties
operated by others depend upon a number of factors that are outside of our control, including the
timing and amount of capital expenditures, the operator’s expertise and financial resources, approval of
other participants, and selection of technology. Our dependence on the operator and other working
interest owners for these projects and our limited ability to influence or control the operation and
future development of these properties could have a material adverse effect on the realization of our
targeted returns on capital or lead to unexpected future costs,

Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws have provisions that discourage corporate
takeovers. Certain provisions of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws and provisions of
the New York Business Corporation Law may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in
control. Our directors are elected to staggered terms, Also, our Restated Certificate of Incorporation
authorizes our board of directors to issue preferred stock without shareholder approval and to set the
rights, preferences, and other designations, including voting rights of those shares as the board may
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determine. Additional provisions include restrictions on business combinations, the availability of
authorized but unissued common stock, and notice requirements for shareholder proposals and director
nominations. Also, our board of directors has adopted a shareholder rights plan. If activated, this plan
would cause extreme dilution to any person or group that attempts to acquire a significant interest in
Forest without advance approval of our board of directors. The provisions contained in our Bylaws and
Certificate of Incorporation, alone or in combination with each other and with the shareholder rights
plan, may discourage transactions involving actual or potential changes of control.

Item lﬁ. Unresolved Staff Comments.

As of December 31, 2007, we did not have any SEC staff comments that have been unresolved for
more than 180 days.
Item 2. Properties.

Information on Properties is contained in Item 1 of this Form 10-K.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are a party to various lawsuits, claims, and proceedings in the ordinary course of business.
These proceedings are subject to uncertainties inherent in any litigation, and the outcome of these
matters is inherently difficult to predict with any certainty. We believe that the amount of any potential
loss associated with these proceedings would not be material to our consolidated financial position;
however, in the event of an unfavorable outcome, the potential loss could have an adverse effect on
our results of operations and cash flow in the reporting periods in which any such actions are resolved.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matter was submitted to a vote of our shareholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007.
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Item 4A. Executive Officers of Forest.

The following persons were serving as executive officers of Forest as of February 27, 2008.

Years
with
Name Age Forest Office"
H. CraigClark .............. 51 7 President and Chief Executive Officer, and a member of the Board of

Directors since July 2603. Mr. Clark joined Forest in September 2001
and served as President and Chief Operating Officer through July 2003,
Mr. Clark was employed by Apache Corporation, an oil and gas
exploration and production company, from 1989 to 2001, where he
served in various management positions including Executive Vice
President—U.S. Operations and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of Pro Energy, an affiliate of Apache.

David H.Keyte . . ..._.....,.. 51 20 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since November
1997, Mr. Keyte served as our Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
from December 1995 to November 1997 and our Vice President and
Chief Accounting Officer from December 1993 until December 1995,

JC Ridens. . ............... 52 4 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer since November
2007. Since joining Forest in April 2004, Mr. Ridens has served as
Senior Vice President for the Gulf Region, the Southern Region and
most recently the Western Region. From 2001 to 2004, Mr. Ridens was
employed by Cordillera Energy Partners, LLC, as Vice President of
Operations and Exploitation. From 1996 to 2001, he served in various
capacities at Apache Corporation.

Cecil N.Colwell ............. 57 19 Senior Vice President, Worldwide Drilling since May 2004. Between
2000 and May 2004, Mr. Colwell served as our Vice President, Drilling,
and from 1988 to 2000 he served as our Drilling Manager, Gulf Coast.

Leonard C. Gurule . . .. ... ... .. 51 5 Senior Vice President since September 2003. From 1987 to 2000, he
served in various capacities at Atlantic Richfield Co. Before joining
Forest Mr. Gurule served on the boards of several local community and
non-profit organizations and managed his own investment portfolio.

Cyrus D, Marter 1V . .. .. ... ... 44 6 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since November
2007. Mr. Marter served as Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary from January 2005 to November 2007, as Associate General
Counsel from October 2004 to January 2005, and as Senior Counsel from
June 2002 until October 2004. Prior to joining Forest, Mr. Marter was a
partner of the law firm of Susman Godfrey L.L.P. in Houston, Texas.

Glen J. Mizenko . ............ 45 7 Senior Vice President, Business Development and Engineering since
May 2007. Mr. Mizenko joined Forest in January 2001 as Manager
Corporate Development and New Ventures. In October 2003, he was
promoted to the position of Director, Business Development. In May
2005, he was promoted to Vice President, Business Development. Prior
to joining Forest, Mr. Mizenko held various positions in reservoir
engineering, reserves reporting, development planning, and operations
management with Shell Oil, Benton Oil & Gas, and British Borneo Ol
and Gas PLC.

Mark E.Bush . .............. 48 10 Vice President, Eastern Region since April 2007, Mr. Bush joined
Forest in June 1997 as Production Engineer in the Gulf of Mexico
Region and was subsequently promoted to Offshore Production
Engineering Manager and Production Engineering Manager, both in the
Gulf Coast Region and its successor, the Eastern Region. Prior to
joining Forest Oil, he worked for Oryx Energy Company (formerly Sun
E&P) in various production engineering assignments in the Gulf of
Mexico and South Texas.

Stephen T Harpham . . .. .. .. ... 45 6 Vice Prestdent, Western Region since November 2007. Mr. Harpham
joined Forest in January 2002 and served as a Reservoir Engineer and
subsequently Reservoir Engineering Manager. Prior to joining Forest,
Mr. Harpham was a Technical Advisor with Ensign Oil & Gas Inc.

Ronald C. Nutt . . ............ 50 * Vice President, Southern Region since July 2007. Prior to joining
Forest, from March 2007 to July 2007, Mr. Nutt worked for
Constellation Energy Group as an Engineer, and from January 2003 to
March 2007 at Scotia Waterous as Vice President, Engineering.
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Years

with
Name Age  Forest Office™
Victor A.Wind . ........... .. 34 3 Corporate Controller. Mr. Wind joined Forest in January 2005,

Mr. Wind was previously employed by Evergreen Resources, Inc. from
July 2001 to December 2004. He served in various management
positions during this period, including Director of Financial Reporting
and Controller. From 1997 to 2001, he served in various capacities at
BDO Seidman, LLP.

M Officers are elected to serve for one-year terms at meetings immediately following the last annual meeting, or until their
death, resignation, or removal from office, whichever first occurs,

(*) Denotes less than one year of service.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities.

Common Stock

Forest has one class of common shares outstanding, its common stock, par value $.10 per share
(“Common Stock”). Forest’s Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol “FST” On February 15, 2008, our Common Stock was held by 1,119 holders of record. The
number of holders does not include the shareholders for whom shares are held in a “nominee™ or
“street” name.

The table below reflects the high and low intraday sales prices per share of the Common Stock on
the New York Stock Exchange composite tape, as well as adjusted prices for Forest Common Stock
that reflect the stock dividend paid by Forest on March 2, 2006. There were no cash dividends declared
on the Common Stock in 2006 or 2007. On February 27, 2008, the closing price of Forest Common
Stock was $49.54.

Common Stock
Common Stock (As Adjusted)!

High Lew  High Low

2000 First Quarter . ... ... ... . e $5299 3251 37.82 30.80
Second Quarter .. ...... ... e 3975 28.00 3975 28.00
Third Quarter ... ... ... 3528 29.06 3528 2906
Fourth Quarter . ....... .. ... . . s 3617 2913 36.17 2913
2007 First Quarter . ... ... .. e e e $34.25 28.84 3425 2884
Second Quarter . ... ... i e s 4505 3326 4505 3326
Third Quarter .. ... .. i e e 44,72 3743 4472 3743
Fourth Quarter ......... ... it e 52.25 4278 5225 4278

™ On March 2, 2006, Forest completed the Spin-off by means of a special stock dividend paid to all shareholders of Forest
Common Stock. The stock dividend consisted of 0.8093 shares of a wholly owned subsidiary of Forest for each outstanding
share of Forest Common Stock, which immediately thereafter became the right to receive one share of Mariner for each
whole share of such subsidiary in connection with the merger of MERI and such subsidiary. Mariner's common stock
commenced trading on March 3, 2006 at a price of $20.40. Based on the ratio of 0.8093 Mariner shares for each Forest
share, the value of the stock dividend to Forest shareholders is deemed by Forest to be equal to $16.51, or the price of
Mariner common stock on March 3, 2006 ($20.40) multiplied by 0.8093.

The prices shown in the “As Adjusted” column above for the first quarter of 2006 have been adjusted to reflect the stock
dividend paid on March 2, 2006. The ratio used for this historical price adjustment is 0.6698. This represents the ratio of
(x) $33.49, the per share value of Forest Common Stock immediately after the stock dividend, which was the opening price
for Forest shares on March 3, 2006, to (y) $50.00, which represents the sum of $33.49 plus $16.51, the value of the stock
dividend described above. That is, $33.49 divided by $50.00 equals 0.669{} Prices from the second quarter of 2006 onward
are identical in both columns.

Dividend Restrictions

Forest’s present or future ability to pay dividends is governed by (i) the provisions of the New
York Business Corporation Law, (ii) Forest’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, (iii) the
indentures concerning Forest’s 8% senior notes due 2008, Forest’s 8% senior notes due 2011, Forest’s
7¥:% senior notes due 2014, and Forest’s 7%4% senior notes due 2019, and (iv) Forest’s United States
and Canadian bank credit facilities dated as of June 6, 2007. The provisions in the indentures
pertaining to these senior notes and in the bank credit facilitics limit our ability to make restricted
payments, which include dividend payments. As noted above, on March 2, 2006, Forest distributed a
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special stock dividend; however, Forest has not paid cash dividends on its Common Stock during the
past five years. The future payment of cash dividends, if any, on the Common Stock is within the
discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend on Forest’s earnings, capital requirements,
financizal condition, and other relevant factors. There is no assurance that Forest will pay any cash
dividends. See Item 7—“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” for more details concerning the Spin-off. For further information regarding our equity
securities and our ability to pay dividends on our Common Stock, see Notes 4 and 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

For equity compensation plan information, see Part III, Item 12—“Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The table below sets forth information regarding repurchases of our Common Stock during the
3-month fiscal quarter and year ended December 31, 2007. The shares repurchased represent shares of
our Common Stock that employees elected to surrender to Forest to satisfy their tax withholding
obligations upon the vesting of shares of restricted stock. Forest does not consider this a share buyback
program.

Maximum # (or
Total # of Shares (or Approximate Dollar
units) Purchased as Value) of Shares that

Total # of Part of Publicly May yet be Purchased
Shares’ Average Price  Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Period Purchased Per Share Programs Programs
January 2007 . . .. ... ... L. — $§ — — —
February 2007 . .. ............... 8,258 33.51 — —
March 2007................. ... 38 31.53 — —
Aprit 2007 . ... ... ... o o — — — —
May 2007 ..................... 75 40.86 —_ —
June 2007 . ... ... .. .. L 1,400 4378 —_ —
July2007. . ..o — — —_ —
August 2007 . ... ... ... — — — —
September 2007 .. . .. ... ... ... 38 40.71 — —
October 2007 . . ... ....... ... ..., — — — —
November 2007 .. . ... ... ... .... — — — —
December 2007 . .. .............. 19,760 48.83 — —
Fourth Quarter Total . . ... ........ 19,760 48.83 — —
2000 Total . . ... ... o 29,569 44.26 — —
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‘ Stock Performance Graph

The graph below shows the cumulative total shareholder return assuming the investment of $100
on December 31, 2002 (and the reinvestment of dividends thereafter) in each of Forest Common Stock,
the S&P 500 Index, and the Dow Jones U.S. Exploration and Production Index. We believe that the
Dow Jones U.S. Exploration and Production Index is meaningful, because it is an independent,
objective view of the performance of other similarly-sized energy companies.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Forest Qil Corporation, The S&P 500 Index
And The Dow Jones US Exploration & Production Index
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*$100 Invested on 12/31/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31.

The information in this Form 10-K appearing under the heading “Stock Performance Graph” is
being furnished pursuant to Item 2.01(e) of Regulation S-K and shall not be deemed to be “soliciting
material” or “filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C, other than as provided in
Item 2.01(e) of Regulation S-K, or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table sets forth selected financial and operating data of Forest as of and for each of
the years in the five-year period ended December 31, 2007. This data should be read in conjunction
with Part II, Item 7—“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” below, and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto. On June 6, 2007,
Forest completed the acquisition of Houston Exploration. On August 27, 2007, we sold all of our
Alaska assets. On March 2, 2006, Forest completed the spin-off of its offshore Gulf of Mexico
operations. See “Acquisition of Houston Exploration,” “Sale of Alaska Assets,” and “Spin-off of Offshore
Gulf of Mexico Operations” under Part 11, Item 7—“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” below.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts,
Yolumes, and Prices)

FINANCIAL DATA

REVENUES . . . oottt e e e e e $1,083,892 819,992 1072045 912,898 657,178
Earnings from continuing operations . . .. ... ...t iat 169,306 166,080 151,568 123,126 90,228
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax™. . .. ... ... .. — 2,422 — (575)  (1,731)
_Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax{® . . .. .. — — — — 5,854
NEetearmings . . .. ..ot uiu ittt it e $ 169,306 168502 151,568 122,551 88,351
Basic earnings per share:
Earnings from continuing operations . . . . ... ... ... o $ 222 2.67 2.47 2.16 1.82
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, netof tax ... ........ — 04 _ (:01) (.15)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax . . .. .. — — — — 12
Basic earnings per common share . . .. . . oottt $ 222 27 247 215 1719
Diluted earnings per share:
Earnings from continuing operations . . . . ... ... .v.o0 ... $ 218 262 241 212 1.79
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, netof tax ... ........ — 04 — (01) (.15)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, netof tax . .. ... — - — — 11
Diluted earnings per commonshare .. ... ............... ... $ 2.18 2.66 241 2.11 175
Total ASSEES . . o v i e $5,695,548 3,189,072 3,645,546 3,122,505 2,683,548
Longtermdebt . ... ... . . e $1,503,035 1,204,709 884,807 888,819 929,971
Shareholders’ equity . . . . . v oo e e e $2,411,811 1,434006 1,684,522 1,472,147 1,185,798

OPERATING DATA
Annual production:

Gas (MMef) . ... ... . e 108,042 73,024 101,833 107,366 96,977

Liguids (MBbIs). . ... ... oo 7,945 8,026 10,568 10,837 8,701
Average sales price®™:

Gas(per Mcf) . . ..o $ 5.79 5.58 6.36 5.34 4.53

LIQUIdS (T BBL) « .+« v ot e e e e $ 5754 5070 3923 3105 2477

™ Discontinued operations relate to the sale of the business assets of our Canadian marketing subsidiary on March 1, 2004.
The results for this business’ operations have been reported as discontinued operations in the selected financial data for all
periods presented,

@ Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for 2003 relates to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 143, “Aecounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” on January 1, 2003.

@) Includes the effects of hedging under cash flow hedge accounting in 2003 to 2006.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

All expectations, forecasts, assumptions, and beliefs about our future financial results, condition,
operations, strategic plans, and performance are forward-looking statements, as described in more ‘
detail in Part I, Item 1 under the heading “Forward-Looking Statements.” Our actual results may differ '
materially because of 2 number of risks and uncertainties. Some of these risks and uncertainties are ‘
detailed in Item 1A—“Risk Factors,” and elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Historical statements made
herein are accurate only as of the date of filing of this Form 10-K with the Securities and Exchange i
Commission, and may be relied upon only as of that date. |

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with Forest’s Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview

Forest is an independent oil and gas company engaged in the acquisition, exploration,
development, and production of natural gas and liquids primarily in North America. Forest was
incorporated in New York in 1924, as the successor to a company formed in 1916, and has been a
publicly held company since 1969. We conduct our operations in three geographical segments and five
business units. The geographical segments are: the United States, Canada, and International, The
business units are: Western, Eastern, Southern, Canada, and International. We conduct exploration and
development activities in each of our geographical segments; however, substantially all of our estimated
proved reserves and all of our producing properties are located in North America. Forest's total
estimated proved reserves as of December 31, 2007 were approximately 2.1 Tcfe. At December 31,
2007, approximately 85% of our estimated proved oil and gas reserves were in the United States,
approximately 12% were in Canada, and approximately 3% were in Italy.

Acquisition of Houston Exploration

On June 6, 2007, Forest completed the acquisition of The Houston Exploration Company
{“Houston Exploration™) in a cash and stock transaction totaling approximately $1.5 billion and the
assumption of Houston Exploration’s debt. Houston Exploration was an independent natural gas and
oil producer engaged in the exploration, development, exploitation, and acquisition of natural gas and
oil reserves in North America. Houston Exploration had operations in four producing regions within
the United States: South Texas, East Texas, the Arkoma Basin of Arkansas, and the Uinta and DJ
Basins in the Rocky Mountains. The principal factors management considered in making the acquisition
included the mix of complementary high-quality assets in certain of our existing core areas, lower-risk
exploitation opportunities, expected increased cash flow from operations available for investing
activities, and opportunities for cost savings through administrative and operaticonal synergies. At the
time of the acquisition in June 2007, Forest estimated the Houston Exploration oil and gas reserves to
be 653 Befe, of which 71% were classified as proved developed and the remaining amounts were
classified as proved undeveloped. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the agreement and plan of
merger (“Merger Agreement’), Forest paid total merger consideration of $750 million in cash and
issued approximately 24 million common shares, valued at $30.28 per share. The per share value of the
Forest common shares issued was calculated as the average of Forest’s closing share price for a five day
period surrounding the anncuncement date of the acquisition on January 7, 2007. The cash component
of the merger consideration was financed from a private placement of $750 million of 7%4% senior
notes due 2019 and borrowings under our $1.0 billion second amended and restated credit facilities that
were executed on June 6, 2007. Immediately following the completion of the merger, Forest repaid all
of Houston Exploration’s outstanding bank debt totaling $177 million. The revenues and expenses
associated with Houston Exploration have been included in Forest’s Consolidated Statement of \
Operations since June 6, 2007, the date the acquisition closed.
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Sale of Alaska Assets

On August 27, 2007, Forest sold all of its assets located in Alaska (the “Alaska Assets”) to Pacific
Energy Resources Ltd. (“PERL”). Forest estimated the proved oil and gas reserves associated with the
Alaska Assets at closing to be 173 Befe. The total consideration received for the Alaska Assets
included $400 million in cash, 10 million shares of PERL common stock (subject to certain
restrictions), and a zero coupon senior subordinated note from PERL due 2014 in the principal amount
at stated maturity of $60.8 million.

|

Spin-off of Offshore Gulf of Mexico Operations

On March 2, 2006, Forest completed the spin-off of its offshore Gulf of Mexico operations by
means of a special dividend, which consisted of a pro rata spin-off (the “Spin-off”) of all outstanding
shares of Forest Energy Resources, Inc. (hereinafter known as Mariner Energy Resources, Inc. or
“MERI"), a total of approximately 50.6 million shares of common stock, to holders of record of Forest
common stock as of the close of business on February 21, 2006. Immediately following the Spin-off,
MERI was merged with a subsidiary of Mariner Energy, Inc. (“Mariner”) (the “Merger”). Mariner’s
common stock commenced trading on the New York Stock Exchange on March 3, 2006. Forest
estimated the proved oil and gas reserves associated with the Spin-off to be 313 Bcfe.

The Spin-off was a tax-free transaction for federal income tax purposes. Prior to the Merger, as
part of the Spin-off, MERI paid Forest approximately $176.1 million. The $176.1 million was drawn on
a newly created bank credit facility established by MERI immediately prior to the Spin-off. This credit
facility and the associated liability were included in the Spin-off. Subsequent to the closing, in 2006
Forest received additional net cash proceeds of $21.7 million from MERI for a total of $197.8 million.
In accordance with the transaction agreements, Forest and MERI each submitted post-closing
adjustments, from which Forest paid MERI a total of $5.8 million during 2007. Additional adjustments
to the cash amount may occur during 2008 pending the resolution of certain accounting matters that
are the subject of ongoing arbitration between Forest and MERI. The arbitration is currently expected
to be concluded in the second half of 2008,

Other 2007 Highlights
Forest’s other 2007 highlights were as follows:
* Oil and gas production in 2007 increased 28% to 156 Befe from 121 Befe in 2006.

* Forest’s year-end estimated proved reserves were a record 2,119 Befe, 664 Bcfe higher than
2006’s year-end estimated proved reserves of 1,455 Befe, primarily as a result of the Houston
Exploration acquisition and additional discoveries offset by the sale of the Alaska Assets.

* On June 6, 2007, Forest issued $750 million of 7%% senior notes due 2019 (the “7%% Notes”).
The net proceeds from the 74% Notes offering of $739.2 million, after deducting initial
purchaser discounts, were used to fund a portion of the cash consideration for Forest's
acquisition of Houston Exploration.

* On June 6, 2007, Forest entered into second amended and restated U.S. and Canadian credit
facilities in connection with the Houston Exploration acquisition which will mature in 2012.
Initial commitments consist of a U.S. facility of $850 million and a Canadian facility of
$150 million for a total of $1.0 billion.

2008 Qutlook

In 2008, we expect to continue our development and exploitation activities on our North American
assets for which we expect continued production growth. Our exploration and development
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expenditures budget for 2008 is $900 million to $1 billion. Most of this capital budget will be directed
to our large drilling programs in the Buffalo Wallow field in the Texas Panhandle, the Deep Basin in
Alberta, Canada, the Rincon, Charco, Katy, and McAllen Ranch fields in South Texas, the Cotton
Valley in East Texas, and the Arkoma Basin in Arkansas. Our inventory of exploitation and
development projects is significant, which should provide us good visibility of future production growth.

Additionaliy, together with our continued production cost reduction initiatives, the acquired
lower-cost natural gas producing assets from Houston Exploration, and the sale of higher-cost oil
producing Alaska Assets, we expect our future per-unit production costs in 2008 to be lower than
previous years. However, with our production mix more heavily weighted towards natural gas
production, our revenues will be more heavily dependent on natural gas prices than they have been in
the past. Natural gas production is expected to make up approximately 75% of our total production
mix in 2008 compared to approximately 60% in 2006.

We expect to continue to pursue asset acquisition opportunities in 2008, but expect to continue to
confront intense competition for these assets. Also, due to a relatively high commodity price
environment, we anticipate service costs as well as costs of equipment and raw materials to remain
consistent with the levels experienced in 2007. Our challenge will be to economically add reserves,
through drilling and acquisitions, and operate our productive assets in a cost-efficient manner that
achieves attractive returns for our shareholders.

Results of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2007, Forest reported net earnings of $169.3 million or $2.22 per
basic share compared to net earnings of $168.5 million or $2.71 per basic share in 2006. The increase in
net earnings in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to increases in earnings from operations and
realized hedging gains, offset by increased unrealized mark-to-market hedging losses and interest
expense. For the year ended December 31, 2006, Forest reported net earnings of $168.5 million or
$2.71 per basic share, an 11% increase compared to net earnings of $151.6 million or $2.47 per basic
share in 2005. The increase in net earnings in 2006 compared to 2005 was primarily due to an increase
in net unrealized mark-to-market hedging gains, offset by decreased earnings from operations as a
result of the Spin-off transaction discussed above. Discussion of the components of the changes in our
annual results follows.
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Revenues

Oil and gas production volumes, revenues, and weighted average sales prices, by product and
location for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2003, are set forth in the table below. This
table does not include miscellaneous marketing and processing revenues of $.8 million, $5.5 million,
and $9.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Gas QOil NGLs Total Gas 0Oil NGLs Total Gas 0Oil NGLs Total
{MMecf) (MBbls) (MBbls) (MMcfe) (MMcf) (MBbls) (MBbls) (MMcfe) (MMcf) (MBbis) (MBbls) (MMcfe}

Production volumes:

United States . . ... .... 82,963 4,504 2381 124273 48674 5243 1,644 89,996 82912 7412 1904 138,808
Canada. .. .......... 25,079 793 267 3,439 24350 739 400 31,184 18,921 844 408 26,433
Totals . .. ..... ... ... 108,042 5297 2648 155712 73,024 5982 2,044 12L180 101,833 8256 2312 165241
Revenues {In Thousands):
United States . . . .. .. .. $493,321 305,873 93,624 592,818 302,050 326,024 52636 680,710 624,457 391,226 56,375 1,072,058
Capada . . ........... 132,601 46,037 11625 190,263 123408 37,605 16559 177,872 126771 35382 14748 176901
Total before hedging . . . .. 625,922 351,910 105,249 1,083,081 425458 363.629 69,195 858,282 751,228 426,608 71,123 1,248,959
Less hedging effects™ . . . . — — — — (17,883) (25.920) —  (43,813) (103,292) (83,150 —  (186,442)
Totals . ... ... ... ... $625,922 351,910 105,249 1,083,081 407,565 337,709 69,195 814469 647,936 343458 71,123 1,062,517
Average sales price:
United States . . ... .... § 595 6791 39.32 " T.18 621 6218 3202 7.56 753 5278 2961 7.72
Canada............. 529 5805 4354 6.05 507 5089 4140 5.69 670 4192  36.15 6.69
Combined . . ......... 579 6644 3975 6.96 583 6079 3385 7.08 7.38 5167 30.76 7.56
Less hedging effects® . . .. — — - - (25) (434 - (36) (102} (10.07) - (1.13)
Totals . . ..o ov i h e $ 579 6644 3975 6.96 558 5645 3385 6.72 636 4160 30.76 6.43

M Commeodity swaps and collars accounted for as cash flow hedges. See Part [1, ltem 7A—"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about
Market Risk” below concerning our hedging activities.

Production Volumes and Oil and Gas Revenues

Net oil and gas production in 2007 was 155.7 Befe or an average of 426.6 MMcfe per day, a 28%
increase from 121.2 Befe or an average of 332.0 MMcfe per day in 2006. The net increase in oil and
gas production was primarily attributable to the additional production associated with the Houston
Exploration acquisition in June 2007, which was partially offset by the Spin-off in early March 2006 and
the sale of the Alaska Assets in August 2007. Oil and natural gas revenues before hedging effects in
2007 were $1.1 billion, a 26% increase as compared to $858.3 million in 2006. The increase in oil and
natura} gas revenues before hedging effects of $224.8 million was due to the 28% increase in
production, offset by a 2% decrease in the average realized sales price (before the effects of hedging),
to $6.96 per Mcfe in 2007 from $7.08 per Mcfe in 2006.

Net oil and gas production in 2006 was 121.2 Befe or an average of 332.0 MMcfe per day, a 27%
decrease from 165.2 Befe or an average of 452.7 MMcfe per day in 2005. The net decrease in oil and
gas production was primarily attributable to the spin-off of our offshore Gulf of Mexico properties on
March 2, 2006, partially offset by production increases in the Buffalo Watlow area and the Canadian
Deep Basin as well as the East Texas property acquisition in March 2006. Oil and natural gas revenues
before hedging effects were $858.3 million in 2006, a 31% decrease as compared to $1.2 billion in 2005.
The decrease in oil and natural gas revenues before hedging effects was due to the 27% decrease in
production as well as a 6% decrease in the average realized sales price (before the effects of hedging)
to $7.08 per Mcfe in 2006 from $7.56 in 2005.
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Hedge Effects

The table above also presents the effects of the derivative instruments (e.g., commodity swaps and
collars) we designated as cash flow hedges. Beginning in March 2006, we elected to discontinue the use
of cash flow hedge accounting for all of our commodity derivatives. Accordingly, all gains or losses
recognized (i.e., cash settlements) in connection with hedging activities for the majority of 2006 and all
of 2007 are reflected in “Realized gains and losses on derivative instruments” in other income and
expense in our Consolidated Statements of Operations rather than being included as part of
“Revenues”. See Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments below for
information on gains and losses recognized on derivative instruments not designated as cash flow
hedges during the last three years.

Oil and Gas Production Expense

The table below sets forth the detail of oil and gas production expense for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands, Except per Mcfe Data)

Lease operating expenses (“LOE”):

Direct operating expense and overhead . .................. $146,868 132,568 166,119
Workover eXpense . o ... o et et e e 20,605 22,130 30,011
Hurricane repairs . ...... ... . ... i i i —_ 176 3,631
Total LOE . .. ... . e e $167,473 154,874 199,761
LOEperMcfe . ... .o e $ 1.08 1.28 1.21
Production and property taxes . .. ... .. ... e $ 55,264 39,041 42,615
Production and property taxes per Mefe . . ................... $ 35 32 26
Transportation and processing costs . . ................ouv.nn $ 20,200 21,876 19,499
Transportation and processing costs per Mcfe . . ............... $ a3 18 A2
Total oil and gas production expense . ... ................... $242,937 215791 261,875
Total oil and gas production expense per Mcfe . ... ............ $ 156 1.78 1.58

Lease Operating Expenses

Lease operating expenses were $167.5 million in 2007, an increase of 8% compared to
$154.9 million in 2006. On a per-Mcfe basis, LOE decreased 16% to $1.08 per Mcfe in 2007 from $1.28
per Mcfe in 2006. The decrease in LOE on a per-Mcfe basis is primarily due to lower average per-unit
lease operating expenses from the assets acquired from Houston Exploration in June 2007, the
divestiture of the Alaska Assets in Avgust 2007, and continued cost reduction initiatives. Lease
operating expenses decreased 22%, or $44.9 million, to $154.9 million in 2006 from $199.8 million in
2005. The decrease in lease operating expenses is primarily due to the spin-off of our Gulf of Mexico
operations on March 2, 2006, partially offset by increases in operating expenses associated with our
acquisition of East Texas properties in March 2006. On a per-Mcfe basis, LOE increased to $1.28 per
Mcfe in 2006 from $1.21 per Mcfe in 2005.

Production and Property Taxes

Production and property taxes, which are primarily made up of severance taxes paid on the value
of the oil and gas produced, generally fluctuate proportionately to our oil and gas revenues. As a
percentage of oil and natural gas revenue, excluding hedging losses recognized in 2006 and 2005,
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production and property taxes were 5.1%, 4.5%, and 3.4% for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006, and 2005, respectively. The increase in each period is primarily the result of a change in our
production mix to a higher percentage of onshore production, which is generally subject to production
taxes, versus offshore Gulf of Mexico production, which is generally not subject to production taxes. In
addition, normal fluctuations will occur between periods based on the approval of incentive tax credits,
changes in tax rates, and changes in the assessed values of property and equipment for purposes of ad
valorem taxes.

Transportation and Processing Costs

Transportation and processing costs were $20.2 million, or $.13 per Mcfe, in 2007 compared to
$21.9 million, or $.18 per Mcfe, in 2006. The decrease of $.05 on a per-Mcfe basis in 2007 was due
primarily to lower per-unit transportation costs incurred in Alaska in 2007 compared to the prior year
and due to the sale of the Alaska Assets in August 2007. Transportation and processing costs were
$21.9 million, or $.18 per Mcfe, in 2006 compared to $19.5 million, or $.12 per Mcfe, in 2005. The $.06
per Mcfe increase was primarily due to higher transportation and processing costs in Canada and due
to lower average per-unit transportation and processing costs associated with our offshore Gulf of
Mexico operations, which were included in the Spin-off in March 2006.

General and Administrative Expense

The following table summarizes the components of general and administrative expense incurred
during the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands, Except Per Mcfe Data)
Stock-based compensation COSts . ... ... L i e $ 17,681 22,048 1,275
Other general and administrative costs .. ................ ... 89.697 58,108 68,934
General and administrative costs capitalized ................. (43,627) (31,848)  (26,506)
General and administrative expense . ........... ..., $ 63,751 48,308 43,703
General and administrative expense per Mcfe . ............... $ 4 40 .26

General and administrative expense increased $15.5 million to $63.8 million in 2007 from
$48.3 million in 2006. The increase in net general and administrative expense was primarily related to
increased employee salary and benefit costs resulting from the acquisition of Houston Exploration,
offset by a reduction to stock-based compensation costs in 2007. The increase in general and
administrative expense of $4.6 million to $48.3 million in 2006 from $43.7 million in 2005 was primarily
related to higher stock-based compensation costs (discussed below), offset by salary and benefit savings
related to a reduction in the number of employees subsequent to the Spin-off. The increase of $.14 on
a per-unit basis from 2005 to 2006 was also primarily due to stock-based compensation costs. The
percentage of general and administrative costs capitalized remained relatively constant between the
three years, ranging between 38% and 41%.

The increase in stock-based compensation costs beginning in 2006 was due to the implementation
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123 (Revised), “Share-Based Payment”
(“SFAS 123(R)”). Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R), stock-based
compensation is measured at the grant date based on the value of the awards and is recognized over
the requisite service period (usually the vesting period). Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for
stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations.
Under APB Opinion No. 25, no compensation expense was recognized for stock options issued to
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employees, because the grant price equaled or was above the market price on the date of the option
grant.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R), we recorded stock-based compensation cost in
the amount of $17.7 million in 2007 and $22.0 million in 2006, of which approximately $9.7 million was
attributed to a partial settlement of Forest’s restricted stock awards and phantom stock unit awards in
connection with the Spin-off. The decrease in stock-based compensation of $4.3 million in 2007 from
2006 was due to the $9.7 million partial settlement in 2006, partially offset by the recognition of stock-
based compensation associated with restricted stock and stock options granted in 2007.

Depreciation and Depletion; Undeveloped Properties

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
{In Thousands, Except Per Mcfe Amounts)
Depreciation and depletion expense . ... ............... $390,338 266,881 368,679
Depreciation and depletion expense per Mefe . ........... $§ 251 2.20 223

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization expense (“DD&A”) in 2007 was $390.3 million
compared to $266.9 million in 2006. On an equivalent Mcf basis, DD&A expense increased to $2.51
per Mcfe in 2007 compared to $2.20 per Mcfe in 2006. The increase of $.31 per Mcfe in 2007 was
primarily due to the acquisition of the Houston Exploration properties, which had higher-than-historical
per-unit depletion rates. DD&A in 2006 was $266.9 million compared to $368.7 million in 2005.

The following costs of undeveloped properties were not subject to depletion at the periods
indicated:

United
December 31, States Canada  International Total
- {In Thousands)
2007 . . e e $445949 63,951 58,610 568,510
2006, . . e e e 149,687 53,034 58,538 261,259
2005 . . e e e 174,249 44,798 56,637 275,684

The increase in the total undeveloped properties of $307.3 million in 2007 from $261.3 million in
2006 is primarily attributable to the Houston Exploration acquisition completed in 2007. The decrease
in the total undeveloped properties of $14.4 million in 2006 from $275.7 million in 2005 was due
primarily to the Spin-off transaction noted above, offset by property acquisitions completed during
2006, including the Cotton Valley assets in East Texas. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information on acquisitions and divestitures.

Acceretion of Asset Retirement Obligations

Accretion expense of $6.1 million in 2007, $7.1 million in 2006, and $17.3 million in 2005 was
related to the accretion of Forest’s asset retirement obligations pursuant to SFAS No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations”. SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record the fair value of a liability
for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred and a corresponding increase in
the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Subsequent to initial measurement, the asset
retirement obligation is required to be accreted each period to its present value. The significant
decrease from 2005 to 2006 is attributable to the large reduction in future abandonment liabilities
associated with the Spin-off in March 2006, discussed above. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information on our asset retirement obligations.
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International Impairments

Forest recorded impairments related to its international properties of $3.7 million in 2006, with
$2.1 million recorded during the second quarter of 2006 related to a dry hole drilled in Gabon and
$1.6 million recorded during the fourth quarter of 2006 related to expired concessions in Ttaly. In 2005,
Forest recorded an impairment of $2.9 million related to certain international properties, principally
related to its leaseholds in Romania. The Romania impairment was recorded in the first quarter of
2005 in connection with our decision to exit the country as we rationalized our international assets to
concentrate on fewer areas.

Gain on Sale of Assets

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Forest sold overriding royalty interests in Australia for
net proceeds of $7.2 million that resulted in a gain on the sale of $7.2 million.

Interest Expense

Interest expense of $113.2 million in 2007 increased by $41.4 million, or 58%, from $71.8 million in
2006. The increase in interest expense in 2007 from 2006 is primarily due to the 7%% senior notes due
2019 that we issued in June 2007 and the Alaska term loan credit facilities, which were entered into in
December 2006 and were paid off in August 2007. Interest expense of $71.8 million in 2006 was 17%
greater than in 2005, primarily due to higher average interest rates and higher average debt balances.
Interest costs related to significant unproved properties that are under development are capitalized to
oil and gas properties under the full cost method of accounting. Forest capitalized interest of
$13.9 million, $3.7 million, and $.9 million during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. The increase in interest capitalized in 2007 from 2006 is due to the acquisition of Houston
Exploration, which included a large investment in unproved properties.

Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments

The table below sets forth realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivatives recognized under
“Other income and expense” in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the periods indicated.
Since March 2006, when Forest elected to discontinue cash flow hedge accounting for all of its
derivative instruments, Forest has recognized all mark-to-market gains and losses as “Unrealized gains
and losses on derivative instruments” in other income and expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations rather than deferring any such amounts in “Accumulated other comprehensive income” in
shareholders’ equity. In addition, cash settlements on derivative instruments are recorded as “Realized
gains and losses on derivative instruments” in other income and expense in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations rather than as an adjustment to “Revenues” or “Interest expense.” The
amounts shown in the table below for 2006 and 2005, prior to our discontinuance of cash flow hedge
accounting, represent amounts related to ineffective hedges or derivatives that did not meet the criteria
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to qualify for cash flow hedge accounting. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
more information on our derivative instruments.

Year Ended December, 31
2007 2006 2005
{In Thousands)

Realized (gains) and losses on derivatives, net:

OIl e $ (2,587y 129,743 (527)
L (72,904) (5,879) 35917
Interest. . oo e e e e e e {474) — —
Total .. e $(75,965) 23,864 35,390
Unrealized losses {gains) on derivatives, net:
Ol e $123,099 (36,953) 3,475
GBS L (10,321) (46,676) 17,898
0413 = 4,721 — —
Total L e e $117,499 (83,629) 21,373

1 Includes total proceeds of $6.9 million for two oil swap agreements that we unwound in 2007, which covered 1,000 Bb! per
day in 2009 and 500 Bbl per day in 2010.

Other Income and Expense

The components of other income and expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)

Realized foreign currency exchange gains . . .............. ... . ...... $(7,721) (315) —
Unrealized foreign currency exchange (gain) loss. . ................... (7,694) 3,931 —
Franchise taxes .. . ... ... .. i i i e e 2,322 1410 1,963
Share of (income) loss of equity method investee .. .................. (275) (2,334) 562
Unrealized loss on other investments . ...... ... ... .. ..., 4,948 — —
Debt extinguishment costs . ........ ... ... .. i i, 12,215 —_ —_
Other, et . . ... e e (2,214) 1,135 3,722
Total other expense, net . . . ... .. ... ittt i $ 1,581 3,827 6,247

The realized foreign currency exchange gains relate to the repayments of intercompany debt owed
to Forest Oil Corporation by our Canadian subsidiary. The unrealized foreign currency exchange gains
and losses relate to the outstanding intercompany indebtedness between Forest Qil Corporation and
our Canadian subsidiary. Franchise taxes are paid to the states of Texas and Louisiana based on capital
investment deployed in these states, determined by apportioning total capital as defined by statute.
Forest’s share of income or loss of equity method investee related to our 40% ownership of a pipeline
company that transports crude oil in Alaska, which was included in the sale of the Alaska Assets in
August 2007. The unrealized loss on other investments relates to the mark-to-market adjustment of the
PERL common stock we received as a portion of the consideration in the sale of the Alaska Assets in
August 2007, Debt extinguishment costs related to the complete repayment of the Alaska credit
agreements and include $5.0 million in prepayment premiums and $7.2 million of unamortized debt
issue costs.
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Income Tax Expense

The table below sets forth Forest’s total income tax expense from continuing operations and
effective tax rates for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
{In Thousands, Except Percentages)
Current iNCOME taX EXPENSE . ..o v v v ve vt en o ramannannas $ 5,999 2,126 3,498
Deferred income tax eXpense . .. ... ... .vuerr oo e 56,396 88,777 89,860
Total income tax XPEnSE - . .o vvvv v vnmeoce oo s oo $62,395 90,903 93,358
FEfeCtive TAX TALE & o v v oot it e e ettt e iae e m s ana s 27% 35% I8%

The increase in our current income tax expense in 2007 is primarily due to the sale of our Alaska
Assets, which increased our income subject to federal alternative minimum tax and the implementation
of a margin tax by the state of Texas effective January 1, 2007. The decrease in our effective tax rate in
2007 to 27%, from 35% in 2006, was primarily due to a reduction in income taxes of approximately
$21.0 million related to statutory rate reductions enacted in Canada, release of valuation allowances,
and a lower apportioned effective state income tax rate. The decrease in our effective tax rate in 2006
to 35%, from 38% in 2005, was due to a reduction in income taxes of approximately $18.0 million also
related to statutory rate reductions enacted in Canada as well as changes in the Texas income tax law,
both offset in part by an increase of $7.2 million related to the effects of the Spin-off of our offshore
Gulf of Mexico operations (which includes the tax effects of non-deductible Spin-off costs and an
increase in Forest's combined state income tax rates). See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a reconciliation of our income taxes at the statutory rate to income taxes at our
effective rate for each period presented.

Results of Discontinued Operations

On March 1, 2004, the assets and business operations of our Canadian marketing subsidiary were
sold to Cinergy Canada, Inc. (“Cinergy”) for $11.2 million CDN. The subsidiary’s results of operations
have been reported as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for all
years presented. Under the terms of the purchase and sale agreement, Cinergy will market natural gas
on behalf of Canadian Forest for five years through February 2009 (unless subject to prior contractual
commitment), and will also administer the netback pool that we formerly administered. We could
receive additional contingent payments related to this sale over the next two years if Cinergy meets
certain earnings goals with respect to the acquired business. During the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2005, Forest did not receive any additional contingent payments. During 2006, Forest received an
additional $3.6 million contingent payment ($2.4 million net of tax) under the agreement, which has
been reflected as income from discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In 2008, as in 2007, we expect our cash flow from operations to be our primary source of liquidity
to meet operating expenses and fund capital expenditures other than large acquisitions. Any remaining
cash flow from operations will be available for acquisitions, in whole or in part, or other corporate
purposes, including the repayment of senior notes that will come due in June 2008.

The prices we receive for our oil and natural gas production have a significant impact on operating
cash flows. While significant price declines in 2008 would adversely affect the amount of cash flow
generated from operations, we utilize a hedging program to partially mitigate that risk. As of
February 27, 2008, Forest has hedged approximately 75 Befe of its 2008 production. This level of
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hedging provides some certainty of the cash flow we will receive for a portion of our expected 2008
production. Depending on changes in oil and gas futures markets and management’s view of underlying
oil and natural gas supply and demand trends, we may increase or decrease our current hedging
positions. For further information concerning our 2008 hedging contracts, see Item 7A—“Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk—Hedging Program,” below.

Our revolving U.S. and Canadian bank credit facilities, which were amended and restated in June
2007, provide another source of liquidity. These credit facilities, which mature in June 2012, are used to
fund daily operating activities and acquisitions in the United States and Canada as needed, See “Bank
Credit Facilities” below for details.

The public capital markets have been our principal source of funds to finance targe acquisitions.
We have sold debt and equity securities in both public and private offerings in the past, and we expect
that these sources of capital will continue to be available to us in the future for acquisitions.
Nevertheless, ready access to capital on reasonable terms can be impacted by our debt ratings assigned
by independent rating agencies and are subject to many uncertainties, including restrictions contained
in our bank credit facilities and indentures for our senior notes, macroeconomic factors outside of our
control, and other risks as explained in Part 1, liem 1A—“Risk Factors.”

We believe that our available cash, cash provided by operating activities, and funds available under
our bank credit facilities will be sufficient to fund our operating, interest, and general and
administrative expenses, our capital expenditure budget, and our short-term contractual obligations at
current levels for the foreseeable future.

Bank Credit Facilities

On June 6, 2007, Forest entered into amended and restated credit facilities totaling $1.0 billion.
The amended and restated facilities consist of an $850 million U.S. credit facility (the “U.S. Facility”)
through a syndicate of banks led by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and a $150 million Canadian credit
facility (the “Canadian Facility”, and together with the U.S. Facility, the “Credit Facilities”) through a
syndicate of banks led by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Toronto Branch. The Credit Facilities mature in
June 2012. Subject to the agreement of Forest and the applicable lenders, the size of the Credit
Facilities may be increased by $800 million in the aggregate.

Forest’s availability under the Credit Facilities will be governed by a borrowing base (“Global
Borrowing Base”) which currently is set at $1.4 billion, with $1.25 billion allocated to the U.S. credit
facility and $150 million allocated to the Canadian credit facility. The determination of the Global
Borrowing Base is made by the lenders in their sole discretion taking into consideration the estimated
value of Forest’s oil and gas properties in accordance with the lenders’ customary practices for oil and
gas loans. The Global Borrowing Base is redetermined semi-annually and the available borrowing
amount could be increased or decreased as a result of such redeterminations. In addition, Forest and
the lenders each have discretion at any time, but not more often than once during any calendar year, to
have the Global Borrowing Base redetermined.

The Credit Facilities include terms and covenants that place limitations on certain types of
activities, including restrictions or requirements with respect to additional debt, liens, asset sales,
hedging activities, investments, dividends, mergers and acquisitions, and include financial covenants.
Interest rates and collateral requirements under the Credit Facilities will vary based on Forest’s credit
ratings and financial condition, as governed by certain financial tests.

Under certain conditions, amounts outstanding under the Credit Facilities may be accelerated.
Bankruptcy and insolvency events with respect to Forest or certain of its subsidiaries will result in an
automatic acceleration of the indebtedness under the Credit Facilities. Subject to notice and cure
periods in certain cases, other events of default under either of the Credit Facilities will result in
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acceleration of the indebtedness under the facilities at the option of the lenders. Such other events of
default include non-payment, breach of warranty, non-performance of obligations under the Credit
Facilities (including financial covenants), default on other indebtedness, certain pension plan events,
certain adverse judgments, change of control, a failure of the liens securing the Credit Facilities, and an
event of default under the Canadian Facility.

The Credit Facilities include provisions and' conditions linked to Forest’s credit ratings. Forest’s
ability to raise funds and the cost of any financing activities may be affected by our credit ratings at the
time any such activities are conducted. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more
information on the Credit Facilities.

The Credit Facilities are collateralized by a portion of Forest’s assets. We are required to
mortgage, and grant a security interest in, 75% of the present value of our consolidated proved oil and
gas properties. We also pledged the stock of several subsidiaries to the lenders to secure the Credit
Facilities. Under certain circumstances, we could be obligated to pledge additional assets as collateral.
If Forest’s corporate credit ratings by Moody’s and S&P improve and meet pre-established levels, the
collateral requirements would not apply and, at our request, the banks would release their liens and
security interests on our properties.

From time to time, Forest and the syndication agents, documentation agents, global administrative
agent, and the other lenders party to the Credit Facilities engage in other transactions, including
securities offerings where such parties or their affiliates may serve as an underwriter or initial purchaser
of Forest’s securities and, or serve as counterparties to Forest’s derivative agreements.

At December 31, 2007, there were outstanding borrowings of $165.0 million under the U.S. Facility
at a weighted average interest rate of 6.2%, and there were outstanding borrowings of $129.1 million
under the Canadian Facility at a weighted average interest rate of 5.9%. We also had used the Credit
Facilities for approximately $2.6 million in letters of credit, leaving an unused borrowing amount under
the Credit Facilities of approximately $703.3 million at December 31, 2007. At January 31, 2008, there
were outstanding borrowings of $192.0 million under the U.S. Facility at a weighted average interest
rate of 5.6%, and there were outstanding borrowings of $116.6 million under the Canadian Facility at a
weighted average interest rate of 5.6%. We also had used the Credit Facilities for approximately
$2.6 million in letters of credit, leaving an unused borrowing amount under the Credit Facilities of
approximately $688.8 million at January 31, 2008.

Alaska Credit Agreements

On December &, 2006, Forest, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Forest Alaska Operating LLC
and Forest Alaska Holding LLC (together “Forest Alaska™), issued, on a non-recourse basis to Forest,
term loan financing facilities in the aggregate principal amount of $375 million. The issuance was
comprised of two term loan facilities, including a $250 million first lien credit agreement and a
$125 million second lien credit agreement (together the “Alaska Credit Agreements”). The loan
proceeds were used to fund a $350 million distribution to Forest, which Forest used to pay down its
U.S. credit facility, and to provide Forest Alaska working capital for its operations and pay transaction
fees and expenses.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Forest Alaska made scheduled repayments of
$1.3 million and a voluntary prepayment of $110.0 million on the first lien credit agreement. In
conjunction with the sale of the Alaska Assets on August 27, 2007, Forest used a portion of the
$400 million cash consideration to repay the remaining $263.7 million principal balance outstanding
under the Alaska Credit Agreements. During the year ended December 31, 2007, Forest recognized
debt extinguishment costs of $12.2 million associated with payments on the Alaska Credit Agreements.
The debt extinguishment costs included $5.0 million in prepayment premiums on the Alaska Credit
Agreements and $7.2 million of unamortized debt issuance costs.
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Credit Ratings

QOur senior notes are separately rated by two ratings agencies: Moody’s and S&P. In addition,
Moody’s and S&P have assigned Forest a general corporate credit rating. From time to time, our
assigned credit ratings may change. In assigning ratings, the ratings agencies evaluate a number of
factors, such as our industry segment, volatility of our industry segment, the geographical mix and
diversity of our asset portfolio, the allocation of properties and exploration and drilling activities among
short-lived and longer-lived properties, the need and ability to replace reserves, our cost structure, our
debt and capital structure, and our general financial condition and prospects.

QOur bank credit facilities include conditions that are linked to our credit ratings. The fees and
interest rates on our commitments and loans, as well as our collateral obligations, are affected by our
credit ratings. The indentures governing our senior notes do not include adverse triggers that are tied
to our credit ratings. The indentures include terms that will allow us greater flexibility if our credit
ratings improve to investment grade and other tests have been satisfied. In this event, we would have
no further obligation to comply with certain restrictive covenants conained in the indentures. Qur
ability to raise funds and the costs of any financing activities may be affected by our credit rating at the
time any such activities are conducted.

Historical Cash Flow

Net cash provided by operating activities, net cash used by investing activities, and net cash
provided (used) by financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .. ................ § 708,245 422,478 628,565
Net cash used by investing activities . ...................... (1,093,221) (909,891) (671,230)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities . .............. 359,552 513,832 (4,596)

The increase in net cash provided by operating activities of $285.8 million in 2007 as compared to
2006 was primarily due to higher net income before non-cash charges and a decreased investment in
net operating assets in 2007 as compared to 2006. The decrease in net cash provided by operating
activities in 2006 compared to 2005 of approximately $206.1 million was due primarily to the Spin-off in
March 2006.

Cash used by investing activities increased in 2007 by $183.3 million as compared to 2006 primarily
due to an increase in cash used for acquisitions, exploration, and development of oil and gas properties,
offset by an increase in proceeds from the sale of oil and gas properties. The increase in cash used by
investing activities in 2006 of $238.7 million compared to 2005 was also primarily due to an increase in
cash used for the acquisition, exploration, and development of oil and gas properties. The major
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components of cash used by investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)
ACQUISILIONS . . . . oo $ (778,880) (292,807) (204,450)
Exploration and development €osts . . ... ... vt (784,220) (601,641) (475,524)
OLher fIXed ASSELS. & o v v o v vt e ettt e s (32,169) (21,950) (10,743)
Proceeds from sale of Alaska Assets ............ ... .. ... 400,000 — —
Proceeds from sale of otherassets. . ... ... .. i 102,048 6,507 24,046
(61117 ST R — — (4,559)
Net cash used by investing activities . ...................... $(1,093,221) (909,891) (671,230)

Net cash provided by financing activities of $359.6 million in 2007 included the issuance of the
7Y% Notes for net proceeds of $739.2 million, net bank proceeds of $171.3 million, and proceeds from
the exercise of stock options and from the employee stock purchase plan of $12.8 million, offset by the
repayment of the Alaska Credit Agreements of $375.0 million and repayment of Houston Exploration’s
bank debt of $176.9 million. Net cash provided by financing activities in 2006 of $513.8 million included
net bank proceeds of $130.2 million, proceeds from the Alaska Credit Agreements (net of issuance
costs) of $367.7 million, $21.7 million of proceeds from the Spin-off, and proceeds from the exercise of
stock options and from the employee stock purchase plan of approximately $6.8 million. Net cash used
by financing activities in 2005 of $4.6 million primarily included the net repayment of bank borrowings
of $33.3 million, more than offset by net proceeds from the exercise of options and warrants of
approximately $43.4 million. ‘

Capital Expenditures

Expenditures for property acquisitions, exploration, and development were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)

Property acquisitions:(")

Proved Properties . . .. ..o vvur e n i $1,744,093 262,534 239,647
Undeveloped properties . ... ....covovviie e e s 449,346 53,788 73,868
2,193,439 316,322 313,515
Exploration:

DIFECt COSES v v v oot ettt e e e e e 137,475 250,344 247,331
Overhead capitalized. . . ... ... .- 10,722 12,121 12,811
148,197 262,465 260,142

Development:
DITECE COBIS + v v vttt e e e i it e e 622,466 344,725 266,330
Overhead capitalized. . ... ....... .. oo 32,905 19,727 13,695
655,371 364,452 280,025
Total capital expenditures™® ... Lo $2,997,007 943,239 853,682

) “Iotal capital expenditures include both cash expenditures and accrued expenditures. In addition, property acquisitions
include a gross up for deferred income taxes of approximately $559.1 million in 2007 and $71.5 million in 2005 and exclude
goodwill recorded in connection with business combinations of approximately $176.8 million in 2007 and $23.0 miflion in
2005. See Note 2 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements for the allocation of purchase consideration for the larger
acquisitions completed in 2007, 2006, and 2008.

@  Includes estimated discounted asset retirement obligations of $37.8 million, $2.4 million, and $16.3 million related 1o assets
placed in service during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively.

45




Forest’s anticipated expenditures for exploration and development in 2008 are estimated to range
from $900 million to $1 billion. Some of the factors impacting the level of capital expenditures in 2008
include crude oil and natural gas prices, the volatility in these prices, the cost and availability of oil
field services, general economic and market conditions, and weather disruptions.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007:

2008 2009 2014 mn 2012 After 2012 Total
(In Thousands)

Bankdebt") . .., ... $ 17892 17,892 17892 17,892 303,073 — 374,641
Semior nOtes® . . . 364,808 89,208 89208 374,208 66204 1275167 2,258,803
Operating leases™ . . ... .. ... ... ............ 18,113 16,643 14,499 14,364 13,496 27,449 104,564
Unconditional purchase obligations™ . . .., .. ... . ... 42,881 27,099 1,607 513 123 — 72,223
Other liabilities® . .. .., ... .. . ... .. . ., 6,580 8950 8970 11,439 10,500 82,454 128,893
Derivative liabilities'®™ . . . . .. ...... .. ... ... ...... 72,675 30,545 7,626 — — — 110,846
Approved capital projects™ . . . ... L. L L., 52,903 — — — — — 52,903
Total contractual obligations .. ... ......,........ $575,852 190,337 139,802 418416 393,396 1,385,070 3,102,873

M Bank debt consists of commitments related to our United States and Canadian credit facilities and anticipated interest
payments due under the terms of the credit facilities using the interest rates in effect ap December 31, 2007,

@ Senior notes consist of the principal obligations on our senior notes and senior subordinated notes and anticipated interest
payments due on each.

@ Consists primarily of leases for office space, drilling rigs, and well equipment rentals.

¥ Consists primarily of firm commitments for drilling, gathering, processing, and pipeline capacity,

) Qther liabilities represent current and noncurrent liabilities that are comprised of benefit obligations and asset retirement
obligations, for which neither the ultimate settlement amounts nor their timings can be precisely determined in advance.
See “Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates, Judgments, and Assumptions” below for a more detailed discussion of the
nature of the accounting estimates involved in estimating asset retirement obligations.

©  Derivative liabilities represent the fair value of liabilities for oil and gas commodity and interest rate derivatives as of
December 31, 2007. The ultimate settiement amounts of our derivative liabilities are unknown, because they are subject to
continuing market risk. See “Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates, Judgments, and Assumptions,” below for a more
detailed discussion of the nature of the accounting estimates involved in valuing derivative instruments.

(M Consists of our net share of budgeted expenditures under Authorizations for Expenditure (“AFE”) that were approved by
us and our joint venture partners as of December 31, 2007. Includes AFEs for which Forest is the operator as well as those
operated by others.

Forest also makes delay rental payments to lessors during the primary terms of oil and gas leases
to delay driiling or production of wells, usually for one yecar. Although we are not obligated to make
such payments, discontinuing them would result in the loss of the oil and gas lease. Our total maximum
commitment under these leases, through 2015 totaled approximately $1.2 million as of December 31,
2007.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

From time-to-time, we enter into off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions that can give
rise to off-balance sheet obligations. As of December 31, 2007, the off-balance sheet arrangements and
transactions that we have entered into include (i) undrawn letters of credit, (ii) operating lease
agreements, (iii) drilling commitments, and (iv) contractual obligations for which the ultimate
settlement amounts are not fixed and determinable, such as gas transportation commitments and
derivative contracts that are sensitive to future changes in commodity prices and interest rates. Forest
does not believe that any of these arrangements are reasonably likely to materially affect its liquidity or
availability of, or requirements for, capital resources.
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Surety Bonds

In the ordinary course of our business and operations, we are required to post surety bonds from
time to time with third parties, including governmental agencies. As of February 27, 2008, we had
obtained surety bonds from a number of insurance and bonding institutions covering certain of our
operations in the United States and Canada in the aggregate amount of approximately $19.6 million.
See Part I, Item 1—“Business—Regulation” for further information.

Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates, Judgments, and Assumptions
Full Cost Method of Accounting

The accounting for our business is subject to special accounting rules that are unique to the oil
and gas industry. There are two allowable methods of accounting for oil and gas business activities: the
full cost method and the successful efforts method. The differences between the two methods can lead
to significant variances in the amounts reported in our financial statements. We have elected to follow
the full cost method, which is described below.

Under the full cost method, separate cost centers are maintained for each country in which we
incur costs. All costs incurred in the acquisition, exploration, and development of properties (including
costs of surrendered and abandoned leaseholds, delay lease rentals, dry holes, and overhead related to
exploration and development activities) are capitalized. The fair value of estimated future costs of site
restoration, dismantlement, and abandonment activities is capitalized, and a corresponding asset
retirement obligation liability is recorded. Capitalized costs applicable to each full cost center are
depleted using the units of production method based on conversion to common units of measure using
one barrel of oil as an equivalent to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas. Changes in estimatcs of
reserves or future development costs are accounted for prospectively in the depletion calculations.
Assuming consistent production year over year, our depletion expense will be significantly higher or
lower if we significantly decrease or increase our estimates of remaining proved reserves.

Investments in unproved properties are not depleted pending the determination of the existence of
proved reserves. Unproved properties are assessed periodically to ascertain whether impairment has
occurred. Unproved properties whose costs are individually significant are assessed individually by
considering the primary lease terms of the properties, the holding period of the propertics, and
geographic and geologic data obtained relating to the properties. Where it is not practicable to assess
individually the amount of impairment of properties for which costs are not individually significant,
such properties are grouped for purposes of assessing impairment. The amount of impairment assessed
is added to the costs to be amortized in the appropriate full cost pool, or reported as impairment
expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, as applicable.

Companies that use the full cost method of accounting for oil and gas exploration and
development activities are required to perform a ceiling test each quarter. The full cost ceiling test is
an impairment test prescribed by SEC Regulation S-X Rule 4-10. The ceiling test is performed each
quarter on a country-by-country basis. The test determines a limit, or ceiling, on the book value of oil
and gas properties. That limit is basically the after tax present value of the future net cash flows from
proved crude oil and natural gas reserves, as adjusted for asset retirement obligations and the effect of
cash flow hedges. This ceiling is compared to the net book value of the oil and gas properties reduced
by any related net deferred income tax liability. If the net book value reduced by the related deferred
income taxes exceeds the ceiling, an impairment or non-cash writedown is required. A ceiling test
impairment could cause Forest to record a significant non-cash loss for a particular period; however,
future DD&A expense would be reduced thereafter.

In countries or areas where the existence of proved reserves has not yet been determined,
leasehold costs, seismic costs, and other costs incurred during the exploration phase remain capitalized
as unproved property costs until proved reserves have been established or until exploration activities
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cease. If exploration activities result in the establishment of proved reserves, amounts are reclassified as
proved properties and become subject to depreciation, depletion, and amortization, and the application
of the ceiling limitation. Unproved properties are assessed periodically to ascertain whether impairment
has occurred. An impairment of unproved property costs may be indicated through evaluation of
drilling results, relinquishment of drilling rights or other information.

Under the alternative successful efforts method of accounting, surrendered, abandoned, and
impaired leases, delay lease rentals, exploratory dry holes, and overhead costs are expensed as incurred.
Capitalized costs are depleted on a property-by-property basis. Impairments are also assessed on a
property-by-property basis and are charged to expense when assessed.

In general, the application of the full cost method of accounting results in higher capitalized costs
and higher depletion rates compared to the successful efforts method.

The full cost method is used to account for our oil and gas exploration and development activities
because we believe it appropriately reports the costs of our exploration programs as part of an overall
investment in discovering and developing proved reserves.

Oil and Gas Reserve Estimates

Our estimates of proved reserves are based on the quantities of oil and gas that geological and
engineering data demonstrate, with reasonable certainty, to be recoverable in future years from known
reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. The accuracy of any reserve estimate is a
function of the quality of available data, engineering and geological interpretation, and judgment. For
example, we must estimate the amount and timing of future operating costs, production and property
taxes, development costs, and workover costs, all of which may in fact vary considerably from actual
results. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate of proved reserves
also changes. Any significant variance in these assumptions could materially affect the estimated
quantity and value of our reserves. Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates, our
reserves are used throughout our financial statements. For example, since we use the
units-of-production method to amortize our oil and gas properties, the quantity of reserves could
significantly impact our DD&A expense. Our oil and gas properties are also subject to a “ceiling test”
limitation based in part on the quantity of our proved reserves. Finally, these reserves are the basis for
our supplemental oil and gas disclosures included in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reference should be made to “Independent Audit of Reserves” under Part 1, Item 1—*Business,”
and “Our proved reserves are estimates and depend on many assumptions. Any material inaccuracies in
these assumptions could cause the quantity and value of our oil and gas reserves, and our revenue,
profitability, and cash flow, to be materially different from our estimate”, under Part 1, Item 1A—"Risk
Factors,” in this Form 10-K.

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

We follow the provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (“SFAS 133”). SFAS 133 requires the accounting recognition of all derivative instruments as
either assets or liabilities at fair value. Under the provisions of SFAS 133, we may or may not elect to
designate a derivative instrument as a hedge against changes in the fair value of an asset or a liability
(a “fair value hedge”) or against exposure to variability in expected future cash flows (a “cash flow
hedge™). The accounting treatment for the changes in fair value of a derivative instrument is dependent
upon whether or not a derivative instrument is a cash flow hedge or a fair value hedge, and upon
whether or not the derivative is designated as a hedge. Changes in fair value of a derivative designated
as a cash flow hedge are recognized, to the extent the hedge is effective, in other comprehensive
income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. Changes in the fair value of a derivative
instrument designated as a fair value hedge, to the extent the hedge is effective, have no effect on the
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statement of operations due to the fact that changes in fair value of the derivative offsets changes in
the fair value of the hedged item. Where hedge accounting is not elected or if a derivative instrument
does not qualify as either a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge, changes in fair value are recognized
in earnings as other income or expense. Since March 2006, we have elected not to use hedge
accounting. Accordingly, after March 2006, all changes in the fair values of our derivative instruments
have been and will continue to be recognized in earnings as “Unrealized gains or losses on derivative
instruments” in our Consolidated Statements of (Operations.

The estimated fair values of our derivative instruments require substantial judgment. These values
are based upon, among other things, future prices, volatility, time to maturity, and credit risk. The
values we report in our financial statements change as these estimates are revised to reflect actual
results, changes in market conditions, or other factors, many of which are beyond our control.

Due to the volatility of oil and natural gas prices, the estimated fair values of our commodity
derivative instruments are subject to large fluctuations from period to period. For example, a
hypothetical 10% increase in the forward oil and natural gas prices used to calculate the fair values of
our commodity derivative instruments at December 31, 2007 would decrease the net fair value of our
commodity derivative instruments at December 31, 2007 by approximately $78 million. It has been our
experience that commodity prices are subject to large fluctuations, and we expect this volatility to
continue. Actual gains or losses recognized related to our commodity derivative instruments will likely
differ from those estimated at December 31, 2007 and wili depend exclusively on the price of the
commodities on the specified settlement dates provided by the derivative contracts.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets

We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, income
tax assets and liabilities are generally determined based on differences between the financial statement
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective income tax bases (temporary differences).
Income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to be in cffect when the
temporary differences are likely to reverse. The effect on income tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is included in operations in the period in which the change is enacted. The book value of
income tax assets is limited to the amount of the tax benefit that is more likely than not to be realized
in the future.

In assessing the value of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon future taxable income during the periods in which related
temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based
upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods
for which the deferred tax assets will reverse, management believes it is more likely than not that we
will realize the benefits of these deferred tax assets, net of the existing valuation allowances at
December 31, 2007. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be
reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during relevant periods are reduced.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Forest has obligations to remove tangible equipment and restore locations at the end of the oil
and gas production operations. Estimating the future restoration and removal costs, or asset retirement
obligations, is difficult and requires management to make estimates and judgments, because most of the
obligations are many years in the future, and contracts and regulations often have vague descriptions of
what constitutes removal. Asset removal technologies and costs are constantly changing, as are
regulatory, political, environmental, safety, and public relations considerations.
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Inherent in the calculation of the present value of our asset retirement obligations (“ARQO”) under
SFAS No. 143 are numerous assumptions and judgments, including the uliimate setilement amounts,
inflation factors, credit adjusted discount rates, timing of settlement, and changes in the legal,
regulatory, environmental, and political environments. To the extent future revisions to these
assumptions impact the present value of the existing ARQ liability, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the oil and gas property balance. Increases in the discounted ARQ liability resulting from the
passage of time are reflected as accretion expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 157,
“Fair Value Measurements” (*“SFAS 157”). This statement clarifies the definition of fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands the disclosures on fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February
2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 157-1 and FSP No. 157-2. FSP No. 157-1
amends SFAS 157 to exclude lease transactions accounted for under SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for
Leases” (“SFAS 13”) and other accounting pronouncements that address fair value measurements for
purposes of lease classification or measurement under SFAS 13. This scope exception does not apply to
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination that are required to be measured at
fair value under SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” or SFAS 141(R), regardless of whether those
assets and liabilities are related to leases. FSP No. 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 far one
year for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed
at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). We are currently
evaluating the impact the adoption of these pronouncements will have on our financial position and
results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) related to EITF Issue No. 06-4, “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement
Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” (“EITF 06-4"), which requires
the recognition of a liability for future benefits based on the substantive agreement with the employee.
The liability is required to be recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for
FPostretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions” (‘“SFAS 106™), or APB Opinion No. 12, “Omnibus
Opinion—1967", as appropriate. EITF 06-4 is effective for fiscal years beginning afier December 15,
2007 and requires transition through a cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings or a
retrospective application to all prior periods. We maintain a number of split-dollar life insurance
arrangements for certain former employees. We are currently evaluating the impact the adoption of this
pronouncement will have on our financial position and results of operations,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (‘“SFAS 159”). This statement permits entities to choose to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. This statement expands the use of fair value
measurement and applies to entities that elect the fair value option. The fair value option established
by this Statement permits all entities to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified
election dates. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not
expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations.

In March 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the EITF in Issue No. 06-10,
“Accounting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” (“EITF 06-10”). Under
this consensus, an employer should recognize a liability for any postretirement benefit related to a
collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangement in accordance with SFAS 106 or APB
Opinion No. 12, as appropriate, and should recognize and measure the underlying asset based on the
nature and substance of the collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangement. EITF 06-10 is
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effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007 and requires transition through a
cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings or a retrospective application to all prior periods. We
maintain a number of split-dollar life insurance arrangements for certain former employees. We are
currently evaluating the impact the adoption of this pronouncement will have on our financial position
and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS-No. 141 (Revised), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS 141(R)"), which significantly changes the financial accounting and reporting of business
combination transactions. SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in
a business combination: (i) recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets
acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree, (ii} recognizes and
measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase, and
(iii) determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141(R) applies prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The adoption of this pronouncement may have a
material impact on the accounting for any acquisitions we may make after January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51” (“SFAS 160”). This statement amends ARB
No. 51 to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary
and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary, which is sometimes referred to as minority interest, is an ownership interest in the
consolidated entity that should be reported as a component of equity in the consolidated financial
statements. Among other requirements, SFAS 160 requires consolidated net income to be reported at

- amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest. It
also requires disclosure, on the face of the consolidated income statement, of the amounts of
consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest. This statement is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after
December 15, 2008. We do not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have a material impact
on our financial position or results of operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risk, including the effects of adverse changes in commodity prices,
foreign currency exchange rates, and interest rates as discussed below.

Commodity Price Risk

We produce and sell natural gas, crude oil, and natural gas liquids for our own account in the
United States and Canada. As a result, our financial results are affected when prices for these
commodities fluctuate. Such effects can be significant.

Hedging Program

In order to reduce the impact of fluctuations in commodity prices, or to protect the economics of
property acquisitions, we make use of an oil and gas hedging strategy. Under our hedging strategy, we
enter into commodity swaps, collars, and other financial instruments with counterparties who, in
general, are participants in our credit facilities. These arrangements, which are based on prices
available in the financial markets at the time the contracts are entered into, are settled in cash and do
not require physical deliveries of hydrocarbons.
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Swaps

In a typical commodity swap agreement, we receive the difference between a fixed price per unit
of production and a price based on an agreed upon published, third-party index if the index price is
lower than the fixed price. If the index price is higher, we pay the difference. By entering into swap
agreements, we effectively fix the price that we will receive in the future for the hedged production.
Our current swaps are settled in cash on a monthly basis. As of December 31, 2007, we had entered
inta the following swaps:

Swaps
Natural Gas (NYMEX HH) Qil (NYMEX WTI)
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Bbtu Hedged Price Fair Value Barrels Hedged Price Fair Value
Per Day® per MMBtu {In Thousands) Per Day per Bbl (In Thousangds)
Calendar 2008 .. .. 50 $8.38 $9,930 6,500 $69.72 $(54,592)
Calendar 2009 . . .. — — — 4,500 69.01 (28,563)
Calendar 2010 ....  — — — 1,500 72.95 (6,951)

(1) 10 Bbtu per day is subject to a $6.00 written put.

Costless Collars

Forest also enters into collar agreements with third parties. A collar agreement is similar to a swap
agreement, except that we receive the difference between the floor price and the index price only if the
index price is below the floor price; and we pay the difference between the ceiling price and the index
price only if the index price is above the ceiling price. As of December 31, 2007, we had entered into
the following collars:

Costless Collars™
Natural Gas (NYMEX HH)

Weighted Average
Hedged Floor and

Bbtu Ceiling Price Fair Value

Per Day per MMBtu (In Thousands)
January — February 2008. .. . ... ... .. . o oL, 130 $7.39/8.89 $ 1,138
March — December 2008 . ............ ... ... .. ..., 80 7.33/8.87 (1,385)

M Included in Forest’s outstanding natural gas costless collars at December 31, 2007 are natural gas costless collars assumed
in the Houston Exploration acquisition with a fair value of $(12.8) million. At December 31, 2007, these costless collars had
weighted average hedged floor and ceiling prices per MMBtu of $7.20/8.51 for 100 Bbtu per day for January February
2008, and $5.00/5.72 for 20 Bbtu per day for March — December 2008,

Three-Way Costless Collars

Forest also enfers into three-way costless collars with third parties. These instruments establish two
floors and one ceiling. Upon settlement, if the index price is below the lowest floor, Forest receives the
difference between the two floors, If the index price is between the two floors, Forest receives the
difference between the higher of the two floors and the index price. If the index price is between the
higher floor and the ceiling, Forest does not receive or pay any amounts. If the index price is above the
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ceiling, Forest pays the excess over the ceiling price. As of December 31, 2007, we had entered into the
following three-way collars:

Three-Way Costless Collars
Natural Gas (NYMEX HH)

Weighted Average
Hedged Lower Floor,
Upper Floor, and
Ebtu Ceiling Price per Fair Value

Per Day MMBtu (In Thousands)
January — February 2008 . ..., ... ... .. .o 20 $6.00/8.00/10.00 $ 903
March — December 2008 . .. .. ... ... .. i, 30 6.00/8.00/10.00 3,861

Basis Swaps

Forest also uses basis swaps in connection with natural gas swaps in order to fix the price
differential between the NYMEX price and the index price at which the natural gas production is sold.
As of December 31, 2007, we had entered into the following basis swaps:

Basis Swaps'

Bbtu Fair Values
per Day  (In Thousands)
Calendar 2008 . . oottt 80 $(460)

M Included in Forest's outstanding basis swaps at December 31, 2007 are basis swaps assumed in the Houston Exploration
acquisition with a fair value of $.1 million, At December 31, 2007, these basis swaps are for 80 Bbw per day for January -
February 2008.

The fair value of all our commodity derivative instruments based on the futures prices quoted on
December 31, 2007 was a net liability of approximately $76.1 million.

In January and February 2008, we entered into six additional gas swap agreements for 60 Bbtu per
day at a weighted average hedged price per MMBtu of $8.99 for calendar 2009. In February 2008, we
entered into an additional gas costless collar agreement for 20 Bbtu per day with a hedged floor and
ceiling price per MMBtu of $8.00 and $10.56, respectively, for calendar 2009.

Fair Value Reconciliation

The following table reconciles the changes that occurred in the fair values of our open derivative
contracts during the year ended December 31, 2007 (see discussion of interest rate swaps under
“Interest Rate Risk” below): ‘

Fair Value of Derivative Contracts
Commodity Interest Rate Total
(In Thousands)

Asof December 31,2006 . . ... ... i, $ 66,119 — 66,119
Fair value of acquired derivatives .. ........ ... ... ... .00 (45,170) — {45,170)
Settlements of acquired derivatives . ... . ... ... o 15,710 — 15,710
Net decrease in fairvalue ........... .. .ot (37,287) (4,247)  (41,534)
Net contract gains recognized . . ... .....ooi i (75,491) 474y (75,965)
Asof December 31,2007 . . . . ... . e $(76,119)  (4,721)  (80,840)

53




Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We conduct business in several foreign currencies and thus are subject to foreign currency
exchange rate risk on cash flows related to sales, expenses, financing, and investing transactions. In the
past, we have not entered into any foreign currency forward contracts or other similar financial
instruments to manage this risk. Expenditures incurred relative to the foreign concessions held by
Forest outside of North America have been primarily United States dollar-denominated, as have cash
proceeds related to property sales and farmout arrangements. Substantially all of our Canadian
revenues and costs are denominated in Canadian dollars. While the value of the Canadian dollar does
fluctuate in relation to the .S, dollar, we believe that any currency risk associated with our Canadian
operations would not have a material impact on our results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

The following table presents principal amounts and related interest rates by year of maturity for
Forest’s debt obligations at December 31, 2007:

Fair
2008 2011 2012 2013 2014 2019 Total Value
{Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
Bank credit facilities:
Variable rate . ............... $ —_— — 294,126 — —_— —_ 294,126 294,126
Average interest ratet . ... ..., .. - — 6.08% — — — 6.08%
Shott-term debt:
Fiedrate . . ................ $265,000 — — — — —_ 265,000 267,650
Coupon interest rate . . .. ....... 8.00% — —_— — — — 8.00%
Effective interest rate® ., . . ... ..., 7.13% —_ - — — — 7.13%
Long-term debt:
Fixedrate .. ................ $ — 285,000 — 5822 150,000 750,000 1,190,822 1,208,018
Coupon interestrate ... ........ — 8.00% —  100%  1I5% 125% 7.49%
Effective interest rate’® . . . . ., ..., — 7.71% — 700% 6.56% 7.25% 7.27%

W As of December 31, 2007.

@ The effective interest rate on the 8% senior notes due 2008, the 8% senior notes due 2011, and the 7%% senior notes due
2014 is reduced from the coupon rate as a result of amortization of gains related to the termination of related interest rate
swaps.

Interest Rate Swaps

Farest may enter into interest rate swap agreements in an attempt to normalize the mix of fixed
and floating interest rates within its debt portfolio. Unrealized gains, losses, or any settlements are
recorded in other income and expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Pursuant to the
requirements under the Alaska Credit Agreements, Forest Alaska entered into two floating to fixed
interest rate swaps. In August 2007, Forest Alaska novated these interest rate swaps to Forest, Forest
has maintained these interest rate swaps to fix a portion of its variable rate interest on its credit facility
borrowings that are LIBOR based. As of December 31, 2007, we had entered into the following
interest rate swaps:

Notional Fixed Fair
Term Amount Floating Rate Rate Value
{Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
Interest Rate Swap A . ... .. April 2007 — April 2010 $ 75,000 1 month LIBOR 4.80% $(1,726)
Interest Rate Swap B . ... .. April 2007 — April 2010 112,500 1 month LIBOR 4.96% (2,995)

in January 2008, we entered into a $100 million floating to fixed interest rate swap for three years
commencing on June 13, 2008. The floating rate is one month LIBOR and the fixed rate is 2.75%.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Information concerning this Item begins on the following page.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Forest Oil Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Forest Oil Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to abtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Forest Oil Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007
and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, Forest Qil Corporation
changed its method of accounting for Share-Based Payments in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) on January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), Forest Qil Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
February 27, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 27, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Forest Oil Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows of Forest Oil Corporation and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2005.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States}. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the resuits of the operations and cash flows of Forest Qil Corporation and
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 13, 2006
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

December 31,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . . ... .ot $ 9,685 33,164
Accounts receivable . ... e e e e 201,617 125,446
Derivative INSHIUMENIS . . v v v v v v s b e e a oottt ettt e e aaaa e eaenns 30,006 53,205
Deferred INCOME LAXES . . . v o i ittt it e s aa s e ee et a s 23,854 —
Other INVESTIMEIIS .« . . o v vt et e e e ettt et it et e i 34,694 —
Other CUITENt ASSELS . . . . . . o ittt it ittt it e e et e e 61,518 49,185
Total CUITENt ASSELS . . . . v i it it i it n e st et e e s 361,374 261,000
Property and equipment, at cost:
Qil and gas properties, full cost method of accounting:
Proved, net of accumulated depletion of $2,742,539 and $2,265,018 ........ 4414710 2,486,153
UNPIOVEA. . o vttt ittt et e e e 568,510 261,259
Net oil and gas properties . . .. ... . vttt i e e 4,983,220 2,747.412
Other property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization of $30,011 and 832,504 . . . . .. ... ... . o 42,595 42514
Net property and equipment .. .............. . i i 5,025,815 2,789,926
Derivative iNSITUMETILS . . . v ¢ v it v i v v v e e ot e in e e mr et e e e s a e o — 15,019
Goodwill . . ... e e e 265,618 86,246
OB AS5CES &+ o v vt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e 42,741 36,881

$5,695,548 3,189,072

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable . . ... .. L e e $ 361,08% 224,933
AcCrued INEEIESE. o o o v ottt e it et e e e e e e 7,693 6,235
Derivative INStIUMENES . . . . . v it e vt et ie et oot emn et 72,675 1,294
Current portion of long-termdebt . ... ..... ... . ... ool 266,002 2,500
Asset retirement obligations .. ... ... . 2,562 2,694
Deferred INCOME TAXES . . o o v v vt et e e m e m e e e m ettt aa i s aans — 14,907
Other current lHabilities . . . . . . .. it i e e e e s 28,361 11,378
Total current liabilities . . . . . . . .o o it e e e i 738,382 263,941
Long-term debt . . .. ..ot 1,503,035 1,204,709
Asset retirement obligations . .. .......... e e e 87,943 61,408
Derivative InStIIMENES . . . . . . . o o it ettt et e e e e 38,171 811
Deferred iNCOME LAXES & . . . v v v vt ittt e e et ettt e a e s et aaae e 853,427 191,957
Other Habilities . . . . . o i it e e e e e e e e 62,779 32,240
Total Habilities . . . . v 0o et e e s 3,283,737 1,755,066

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, none issued and outstanding . ......... ... ..o ... — —
Common stock, 88,379,409 and 62,998,155 shares issued and outstanding . . . . .. 8,838 6,300
Capital surplus ............................................... 1,966,569 1,215,660
Retained earnings . . . ... ... it i i e 306,062 137,796
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ........ ... ... i 130,342 74,250

Total shareholders’ equity ... ... ... i i 2,411,811 1,434,006

$5,695,548 3,189,072

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS QF QPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2008

(In Thousands, Except
Per Share Amounts)

Revenues .. ...... . ... e e e $1,083,892 819,992 1,072,045
Operating expenses:
Leasc operating eXpenses . . .. ... .c.ov vt enn .. 167,473 154,874 199,761
Production and property taxes. . .. ... ... .. ..o 55,264 39,041 42,615
Transportation and processing costs . .. ..o v 20,200 21,876 19,499
General and administrative (including stock-based compensation) . 63,751 48,308 43,703
Depreciation and depletion. . .. .. .. ... ... ... ... .. ..., 390,338 266,881 368,679
Accretion of asset retirement obligations . . ................. 6,064 7,006 17,317
Impairment and other .. ....... ... ... ... .. ... .. .. . ... — 3,608 11,132
Gainonsaleofassels......... ... ... .. . . .. (7,176) — —
Spin-off costs . . . ... ... —_ 5416 —
Total operating eXpenses . .... ... ...ttt 695,914 547,160 702,706
Eamings from operations. . . . ...... .. ... .. i e 387,978 272,832 369,339
Other income and expense:
Interest expense . . . .. ... 113,162 71,787 61,403
Unrealized losses (gains) on derivative instruments, net . .. .. ... 117,499  (83,629) 21,373
Realized (gains} losses on derivative instruments, net . . ... ... .. (75,965) 23,864 35,390
Other expense, Net . . . .. .ottt ettt et e 1,581 3,827 6,247
Total other income and expense .. .................... 156,277 15,849 124,413
Earnings before income taxes and discontinued operations . . . ... .. 231,701 256,983 244,926
Income tax expense:
001 - o2 5,999 2,126 3,498
Deferred . ... ... e 56,396 88,777 89,860
Total income tax expense . . ... ... ... i 62,395 90,903 93,358
Earnings from continuing operations. . ... ................... 169,306 166,080 151,568
Income from discontinued operations, netof tax .. ........... — 2,422 —
Net earnmings . . ... ...ttt it e $ 169,306 168,502 151,568
Basic earnings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations . ................... $ 222 2.67 247
Income from discontinued operations, netoftax............ — .04 —
Basic earnings per common share . ..................... $ 2.22 271 2.47
Diluted earnings per common share:
Eamnings from continuing operations . ................... $ 2.18 2.62 2.41
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax. . .......... — .04 —
Diluted earnings per common share . . ................... $ 2.18 2.66 241

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balances at January 1, 2005
Exercise of warrants to purchase 1,358,350
shares of common stock
Exercise of stock options
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Employee stock purchase plan
Restricted stock issued, net of forfeitures . . .
Amortization of deferred stock compensation,
net of forfeitures and other
Tax benefit of acquired net operating losses .
Comprehensive earnings:
Net earnings
Reclassification of hedges to earnings, net of
tax
Change in fair value of hedges, net of tax. . .
Increase in unfunded postretirement benefits,
netoftax. . ........... ... .. ...
Foreign currency translation

Total comprehensive earnings

Balances at December 31, 20035
Exercise of stock options
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Employee stock purchase plan
Restricted stock issued, net of forfeitures . . .
Retirement of treasury stock
Amortization of stock-based compensation . .
Tax benefit of acquired net operating losses .
Pro rata distribution of MERI common stock

to shareholders (Note 2)

Comprehensive earnings:
Net earnings
Reclassification of hedges to earnings, net of

tax
Change in fair value of hedges, net of tax. . .
Decrease in unfunded postretirement

benefits, net of tax
Foreign currency translation

Total comprehensive earnings
Balances at December 31, 2006

Accumulated
Other Total
‘ Capital Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders’
Common Stock Surplus Earnings (Loss) Income  Stock Equity
(In Thousands)
61,595  $6,159 1,444,367 66,007 6,780 (51,166) 1,472,147
1,358 137 14,248 — — — 14,385
1,040 104 27,624 {376) — 1,006 28,358
— —_ 4,587 — — — 4,587
19 1 633 —_ — —_ 634
536 54 (200) 94 —_ 52 —
— — 1,235 — —_ — 1,235
— — 36,608 — — — 36,608
— — - 151,568 — — 151,568
— — — — 144,290 — 144,290
— — — — (180,591) — {180,591)
— — — — (21 — (210)
— — — —_ 11,511 — 11,511
126,568
64,548 6,455 1,529,102 217,293 (18,220) (50,108) 1,684,522
289 28 6,019 {8) — 27 6,066
— —_ 25 — — — 25
28 4 741 — — — 745
® () — - - — )
(1,861) (186) (49,895) — — 50,081 —
— — 20,158 — — — 20,158
— — 8,337 — — — 8,337
— —  (298,827) {247,991) 7,549 — (539,269)
_— — — 168,502 _ —_ 168,502
_ — — — 50,581 — 50,581
—_ — — — 30,873 — 30,873
— — — — 2,333 — 2,333
— — — —_ 1,134 —_ 1,134
253,423
62,998 $6,300 1,215,660 137,796 74,250 — 1,434,006

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Ceontinued)

Accumulated
Other Total
Capital Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders’
Common Stock Surplus Earnings Income Equity
(In Thousands)

Balances at December 31,2006 . . .......... 62,998 $6,300 1,215,660 137,796 74,250 1,434,006
Acquisition of Houston Exploration. . . .. ... 23990 2,399 724,013 — — 726,412
Exercise of stock options . ..., ......... 652 65 11,720 — — 11,785
Employee stock purchase plan . .. ... ..... 33 3 1,057 — — 1,060
Restricted stock issued, net of cancellations . . , 736 74 (74) — — —
Amortization of stack-based compensation . . . — - 15,504 — — 15,504
Adoptionof FIN48 . ... ............. — - — (1,040) — (1,040)
Restricted stock redeemed and other . .. . . .. (30) 3) (1,311) — — (1,314)

Comprehensive earnings:

NetearniNEs .. ... vv it nnannnan — — — 169,306 — 169,306
Decrease in unfunded postretirement benefits,
netoftax. .. ... ..., .. — — — — 1,295 1,295
Foreign currency translation .. .......... — — — — 54,797 54,797
Total comprehensive earnings . .. ........ 225,398
Balances at December 31, 2007 . . ... ....... 88,379 38,838 1,966,569 306,062 130,342 2,411,811

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2008
{In Thousands)

Operating activities:

Net Garmings . - - - - o oottt i e $ 169,306 168,502 151,568
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and depletion . ......... ... ... . i 390,338 266,881 368,679
Unrealized losses (gains) on derivative instruments, net . .. ... .. .. 117,499 (83,629) 21,373
Deferred income taX eXpense . .. . ... oo viin v inn e 56,396 90,004 89,860
Stock-based compensation eXpense . . .. ... ... 10,895 13,240 763
Accretion of asset retirement obligations . . .. ................ 6,064 7,096 17,317
IMpairments . ... ... ...t — 3,668 2,924
Gainonsaleofassels . . ... ... ... .. .. i (7,176) - —
Unrealized foreign currency exchange (gain) loss. . ............. (7,654) 3,931 —
(1 1137 S0 ¢ U~ 6,350 5,899 1,111
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable . . ... . ... L e 353 (640)  (15,350)
Other Current assetS. . .. . v vt it et i e e e 1,557 (39,860)  (25,858)
Accounts payable. . . .. ... e (9,592) 9,200 9,528
Accrued interest and other current liabilities . . . ... .......... (26,051) (21,814) 6,650
Net cash provided by operating activities . . .................. 708,245 422,478 628,565
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures for property and equipment:
Acquisition of Houston Exploration, net of cash acquired (Note 2) . . (775,365) — —
Exploration, development, and other acquisition costs .. ......... (787,735)  (894,448) (679,974)
Other fixed assels . . . . .. .0 vttt e (32,169) (21,950}  (10,743)
Proceeds from sale of Alaska Assets (Note 2} . .. ................. 400,000 — —
Proceeds from sales of otherassets .. ......................... 102,048 6,507 24,046
Other, Bet . ... it e e e — — (4,559)
Net cash vsed by investing activities . . ..................... (1,093,221)  (909,891) (671,230)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings . ............... ... . . ... ... 1,536,526 1,562,778 906,741
Repayments of bank borrowings . . ...... ... ... ... o o L (1,365,178) (1.432,574) (905,000)
Issuance of 7Y% senior notes, net of issuance costs . . . ............. 739,176 — —_
Repayment of Alaska Credit Agreements ... .................... (375,000) — —
Repayments of bank debt assumed in acquisitions .. ............... (176,885) — (35,000}
Proceeds from Alaska Credit Agreements, net of issuance costs . . .. .. .. — 367,706 —
Proceeds from Spin-off . ... ... ... .. .. .. i i - 21,670 —
Proceeds from the exercise of options and warrants and from employee
stockpurchase plan . ... ...... ... ... ... o il 12,843 6,811 43,377
Other, NEL . . ... ot i e e {11,932) (12,559) (14,714)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities. . . . ............ 359,552 513,832 {4,596)
Effect of exchange rate changes oncash ... ... .. ... .. .. ........ 1,945 (486) (759)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents . . ............... (23.479) 25933 (48,020)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ... ................. 33,164 7,231 55,251
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year. . .. ......... ... ... . ... $ 9,685 33,164 7,231
Cash paid during the year for:
INTErest . . .o ot $ 125276 76,979 66,140
) DTAra) 11 ol T2 (=< 6,445 5,590 7.900

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOREST OIL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Description of the Business

Forest Oil Corporation is an independent oil and gas company engaged in the acquisition,
exploration, development, and production of natural gas and liquids primarily in North America. Forest
was incorporated in New York in 1924, as the successor to a company formed in 1916, and has been a
publicly held company since 1969, The Company is active in several of the major exploration and
producing areas in the United States and in Canada and has exploratory and development interests in
various other foreign countries.

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Forest Oil Corporation and its
consolidated subsidiaries (collectively, “Forest” or the “Company”). Significant intercompany balances
and transactions are eliminated. The Company consolidates all subsidiaries in which it controls over
50% of the voting interests. Entities in which the Company does not have a direct or indirect majority
voting interest are generally accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
initial investment in the affiliated entity is recorded at cost and subsequently increased or reduced to
reflect the Company’s share of gains or losses or dividends received from the affiliate. The Company’s
share of the income or losses of the affiliate is included in the Company’s reported net earnings.

Certain amounts in prior years’ financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2007
financial statement presentation.

Assumptions, Judgments, and Estimates

In the course of preparing the consolidated financial statements, management makes various
assumptions, judgments, and estimates to determine the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue,
and expenses, and in the disclosures of commitments and contingencies. Changes in these assumptions,
judgments, and estimates will occur as a result of the passage of time and the occurrence of future
events and, accordingly, actual results could differ from amounts previously established.

The more significant areas requiring the use of assumptions, judgments, and estimates relate to
volumes of oil and gas reserves used in calculating depletion, the amount of future net revenues used
in computing the ceiling test limitations, and the amount of future capital costs and abandonment
obligations used in such calculations. Assumptions, judgments, and estimates are also required in
determining impairments of undeveloped properties, valuing deferred tax assets, and estimating fair
values of derivative instruments.

Cash Eguivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.
Property and Equipment

The Company uses the full cost method of accounting for oil and gas properties. Separate cost
centers are maintained for each country in which the Company has operations. During 2007, 2006, and
2005, the Company’s primary oil and gas operations were conducted in the United States and Canada.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

All costs incurred in the acquisition, exploration, and development of properties (including costs of
surrendered and abandoned leaseholds, delay lease rentals, dry holes, and overhead related to
exploration and development activities) and the fair value of estimated future costs of site restoration,
dismantlement, and abandonment activities are capitalized. For the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006, and 2005, Forest capitalized $43.6 million, $31.8 million, and $26.5 million of general and
administrative costs, respectively. Interest costs related to significant unproved properties which are
under development are also capitalized to oil and gas properties. During 2007, 2006, and 2005, the
Company capitalized approximately $13.9 million, $3.7 million, and $.9 million, respectively, of interest
expense attributed to unproved properties.

Investments in unproved properties are not depleted pending determination of the existence of
proved reserves. Unproved properties are assessed periodically to ascertain whether impairment has
occurred. Unproved properties whose costs are individually significant are assessed individually by
considering the primary lease terms of the properties, the holding period of the properties, and
geographic and geologic data obtained relating to the properties. Where it is not practicable to assess
individually the amount of impairment of properties for which costs are not individually significant,
such properties are grouped for purposes of assessing impairment. The amount of impairment assessed
is added to the costs to be amortized, or is reported as a period expense, as appropriate.

Pursuant to full cost accounting rules, the Company must perform a ceiling test each quarter on its
proved oil and gas assets. The ceiling test provides that capitalized costs less related accumulated
depletion and deferred income taxes for each cost center may not exceed the sum of (1) the present
value of future net revenue from estimated production of proved oil and gas reserves using current
prices, excluding the future cash outflows associated with settling asset retirement obligations that have
been accrued on the balance sheet, at a discount factor of 10%; plus (2) the cost of properties not
being amortized, if any; plus (3) the lower of cost or estimated fair value of unproved properties
included in the costs being amortized, if any; less (4) income tax effects related to differences in the
book and tax basis of oil and gas properties. Should the net capitalized costs for a cost center exceed
the sum of the components noted above, an impairment charge would be recognized to the extent of
the excess capitalized costs. There were no provisions for impairment of proved oil and gas properties
in 2007, 2006, or 2005. :

Gain or loss is not recognized on the sale of oil and gas properties unless the sale significantly
alters the relationship between capitalized costs. and estimated proved oil and gas reserves attributable
to a cost center.

Depletion of proved oil and gas properties is computed on the units-of-production method,
whereby capitalized costs, as adjusted for future development costs and asset retirement obligations, are
amortized over the total estimated proved reserves. Furniture and fixtures, leasehold improvements,
computer hardware and software, and other equipment are depreciated on the straight-line or declining
balance method, based upon estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from three to 15 years.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Forest records estimated future asset retirement obligations pursuant to the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations” (“SFAS No. 143”). SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record the fair value of a liability for
an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred with a corresponding increase in the
carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Subsequent to initial measurement, the asset retirement
obligation is required to be accreted each period to its present value. Capitalized costs are depleted as
a component of the full cost pool using the units-of-production method. Forest’s asset retirement
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

obligations consist of costs related to the plugging of wells, the removal of facilities and equipment, and
site restoration on oil and gas properties.

The following table summarizes the activities for the Company’s asset retirement obligations for
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006

(In Thousands)
Asset retirement obligations at beginning of period ......... ... ... .. ..... $ 64,102 211,554
ACCIEHION BXPENSE o v o vt ittt et et et et e e e 6,064 7,096
Liabilities incurred . . . . ... oo e e e 5,195 3,033
Liabilities settled . ... ... . e e (2.512)  (6,652)
Disposition of properties. . . .. .. ... . . L e (17.476) (150,182)
Liabilities assumed . . . .. .. . e e e e 36,424 1,009
Revisions of estimated liabilities .. ......... ... .. i, (3,843)  (1,687)
Impact of foreign currency exchange rate . .. ... .. ... ... ... .. ... 2,551 {69)
Asset retirement obligations atend of period . . .. ........ ... .. L 90,505 64,102
Less: current asset retirement obligations . . .. ....... ... ... . L L. (2,562)  {2,694)
Long-term asset retirement obligations . ........... ... .. .. ..ot $ 87,943 61,408

Financial Instrumenis

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of cash equivalents, derivative instruments, and accounts receivable. The Company’s cash
equivalents and derivative instruments are placed with major financial institutions, The Company
attempts to minimize credit risk exposure to purchasers of the Company’s oil and natural gas through
formal credit policies, monitoring procedures, and letters of credit when considered necessary.

The Company used various assumptions and methods in estimating fair value disclosures for
financial instruments. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable
approximated their fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. The fair values of
derivative instruments were based on quoted market prices and option pricing models. The carrying
amount of the Company’s credit facilities approximated fair value, because the interest rates on the
credit facilities are variable. The fair values of the Company’s senior notes, senior subordinated notes,
and Alaska credit agreements were estimated based on quoted market prices, if available, or quoted
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

market prices of comparable instruments. The carrying values and fair values of the Company’s debt
instruments (other than its credit facilities) are summarized below for the periods presented:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

{In Thousands)

8% Senior Notes due 2008 . . . . ... ... . ... .. ... ... $266,002 267,650 268,200 271,294
8% Senior Notes due 2011....... e 293482 296,400 295,610 296,400
7% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013. . .............. 5,664 5,618 — —
7%% Senior Notesdue 2014 . ......... ... ... ........ 159,763 152,250 161,305 152,625
7%% Senior Notes due 2019 . ......... ... ... ........ 750,000 753,750 — —
Alaska Credit Agreement—first lien ... ................ — — 250,000 251,250
Alaska Credit Agreement—second lien . . ............... — — 125,000 130,000

Revenues
Oil and Gas Sales

Natural gas revenues are recorded on the entittement method. Under the entitlement method,
revenue is recorded when title passes based on the Company’s net interest. The Company records its
entitled share of revenues based on its entitled share of gas proceeds. Since there is a ready market for
natural gas, the Company sells the majority of its products soon after production at various locations,
including the wellhead, at which time title and risk of loss pass to the buyer.

Gas imbalances occur when the Company selis more or less than its entitled ownership percentage
of total gas production. Any amount received in excess of the Company’s share is treated as a liability.
If the Company receives less than its entitled share, the underproduction is recorded as a receivable. At
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had gas imbalance payables of $8.4 million and
$5.6 million, respectively, and gas imbalance receivables of $9.2 million and $5.1 million, respectively.

Oil revenues are recognized when production is sold to a purchaser at a fixed or determinable
price, when delivery has occurred and title is transferred.

In 2007 and 2005, there were no purchasers who exceeded 10% of total revenue. In 2006, sales to
two purchasers were approximately 13% and 12% of total revenue.
Marketing, Processing, and Other

Marketing, processing, and other primarily consists of marketing fees earned from third party
marketing arrangements and fees earned attributable to volumes processed on behalf of third parties
through Company-owned gas processing plants.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
Accounts Receivable

The components of accounts receivable include the following:

December 31,

2007 2006

(In Thousands)
Olland gassales . .. ... ottt it e i e e $150,258 89,082
Joint interest bIllings . .. ... oot e 44810 27,891
8 7 =7 7,011 8,814
Allowance for doubtful accounts . ........... .. . i e (462) (341)

Total accounts receivable ... ...ttt e e e $201,617 125446

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. This method
requires the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences
of temporary differences between financial accounting bases and tax bases of assets and liabilities. The
tax benefits of tax loss carryforwards and other deferred tax benefits are recorded as an asset to the
extent that management assesses the utilization of such assets to be more likely than not. When the
future utilization of some portion of the deferred tax asset is determined not to be more likely than
not, a valuation allowance is provided to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets. Management believes
that it could implement tax planning strategies to prevent certain of these carryforwards from expiring.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of Canadian Forest Oil Ltd. (“Canadian Forest™), the Company’s wholly-
owned Canadian subsidiary, is the Canadian dollar. Assets and lizbilities related to Canadian Forest are
generally translated at end-of-period exchange rates, and related translation adjustments are generally
reported as a component of shareholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
Statement of operations accounts are translated at the average of the exchange rates for the period.

During 2007 and 2006, Forest realized approximately $7.7 million and $.3 million, respectively, of
foreign currency exchange gains in connection with the repayment of intercompany debt owed to the
Forest Oil Corporation by Canadian Forest.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings attributable to commeon stock by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period, excluding treasury shares.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by adjusting the average number of common shares outstanding
for the dilutive effect, if any, of stock options, unvested restricted stock grants, unvested phantom stock
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

units, and warrants. The following sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for
the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2008

(In Thousands,
Except Per Share Amounts)

' Earnings from continuing operations . .. ........... . ... .. ... $169,306 166,080 151,568
Income from discontinued operations, netof tax ................. — 2,422 —
Net €aIMINES . . .o v vt i e e e e $169,306 168,502 151,568
Weighted average common shares outstanding during the period . .. . .. 76,101 62,226 61,405
Ada dilutive effects of stock options, unvested restricted stock grants,
and unvested phantom stock umits . .. ... ... .. Lo 1,650 1,205 1,145
Add dilutive effects of warrants . . . .. ... . e —_ — 328
Weighted average common shares outstanding during the period,
| including the effects of dilutive securities ..................... 77,751 63,431 62,878
| Basic earnings per commeoen share:
| From continuing operations . . . ... ......... .. . i, $ 222 2.67 247
i From discontinued operations . .............. ... e — 04 —_
| Basic earnings per common share. .. .. ... .. .. o oo oL $ 222 27 247
Diluted earnings per commeon share: .
From continuing operations . . . ..........couviieioisenananan $ 218 2.62 241
From cjiscontinued Operations ..............c.oiitiniiranann — .04 —
Diluted earnings per common share . . ............ ..o $ 218 2.66 241

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic
value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
| Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Under APB Opinion No. 25, no compensation
. expense was recognized for stock options issued to employees if the grant price equaled or was above
the market price on the date of the option grant. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the
provisions of SFAS No. 123 (Revised), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)”) using the modified
prospective method. Under this method, compensation cost is recorded for all unvested stock options,
restricted stock, and phantom stock units beginning in the period of adoption and prior period financial
statements are not restated. Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R), stock-based
compensation is measured at the grant date based on the value of the awards and the value is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period (usually the vesting period).

| Treasury Stock

i In May 2006, Forest retired its treasury stock. The Company had historically accounted for
treasury stock acquisitions using the cost method. Under this method, for reissuance of treasury stock,
to the extent that the reissuance price was more than the cost, the excess was recorded as an increase
to capital surplus. If the reissuance price was less than the cost, the difference was also recorded to
capital surplus to the extent there was a cumulative treasury stock paid in capital balance.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
Debt Issue Costs

Included in other assets are costs associated with the issuance of our senior notes and our
revolving bank credit facilities. The remaining unamortized debt issue costs at December 31, 2007 and
2006 totaled $19.7 million and $13.0 million, respectively, and are being amortized over the life of the
respective debt instruments. The increase in 2007 includes the debt issue costs associated with the
issuance of the $750 million 7¥4% senior notes due 2019, in June 2007.

Goodwill

The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” and is required to make an annual impairment assessment in lieu of periodic
amortization. The impairment assessment requires the Company to make estimates regarding the fair
value of the reporting unit to which goodwill has been assigned. Although the Company bases its fair
value estimate on assumptions it believes to be reasonable, those assumptions are inherently
unpredictable and uncertain. Downward revisions of estimated reserve quantities, increases in future
cost estimates, divestiture of a significant component of the reporting unit, continued weakening of the
U.S. dollar, or depressed natural gas and liquids prices could lead to an impairment of goodwill in
future periods.

A portion of our goodwill is assigned to the Canadian geographical business segment and normal
fluctuations will occur between periods based upon changes in foreign currency exchange rates. During
the year ended December 31, 2007, Forest recognized $176.8 million of goodwill associated with the
Houston Exploration acquisition, as discussed in Note 2.

Comprehensive Earnings (Loss)

Comprehensive earnings (loss) is a term used to refer to net earnings (loss) plus other
comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of revenues, expenses,
gains, and losses that under generally accepted accounting principles are reported as separate
components of shareholders’ equity instead of net earnings (loss). Items included in the Company's
other comprehensive income (loss) during the last three years include: foreign currency gains (losses)
related to the translation of the assets and liabilities of the Company’s Canadian operations; changes in
the unfunded postretirement benefits; and unrealized gains (losses) related to the changes in fair value
of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss) for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 are as follows:

Unrealized Accumulated
Foreign Unfunded Gain (Loss) Other
Currency Postretirement on Derivative Comprehensive
Translation Benefits'™" Instruments, Net’”  Income (Loss)
(In Thousands)

Balance at January 1, 2005 ............ $ 67,902 (8,420) (52,702) 6,780
2005 ACHVILY - - -+ evee e 11,511 (210) (36,301) (25,000)
Balance at December 31,2005 .......... 79,413 (8,630) (89,003) (18,220)
2006 activity ... ... ... 1,134 2,333 89,003 92,470
Balance at December 31,2006 . . ........ 80,547 (6,297) — 74,250
2007 activity ... ... . ..ol 54,797 1,295 — 56,092
Balance at December 31,2007 . ......... $135,344 (5,002) — 130,342
™M Net of tax.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 157,
“Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). This statement clarifies the definition of fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands the disclosures on fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February
2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 157-1 and FSP No. 157-2. FSP No. 157-1
amends SFAS 157 to exclude lease transactions accounted for under SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for
Leases” (“SFAS 13”) and other accounting pronouncements that address fair value measurements for
purposes of lease classification or measurement under SFAS 13, This scope exception does not apply to
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination that are required to be measured at
fair value under SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” or SFAS 141(R}, regardless of whether those
assets and liabilities are related to leases. FSP No. 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for one
year for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed
at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). The Company is
currently evaluating the impact the adoption of these pronouncements will have on the Company’s
financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) related to EITF Issue No. 06-4, “‘Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement
Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” (“EITF 06-4”), which requires
the recognition of a liability for future benefits based on the substantive agreement with the employee.
The liability is required to be recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions” (“SFAS 106”), or APB Opinion No. 12, “Omnibus
Opinion—1967", as appropriate. EITF 06-4 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2007 and requires transition through a cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings or a
retrospective application to all prior periods. The Company maintains a number of split-dollar life
insurance arrangements for certain former employees. The Company is currently evaluating the impact
the adoption of this pronouncement will have on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations.
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 1597). This statement permits entities to choose to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. This statement expands the use of fair value
measurement and applies to entities that elect the fair value option. The fair value option established
by this Statement permits all entities to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified
election dates. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company
does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have a material impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

In March 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the EITF in Issue No. 06-10,
“Accounting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” (“EITF 06-107). Under
this consensus, an employer should recognize a liability for any postretirement benefit related to a
collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangement in accordance with SFAS 106 or APB
Opinion No. 12, as appropriate, and should recognize and measure the underlying asset based on the
nature and substance of the collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangement. EITF 06-10 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007 and requires transition through a
cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings or a retrospective application to all prior periods.
The Company maintains a number of split-dollar life insurance arrangements for certain former
employees. The Company is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of this pronouncement will
have on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (Revised), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS 141(R)”), which significantly changes the financial accounting and reporting of business
combination transactions. SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in
a business combination: (i) recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets
acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontroiling interest in the acquiree, (ii) recognizes and
measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase, and
(iii) determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141(R) applies prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The adoption of this pronouncement may have a
material impact on the accounting for any acquisition the Company may make after January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Nencontroiling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51" (“SFAS 160”). This statement amends ARB
No. 51 to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary
and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary, which is sometimes referred to as minority interest, is an ownership interest in the
consolidated entity that should be reported as a component of equity in the consolidated financial
statements. Among other requirements, SFAS 160 requires consolidated net income to be reported at
amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest. It
also requires disclosure, on the face of the consolidated income statement, of the amounts of
consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest. This statement is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after
December 15, 2008, The Company does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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Acquisitions
Acquisition of Houston Exploration

On June 6, 2007, Forest completed the acquisition of The Houston Exploration Company
(“Houston Exploration™) in a cash and stock transaction totaling approximately $1.5 billion and the
assumption of Houston Exploration’s debt. Houston Exploration was an independent natural gas and
oil producer engaged in the exploration, development, exploitation, and acquisition of natural gas and
oil reserves in North America. Houston Exploration had operations in four producing regions within
the United States: South Texas, East Texas, the Arkoma Basin of Arkansas, and the Uinta and DJ
Basins in the Rocky Mountains. The principal factors considered by management in making the
acquisition included the mix of complementary high-quality assets in certain of the Company’s existing
core areas, lower-risk exploitation opportunities, expected increased cash flow from operations available
for investing activities, and opportunities for cost savings through administrative and operational
synergies. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the agreement and plan of merger (“Merger
Agreement”), Forest paid total merger consideration of $750 million in cash and issued approximately
24 million common shares, valued at $30.28 per share. The per share value of the Forest common
shares issued was calculated as the average of Forest’s closing share price for a five day period
surrounding the announcement date of the acquisition on January 7, 2007. The cash component of the
merger consideration was financed from a private placement of $750 million of 7%% senior notes due
2019 and borrowings under the Company’s $1.0 billion second amended and restated credit facilities
that were executed on June 6, 2007. Immediately following the completion of the merger, Forest repaid
all of Houston Exploration’s outstanding bank debt totaling $177 million.

The acquisition, which was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, has been
included in Forest’s Consolidated Financial Statements since June 6, 2007, the date the acquisition
closed. The following table represents the preliminary allocation of the total purchase price of Houston
Exploration to the acquired assets and liabilities of Houston Exploration as of December 31, 2007. The
allocation represents the estimated fair values assigned to each of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The purchase price allocation is preliminary, subject to the completion of evaluations of
proved and unproved oil and gas properties, deferred income taxes, contractual arrangements, and legal
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and environmental matters. These and other estimates are subject to change as additional information
becomes available and is assessed by Forest.

(In Thousands)
Fair value of Houston Exploration’s net assets:

Net working capital, including cash of $3.5 million ... .................. ... .. $ (33,551)
Proved oil and gas properties. .. ... . . e e e 1,741,823
Unproved oil and gas properties . ...... ... ...ttt i, 448,100
Goodwill .. .. ... e 176,761
L 11 T3 g .17 - 14,537
Derivative InStrUMEnIS . . . ... .. .. i e e (45.170)
Long-term debt . .. ... .. e e e e (182,532)
Asset retirement obligations. . .. ... .. .. L L (36,424)
Deferred inCOMe (aXeS. . . . . ..ottt et e (559,136)
Other liabilities . . . ... .. o e e (159,089)
Total fair value of metassets . ......... .. .. . .. . . . i $1,505,309
Consideration paid for Houston Exploration’s net assets:

Forest common stock issued. . .. .. ... . L e $ 726412
Cash consideration paid. . .. ... ... . . e e e 749,694
Aggregaie purchase consideration paid to Houston Exploration stockholders . ... ... 1,476,106
Plus:

Cash settlement for Houston Exploration stock options . . ................... 20,075

Direct merger costs incurred ... ...ttt i e e e 9,128
Total consideration paid. - . . ... .. ... . . e $1,505,309

Goodwill of $176.8 million has been recognized to the extent that the consideration paid exceeded
the fair value of the net assets acquired and has been assigned to the U.S. geographical business
segment. Goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The principal factors that
contributed to the recognition of goodwill include the mix of complementary high-quality assets in
certain of our existing core areas, lower-risk exploitation opportunities, expected increased cash flow
from operations available for investing activities, and opportunities for cost savings through
administrative and operational synergies.

Included in the working capital assumed at the acquisition date was a severance accrual of
$28.9 million for costs to involuntarily terminate employees of Houston Exploration. Management
determined it would be necessary to eliminate certain overlapping positions to achieve cost savings
through administrative and operational synergies. Management is still finalizing its business integration
plans as a result of the acquisition and, accordingly, the severance accrual will be finalized once these
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plans are complete. The following table summarizes the activity in the severance accrual through
December 31, 2007 since the acquisition date:

(In Thousands)

Severance accrual at June 6, 2007 . . .. .. .. . s $ 28,850
Cash paymentst) . .. .. e (11,519)
Net adjustment® . ... ... (1,694)
Severance accrual at December 31, 2007 . . . ... .. e $ 15,637

(0 Represents cash severance and excise tax payments to involuntarily terminated employees of Houston Exploration as well as
the related employer tax payments paid by the Company.

@  Represents the net adjustment made to the accrual as the Company continues to finalize the termination plan. This net
adjustment was made to the cost of the acquired company.

The remaining severance payments are expected to be made during 2008.

The following summary pro forma combined statement of operations data of Forest for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 has béen prepared to give effect to the merger as if the merger
had occurred on January 1, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The pro forma financial information is not
necessarily indicative of the results that might have occurred had the transaction taken place on
January 1, 2007 and 2006, and is not intended to be a projection of future results. Future results may
vary significantly from the results reflected in the following pro forma financial information because of
normal production declines, changes in commodity prices, future acquisitions and divestitures, future
development and exploration activities, and other factors. The pro forma financial information also
gives pro forma effect to Forest’s spin-off of its offshore Gulf of Mexico operations completed in
March 2006 and Houston Exploration’s sale of substantially all of its offshore Gulf of Mexico
operations completed in June 2006, as though each disposition occurred on January 1, 2006.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006

(In Thousands, Except
Per Share Amounts)

REVEIMUES .+« o v v v e e e et e et e e e e ettt st e e e $1,304,849 1,220,447
Earnings from continuing operations . ............. ..o 181,591 172,101
Net €arMiNgS . . . oo vv vt e e e 181,591 174,523
Basic earnings per common share:
From continuing Operations . . . . ... .ovvveetonneeaeneraoar s $ 2.09 2.00
Basic earnings per common share .. ...... ... .. . .o i 2.09 2.02
Diluted earnings per common share: .
From continuing Operations . . . ... .. ..uvveuvrarien e aaaees $ 2.06 1.98
Diluted earnings per common share . . . ........ ... .o i 2.06 2.00

Cotton Valley Acquisition

On March 31, 2006, Forest completed the acquisition of oil and gas propertics located primarily in
the Cotton Valley trend in East Texas. Forest paid approximately $255 million, as adjusted to reflect an
economic effective date of February 1, 2006. Forest funded this acquisition utilizing its bank credit
facilities.
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Buffalo Wallow Acquisition

On April 1, 2005, Forest purchased a private company whose primary assets were located in the
Buffalo Wallow field, primarily in Hemphill and Wheeler Counties, Texas (“the Buffalo Wallow
Acquisition”). The purchase price was allocated to assets and liabilities, adjusted for tax effects, based
on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The acquisition was accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting and has been included in the consolidated financial statements of
Forest since the date of acquisition.

The total cash consideration paid for the Buffalo Wallow Acquisition was allocated as follows:

Purchase Price

Allocation
(In Thousands)
LT =3 1 1R T-1 2 7 JE $ 9434
Oil and gas Properties . . ... ..ottt e e 305,005
GoodWill . ... L e 22,859
Other A88BES . . . . . . . e e e e 68
Current liabilities . . ... ... . e (27,251)
Derivative liability—current. . . .. ... .. ... e (6,373)
Long-term debt . .. ... ... .. . e e (35,000)
Asset retirement obligations . . ... ... L L e (705)
Deferred INCOME 1AXES . . ... ittt it it ettt i e et e (71,492)
Total cash conSideration . .. ..ot e e e e $106,645

Goodwill of $23.0 million was recognized to the extent that cost exceeded the fair value of net
assets acquired. Goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill was assigned
to Forest’s U.S. geographical business segment. The principal factors that contributed to the recognition
of goodwill include the mix of complementary high-quality assets in one of our existing core areas,
lower-risk exploitation opportunitics, expected increased cash flow from operations available for
investing activities, and opportunities for cost savings through administrative and operational synergies.

Divestitures
Sale of Alaska Assets

On August 27, 2007, Forest sold all of its assets located in Alaska (the “Alaska Assets™) to Pacific
Energy Resources Ltd. (“PERL”). The total consideration received for the Alaska Assets included
$400 million in cash, 10 million shares of PERL common stock (subject to certain restrictions), and a
zero coupon senior subordinated note from PERL due 2014 in the principal amount at stated maturity
of $60.8 million. A portion of the cash consideration, $269 million, was applied to prepay all amounts
due under the term loan agreements, including accrued interest and prepayment premiums.
Consideration received by Forest in the form of the PERL common stock and the zero coupon senior
subordinated note are being held in other investments within the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Forest
accounts for these investments as trading securities in accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for
Centain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Investments in debt and equity securities classified as
trading securities are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in “Other
income and expense” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Spin-off and Merger of Offshore Gulf of Mexico Operations

On March 2, 2006, Forest completed the spin-off of its offshore Gulf of Mexico operations by
means of a special dividend, which consisted of a pro rata spin-off (the “Spin-off”) of all outstanding
shares of Forest Energy Resources, Inc. (hereinafter known as Mariner Energy Resources, Inc. or
“MERI”), a total of approximately 50.6 million shares of common stock, to holders of record of Forest
common stock as of the close of business on February 21, 2006. Immediately following the Spin-off,
MERI was merged with a subsidiary of Mariner Energy, Inc. (“Mariner”) (the “Merger”). Mariner’s
common stock commenced trading on the New York Stock Exchange on March 3, 2006.

The Spin-off was a tax-free transaction for federal income tax purposes. Prior to the Merger, as
part of the Spin-off, MERI paid Forest $176.1 million. The $176.1 million was drawn on a newly
created bank credit facility established by MERI immediately prior to the Spin-off. This credit facility
and associated liability were included in the Spin-off. Subsequent to the closing, Forest received
additional net cash proceeds of $21.7 million from MERI for a total of $197.8 million. In accordance
with the transaction agreements, Forest and MERI had submitted post-closing adjustments from which
Forest paid MERI a total of $5.8 million during 2007. Additional adjustments to the cash amount may
occur pending the resolution of certain accounting matters that are the subject of ongoing arbitration
between Forest and MERL The arbitration is currently expected to be concluded in the second half of

2008.
The table below sets forth the assets and liabilities included in the Spin-off (in thousands):

Working capital . .. ...t e $ (12,383)
Proved oil and gas properties, net of accumulated depletion . . ................... 1,033,289
Unproved oil and gas Properties . .. ... ...t 38,523
O REE BSSBES . « v v o v v e et e e e e e e e e 7,919
Derivative INSIIUMENTS . . o o oottt e i e e e e et e s (17,087)
MERI credit facility . .. .. ..o (176,102)
Asset retirement obligations ............ e e e s (150,182)
Deferred income taxes . ............... e e e e (184,483)
Other Habilities . . . . .o ittt et et i i s e (225)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . .. ... .. Lo i e 7,549
Net decrease to capital surplus and retained earnings .............c. i $ 546,818

The following table presents the revenues and direct operating expenses of the offshore Gulf of
Mexico operations reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for all periods presented. As
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the spin-off of the offshore Gulf of Mexico operations were concluded in 2006, the Company did not
have operating activity from offshore Gulf of Mexico operations during 2007,

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(In Thousands)
ReVemUEs . . .. e e e, $46,289 392,272
Oil and gas production expense:
Lease Operating eXpenses . . . . . ..o ittt e e 18,296 78,524
Transportation and processing CoStS . . ... ... ..uiui it e nrenennnn.. 344 3,383
Production and property taxes . ........ ... ... . i 151 2,215
Revenues in excess of direct operating expenses . ............ ... ... .. .... $27,498 308,150
Sale of ProMark

On March 1, 2004, the Company sold the assets and business operations of Producers
Marketing, Ltd. (“ProMark™) to Cinergy Canada, Inc. (“Cinergy”) for $11.2 million CDN. As a result
of the sale, ProMark’s results of operations were reported as discontinued operations in the historical
financial statements. Under the terms of the purchase and sale agreement, Forest may receive
additional contingent consideration over a period of five years through February 2009. During the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2005, Forest did not receive any additional contingent payments. During
the year ended December 31, 2006, Forest received an additional $3.6 million contingent payment
(52.4 million net of tax) under the agreement, which has been reflected as income from discontinued
operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,

Other Divestitures

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Forest sold properties in addition to the Alaska Assets
for total proceeds of $39.4 million, including an overriding royalty interest in Australia for net proceeds
of $7.2 million that resulted in a gain on the sale of $7.2 million. In addition, in August 2007, the
Company entered into a sale-leaseback transaction whereby the Company sold its drilling rigs for cash
proceeds of $62.6 million and simultaneously entered into an operating lease with the buyer which
provides for monthly rental payments of $.9 million for a term of seven years. A deferred gain of
$33.3 million resulted from the sale of the drilling rigs and will be amortized over the term of the lease.
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(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Net property and equipment at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consists of the following:

2007 2006
{In Thousands)

Oil and gas properties:

PrOved . it e e e e $ 7,157,249 4,751,171
URProved . ...ttt i 568,510 261,259
Accumulated depletion. . . .. .. . (2,742,539) (2,265,018)

Net oil and gas properties . . . . .. ..o v vt 4983220 2,747,412

Other property and equipment:
Furniture and fixtures, computer hardware and software, and other

EQUIPIMENL . . .\ttt e 72,606 75,018
Accumulated depreciation and amortization . .......... . . ool (30,011) (32,504)
Net other property and equipment .. .......... ... ..o 42,595 42,514
Total net property and eqUIPMENT . . . ..o vv vt $ 5025815 2,789,926

The following table sets forth a summary of oil and gas property costs not being depleted at
December 31, 2007, by the year in which such costs were incurred:

Total 2007 2006 2005 2004 and Prior
(In Thousands)

United States:

Acquisition costs . .. ... ... ... $382531 357,849 18,836 085 4,861

Exploration costs . . ....... o 63,418 27,061 26907 8117 1,333

Total United States ... ... ...ccvvrenvn. 445949 384910 45,743 9,102 6,194
Canada:

Acquisition costs . . ...... ... 25,512 — — 4,142 21,370

Exploration costs .. ........oocveeaeon, 38,439 20495 13,568 65 4,311

Total Canada . ..........coviin s 63,951 20495 13,568 4,207 25,681
International:

Acquisition costs ....... ..ol 740 — — — 740

Exploration costs . ............ .o 57,870 1,911 5,151 1,360 49,448

Total International . .......... ..o oovon. 58,610 1,911 5,151 1,360 50,188
Total. . . e e $568,510 407,316 64,462 14,669 82,063

The majority of the United States and Canada unproved oil and gas property costs, or those not
being depleted, relate to oil and gas property acquisitions discussed in Note 2 as well as
work-in-progress on various exploration projects. The Company expects that substantially all of its
unproved property costs in the U.S. and Canada as of December 31, 2007 wili be reclassified to proved
properties within five years. Forest also holds interests in various projects located outside North
America. Costs related to these international interests of $58.6 million are not being depleted pending
determination of the existence of estimated proved reserves. Forest’s exploration project in South
Africa accounts for the majority of the international costs not being amortized. In 2007, the Company
continued to pursue commercial development of the Ibhubesi field discovery in South Africa. The
Company also filed a production right application and also continued efforts toward securing gas
contracts for the Ibhubesi field.
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Components of debt are as follows:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Unamortized Unamortized
Premium Premium

Principal  (Discount) Other®  Total Principal (Discount) Other'®  Total
{In Thousands)

U.S. Credit Facility. . . ......... $ 165,000 — — 165,000 23,000 _ — 23,000
Canadian Credit Facility . ....... 129,126 — — 129,126 84,004 — — 84,094
Alaska Credit AgreementstV ., .. .. — — — — 375,000 — — 375,000
8% Senior Notes due 2008 . . . .. .. 265,000 (48) 1,050 266,002 265,000 (146) 3,346 268,200
8% Senior Notes due 2011 . ... ... 285,000 5,167 3,315 293,482 285,000 6,458 4,152 295,610
7% Seniot Subordinated Notes due

20030 L 5,822 (158) — 5,664 —_ — —_ —
T%% Senior Notes due 2014, . . . ., 150,000 (1,512) 11,275 159,763 150,000 (1,751) 13,056 161,305
7Y% Senior Notes due 20192 . . | 750,000 — — 750,000 — — —_ —
Totaldebt ... .............. 1,749,948 3,449 15,640 1,769,037 1,182,004 4561 20,554 1,207,209
Less: current portion of long-term

debt. oo oo (265,000) 48 (1,050) (266,002)  (2.500) —_ —  (2,500)
Long-termdebt . . . ........... $1,484,948 3,497 14,590 1,503,035 1,179,594 4,561 20,554 1,204,709

M On August 27, 2007, in connection with the sale of the Alaska Assets, Forest paid all cutstanding amounts owed under its
Alaska Credit Agreements,

D In connection with the acquisition of Houston Exploration, Forest assumed approximately $5.8 million of 7% senior
subordinated notes due 2013 and issued $750 million of 7%% senior notes due 2019 for net proceeds of approximately
$739.2 miliion after deducting initial purchasers’ discounts.

Represents the unamortized portion of gains realized upon termination of interest rate swaps that were accounted for as
fair value hedges. The gains are being amortized as a reduction of interest expense over the terms of the notes.

Bank Credit Facilities

The Company currently has credit facilities totaling $1.0 billion, consisting of an $850 million U.S.
credit facility through a syndicate of banks led by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and a $150 million '
Canadian credit facility through a syndicate of banks led by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,, Toronto
Branch. The credit facilities mature in June 2012. Subject to the agreement of Forest and the
applicable lenders, the size of the credit facilities may be increased by $800 million in the aggregate.

Availability under the credit facilities is based either on certain financial covenants included in the
credit facilities or on the loan value assigned to Forest’s oil and gas properties. If Forest’s corporate
credit rating by Moody’s is “Bal” or higher and “BB+" or higher by S&P, availability under the credit
facilities may, at Forest’s election, be governed by certain financial covenants. Alternatively, if Forest’s
senior unsecured long-term debt credit rating is “Ba2” or lower by Moody’s or “BB” or lower by S&P,
availability under the credit facilities will be governed by a borrowing base (“Global Borrowing Base”).
Currently, the amount available under the credit facilities is determined by the Global Borrowing Base.
Effective June 6, 2007, the syndicate of banks approved a Global Borrowing Base of $1.4 billion, with
the U.S. allocated borrowing base at $1.25 billion and the Canadian allocated borrowing base at
$150 million.

At December 31, 2007, there were outstanding borrowings of $165.0 million under the U.S. credit
facility at a weighted average interest rate of 6.2%, and there were outstanding borrowings of
$129.1 million under the Canadian credit facility at a weighted average interest rate of 5.9%. Forest
also had used the credit facilities for approximately $2.6 million in letters of credit, leaving an unused
borrowing amount under the credit facilities of approximately $703.3 million at December 31, 2007.
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The determination of the Global Borrowing Base is made by the lenders taking into consideration
the estimated value of Forest’s oil and gas properties in accordance with the lenders’ customary
practices for oil and gas loans. This process involves reviewing Forest’s estimated proved reserves and
their valuation. While the Global Borrowing Base is in effect, it is redetermined semi-annually, and the
available borrowing amount could be increased or decreased as a result of such redeterminations. In
addition, Forest and the lenders each have discretion at any time, but not more often than once during
any calendar year, to have the Global Borrowing Base redetermined. A revision to Forest’s reserves
may prompt such a request on the part of the lenders, which could possibly result in a reduction in the
Global Borrowing Base and availability under the credit facilities. If outstanding borrowings under
either of the credit facilities exceed the applicable portion of the Global Borrowing Base, Forest would
be required to repay the excess amount within a prescribed period. If we are unable to pay the excess
amount, it would cause an event of default.

The credit facilities include terms and covenants that place limitations on certain types of activities,
including restrictions or requirements with respect to additional debt, liens, asset sales, hedging
activities, investments, dividends, mergers, and acquisitions. The credit facilities also include several
financial covenants. Availability, interest rates, security requirements, and other terms of borrowing
under the credit facilities will vary based on Forest’s credit ratings and financial condition, as
determined by certain financial tests. In particular, any time that availability is not determined by the
Global Borrowing Base, the amount available and our ability to borrow under the credit facilities is
determined by certain financial covenants. Also, even when availability is determined by the Global
Borrowing Base, certain financial covenants may affect the amount available and Forest’s ability to
borrow amounts under the credit facilities.

The credit facilities include conditions linked to the Company’s credit ratings. The Company’s
ability to raise funds and the cost of any financing activities may be affected by the Company’s credit
ratings at the time any such activities are conducted.

The credit facilities are collateralized by a portion of the Company’s assets. The Company is
required to mortgage, and grant a security interest in, 75% of the present value of its consolidated
proved oil and gas properties. Forest also pledged the stock of several subsidiaries to the lenders to
secure the credit facilities. Under certain circumstances, Forest could be obligated to pledge additional
assets as collateral. If the Company’s corporate credit ratings by Moody’s and S&P improve and meet
pre-established levels, the collateral requirements would not apply and, at the Company’s request, the
banks would release their liens and security interests on the Company’s properties.

Alaska Credit Agreements

On December 8, 2006, Forest, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Forest Alaska Operating LLC
and Forest Alaska Holding LLC (together “Forest Alaska”), issued, on a non-recourse basis to Forest,
term loan financing facilities in the aggregate principal amount of $375 million. The issuance was
comprised of two term loan facilities, including a $250 million first lien credit agreement and a
$125 million second lien credit agreement (together the “Alaska Credit Agreements”). The loan
proceeds were used to fund a $350 million distribution to Forest, which Forest used to pay down its
U.S. credit facility, and to provide Forest Alaska working capital for its operations and pay transaction
fees and expenses.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Forest Alaska made scheduled repayments of
$1.3 million and a voluntary prepayment of $110.0 million on the first licn credit agrecment. In
conjunction with the sale of the Alaska Assets on August 27, 2007, Forest used a portion of the
$400 million cash consideration to repay the remaining $263.7 million principal balance outstanding
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under the Alaska Credit Agreements. During the year ended December 31, 2007, Forest recognized
debt extinguishment costs of $12.2 million associated with payments on the Alaska Credit Agreements.
The debt extinguishment costs included $5.0 million in prepayment premiums on the Alaska Credit
Agreements and $7.2 million of unamortized debt issuance costs.

8% Senior Notes Due 2008

In June 2001, Forest issued $200 million in principal amount of 8% senior notes due June 2008
(the “8% Notes Due 2008”) at par for proceeds of $199.5 million (net of related offering costs). In
October 2001, Forest issued an additional $65 million in principal amount of 8% Notes Due 2008 at
99% of par for proceeds of $63.6 million (net of related offering costs). The 8% Notes due 2008 are
redeemable, at the Company’s option, in whole or in part, at any time at the principal amount, plus
accrued interest, and a make-whole premium. The 8% Notes Due 2008 will mature on June 15, 2008.
Upon maturity, the Company expects to repay all outstanding principal and interest through cash flow
from operations and its existing bank credit facilities.

8% Senior Notes Due 2011

In December 2001, Forest issued $160 million in principal amount of 8% senior notes due 2011
(the “8% Notes Due 2011”) at par for proceeds of $157.5 million (net of related offering costs). In July
2004, Forest issued an additional $125 million in principal amount of 8% Notes Due 2011 at 107.75%
of par for proceeds of $133.3 million (net of related offering costs). The 8% Notes due 2011 are
redeemable, at the Company’s option, in whole or in part, at any time at the principal amount, plus
accrued interest, and a make-whole premium. Interest is payable on June 15 and December 15 of each
year.

7% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2013

In connection with the acquisition of Houston Exploration, Forest assumed $5.8 million of 7%
senior subordinated notes due 2013 (the “7% Notes™) originally issued by Houston Exploration in June
2003. The 7% Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time
on or after June 15, 2008 at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued but unpaid
interest, if any, plus a specified premium that decreases yearly from 3.5% in 2008 to 0% in 2011 and
thereafter. Interest is payable on June 15 and December 15 of each year.

7% Senior Notes Due 2014

In April 2002, Forest issued $150 million in principal amount of 7%9% senior notes due 2014 (the
“7%% Notes”) at 98.09% of par for proceeds of $146.8 million (net of related offering costs). The
7¥:% Notes are redeemable, at the Company’s option, at any time on or after May 1, 2007, at the
approximate redemption rates set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Interest is payable on
May 1 and November 1 of each year.

Redemption Rate

2008 . e e 102.6%
2009 e e 101.3%
2010 and thereafter .............c¢c. ..., 100.0%
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7449 Senior Notes Due 2019

On June 6, 2007, Forest issued $750 million of 7%% senior notes due 2019 (the “7%% Notes™) at
par for net proceeds of approximatety $739.2 million, after deducting initial purchaser discounts.
Interest is payable on June 15 and December 15 of each year. The Company may redeem up to 35% of
the 7V4% Notes at any time prior to June 15, 2010, on one or more occasions, with the proceeds from
certain equity offerings at a redemption price equal to 107.25% of the principal amount, plus accrued
but unpaid interest. The Company may redeem the 7% Notes at any time beginning on or after
June 15, 2012 at the prices set forth below, expressed as percentages of the principal amount
redeemed, plus accrued but unpaid interest:

Redemption Rate

413 1 103.6%
2013 . e e e e, 102.4%
2 1) T S 101.2%
2015 and thereafter . ......... . .. 100.0%

Principal Maturities
Principal maturities of the Company’s debt at December 31, 2007 are as follows (in thousands):

Principal

Maturities
2008 .. e e e e e $265,000
() 1 285,000
2002 . e e 294,126
Thereafter . ... .o v v it e e 905,822

(5) INCOME TAXES:

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes” (“*SFAS 109”).

The table below sets forth the provision for income taxes from continuing operations for the
periods presented.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)

Current:

Federal ... it e e $3,503 1341 3,738
FOTEIBN . . vt v et ettt e (1,798) 140 238
AL + v o v e et e e e e e 4,294 645 (478)

5999 2126 3,498

Deferred:

Federal . ..o e e 58,536 77,445 55,608
e 14 g R (2,098) 3,643 24,310
AL, MEL . . o vttt e ettt et e (42) 7,689 9,942

56,396 88,777 89,860
$62,395 90,903 93,358
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(5) INCOME TAXES: (Continued)

The Company’s current income tax expense for the periods presented was due primarily to federal
alternative minimum tax and to Alaska state income taxes. Deferred income taxes generally result from
recognizing income and expenses at different times for financial and tax reporting. In the U.S., the
largest differences are the tax effects of book recognition of unrealized gains and losses with respect to
derivative instruments and the capitalization of certain development, exploration, and other costs under
the full cost method of accounting. In Canada, differences result in part from accelerated cost recovery
of oil and gas capital expenditures for tax purposes.

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and discontinued operations consists of
the following for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
{In Thousands)
United States federal .. ............. . .. i, $177,999 211,785 168,024
0 =32 o 53,702 45,198 76,902

$231,701 256,983 244,926

A reconciliation of income tax computed by applying the United States statutory federal income
tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{In Thousands)

Federal income tax at 35% of income before income taxes and

discontinued OPerations . . ........ . it e e $ 81,095 89,944 85,724
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits . .. ............ 2,960 7.616 5,759
Change in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets .. .......... (1,831) (1,464) (5,460)
Effect of differing tax rates in Canada . . ........................ (1,517) (160 1,537
Effect of taxable dividends repatriated under Section 965 of the LR.C. .. — — 4275
Effect of Canadian statutory rate reductions . . ... ................. (16,815) (12,292) (3,129)
Effect of state statutory rate reductions . .. ...................... (2,397) (5,706) —
Effects related to the Spin-off .. ... ... ... ... ... ... . L. — 7,209 —
10 T3 900 5,756 4,652
Total INCOME tAX BXPEISE . . - v v vttt et et i eeaennns $ 62,395 90,903 93,358
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(5) INCOME TAXES: {Continued)

The components of the net deferred tax liability by geographical segment at December 31, 2007

and 2006 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts. . ... ... ... ..ol
Investment in PERL common stock . .............. ... ... ...
Accrual for post retirement benefits . ........ ... o 00000
Stock-based compensation accruals under SFAS 123{R) . .........
Net operating loss carryforwards. . . ... ........ . oo
Capital loss carryforward . .. ... ... i
Depletion carryforward . . . ... . e
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward ... ... ... ... ...
Unrealized losses on derivative contracts, net . . ... ... ..o
10 13 173 TR

Total gross deferred tax assets . .. ... .. oo s
Less valuation allowance . .......... . 0 iene i

Net deferred tax @ssets. . v v v v v v v v ot ittt s i m e

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment ... ...... ... e
[ 105 =5 o

Total gross deferred tax liabilities. . .. ....................

Net deferred tax liabilities . . . . . .. . o v it e e e e

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts . . .. ... .. . . ..o
Investment in equity affiliate .. ........... .. ... ...
Accrual for post retirement benefits . ........ ... . o000
Stock-based compensation accruals under SFAS 123(R) ..........
Net operating loss carryforwards . . . ... ... .. .o
Capital loss carryforward . . ... ... ... o
Depletion carryforward ... ... .. L
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward .. ....... ... L.
0] 137 =

Total gross deferred tax assets .. .........cov .
Less valuation allowanCe. . .. ... oo it e e it i v
1

Net deferred tax assets . . . o v v v v e v v e c e ittt

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment .. ...... ... ... i
Unrealized gains on derivative contracts, net. .............. ...
Other . . e e e e

Total gross deferred tax liabilities . . . .. ... ... oo hn
Net deferred tax liabilities . ... ......... .. . o
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December 31, 2007

United States Canada Total

(In Thousands)

$ 443 — 443
1,776 — 1,776
4,703 — 4,703
7,155 — 7,755

142,436 238 142,674
— 3,004 3,004
7,137 — 7,137
10,352 — 10,352
29,394 — 29,394
15,537 1,817 17,354

219,533 5059 22459
(27,036) (811) (27,847

192,497 4,248 196,745

(932,508)  (92,401) (1,024,909)
— (1,409) (1,409)

(932,508)  (93,810) (1,026,318)
$(740011)  (89,562)  (829,573)

December 31, 2006
United States Canada Total
{In Thousands}

$ 487 — 487
1,378 — 1,378
4415 — 4415
2,155 — 2,155

157,084 621 157,705
113 3,891 4,004
7,455 - 7,455
3,478 — 3,478
9,762 969 10,731

186,327 5481 191,808
(27,036)  (2642) (29,678)

159,29 2,839 162,130

(264,137)  (78,786) (342,923)
(24,795) —  (24,795)
—  (1,276)  (1,276)

(288,932)  (80,062) (368,994)
$(129,641)  (77,223) (206,864)




(5) INCOME TAXES: (Continued)

The net deferred tax liabilities are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows:

December 31, 2007

United States Canada Total
(In Thousands}
Current deferred tax assels . . .. . .. vt mun i e $ 23,854 — 23,854
Non-current deferred tax liabilities ... ...................... (763,863) (89,562) (853,427)
Net deferred tax liabilities. . . . ........ ... inn... $(740,011) (89,562) (829,573}
December 31, 2006
United States  Canada Total
(In Thousands)
Current deferred tax liabilities. . . ... .. ... .. ... ..., ..... $ (14,907 —  (14907)
Non-current deferred tax liabilities ......................... (114,734) (77,223) (191,957)
Net deferred tax liabilities. . .. ...... ... ... ... ... ... .. $(129,641) (77,223) (206,864)

U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards at December 31, 2007 were approximately
$427.1 million. Of this amount, approximately $141.4 million was acquired by the Company in a merger
that occurred in 2000, approximately $38.9 million was acquired by the Company in its acquisitions of
other corporate entities in 2004 and 2005, and $61.8 million was acquired by the Company in the
Houston Exploration acquisition in June 2007. The Company’s federal net operating losses are
scheduled to expire in years 2009 through 2024.

The Company’s ability to use some of its net operating loss carryforwards and certain other tax
attributes to reduce current and future U.S. federal taxable income is subject to limitations under the
Internal Revenue Code. In particular, the Company’s ability to utilize such carryforwards is limited due
to the occurrence of “Ownership Changes™ within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue
Code. The Company has established a valuation allowance against its net operating loss carryforwards
in the amount of $27.0 million, recognizing the effects of Section 382 on its ability to ever realize these
carryforwards.

In accordance with SFAS 123(R}, windfall deductions from the exercise of stock-based
compensation awards that do not result in a reduction in income taxes payable, should not be recorded.
The Company uses the “with and without method” for realization of the tax benefits of the windfall
deductions. As a result, NOLs related to the windfall deductions of $21.0 million will be recorded in
capital surplus when realized as a reduction of income taxes payable.

The net changes in the total valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006,
and 2005 were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
{In Thousands)

Net decrease in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
attributable to reassessment of the amount of tax losses of acquired

subsidiary expected to be utilized . ... ....... .. ... . o oo $  —  (8337) (36,608)
Decrease in the valuation allowance for net expiring operating loss

carryforwards . . . ... —  (9967) (3,483)
Other decreases in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets . ... .. (1,831) (1,465) (2,443)
Net decrease in the valuation allowanee . ........................ $(1,831) (19,769) (42,534)
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(5) INCOME TAXES: {Continued)

The decrease in the valuation allowance for 2007 of $1.8 million relates to adjustments to
Canadian tax loss carryforwards,

$18.4 million of the decrease in valuation allowance for deferred tax assets in 2006 relates to tax
loss carryforwards of an acquired subsidiary which were previously provided against. $10 million of this
amount relates to tax loss carryforwards that expired unused in 2006. In 2006, the Company determined
that it was more likely than not that $8.4 million would be realized in the future and this amount was
released with a corresponding adjustment to capital surplus. The other decreases in the valuation
allowance of $1.4 million relate to adjustments to state and Canadian tax loss carryforwards.

Though not included in the tables or discussion above, the Company has a net deferred tax asset
of $2.8 million in international locations. The Company has, in prior years, established a valuation
allowance equal to the $2.8 million net deferred tax asset as the Company currently does not have
production in the related international locations. The net deferred tax asset is composed of a deferred
tax asset related to loss carryforwards (with carryover periods ranging from.5 years to an indefinite
period) in the amount of $18.6 million, net of a deferred tax liability related to property and equipment
of $15.8 million.

The Alternative Minimum Tax (“AMT”) credit carryforward available to reduce future U.S. federal
regular taxes aggregated $10.4 million at December 31, 2007. This amount may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Canadian tax pools relating to the exploration, development, and production of il and natural gas
that are available to reduce future Canadian federal income taxes aggregated approximately
$309.9 million ($304 million CDN) at December 31, 2007. The Canadian tax pools include
approximately $45.4 miltion ($44.5 milfion CDN) acquired from predecessor companies that are limited
in use to income derived from assets acquired. These tax pool balances are deductible on a declining
balance basis ranging from 4% to 100% of the balance annually, and are composed of costs incurred
for oil and gas properties, and developmental and exploration expenditures, as follows:

2007 2006

(In Thousands of
Canadian Dollars)

Canadian capital cost allowance (deductible at 4% - 45% annually) ........... $100,652 76,051
Canadian development expense (deductible at 30% annually). .. ............. 146,927 130,792
Canadian exploration expense (deductible at 100% annually) . .. ............. 8,481 1,704
Canadian oil and gas property expense (deductible at 10% annually) .......... 47,941 46,387

$304,001 254,934

Other Canadian tax pools and loss carryforwards available to reduce future Canadian federal
income taxes were approximately $18.0 million ($17.7 million CDN) at December 31, 2007, of which
$17.1 million may be carried forward indefinitely.

The Company’s Canadian operations generated book income (after tax) of approximately
$57.6 million during 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s Canadian operations had reported
accumulated undistributed book earnings of approximately $140 million. The Company has not
provided deferred tax liabilities with respect to U.S. income tax or Canadian withholding taxes related
to these undistributed earnings. During 2007, all cash flow generated in Canada was reinvested in
Canadian capital expenditures. Based on its current plans, the Company intends that future cash flows
generated by Canadian operations will continue to be reinvested in Canadian exploration, development,
or acquisition activities or utilized to satisfy external and intercompany debt of the Canadian
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(5) INCOME TAXES: (Continued)

operations. Should the Company distribute Canadian earnings, we may be subject to U.S. income taxes
and Canadian withholding taxes. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of such taxes that may be
payable if such a distribution occurs. The Company currently has no foreign tax credits to offset such
taxes.

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”,
an interpretation of SFAS 109, “dccounting for Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”), on January 1, 2007. As a
result of the implementation of FIN 48 the Company recognized a liability for uncertain tax benefits of
approximately $1.0 million, which was accounted for as a reduction to the January 1, 2007 balance of
retained earnings. The adoption of FIN 48 increased the Company’s previously recognized liability for
uncertain tax benefits of $.5 million to $1.5 million. The $1.5 million liability does not relate to
uncertainties about the timing of items of income or deduction and would affect the Company’s
effective tax rate if recognized in the Company’s income tax provision. The Company records interest
accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in other expense, to the
extent they apply. The Company recognized no significant interest or penalties at the date of its
adoption of FIN 48.

There was no change in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits during the year ended
December 31, 2007. In conjunction with the Houston Exploration acquisition, Forest assumed an
additional liability for uncertain tax benefits of $1.6 million. The Company does not expect any
significant change in the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits within the twelve months ending
December 31, 2008.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the total amounts of gross unrecognized
tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2007 . ... ... ... ... . .. e $ 487
Increases in tax positions for prior years at January 1, 2007 ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ..... 1,040
Increases in tax positions for acquired entities . . ..... ... ... ... ... .. L i 1,640
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31,2007 . ... ... .. ... ... . . . ... ... $3,167

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax
rate is $1.5 million, net of estimated accrued interest and penalties.

The statute of limitations is closed for the Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns for years
ending before and including December 31, 2003. Pre-acquisition returns of acquired businesses are also
closed for tax years ending before and including December 31, 2003. However, the Company has
utilized, and will continue to utilize, net operating losses (“NOLs”) {including NOLs of acquired
businesses) in its open tax years. The earliest available NOLs were generated in the tax year beginning
January 1, 1989, but are potentially subject to adjustment by the federal tax authorities in the tax year
in which they are utilized. Thus, the Company’s earliest U.S. federal income tax return that is closed to
potential audit adjustments is the tax year ending December 31, 1988. The Company’s most recent
Canadian income tax return that is closed to potential audit adjustments is the tax year ended
December 31, 2002.
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(6) SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common Stock

At December 31, 2007, the Company had 200 million shares of commeon stock (“Common Stock™),
par value $.10 per share, authorized.

Rights Agreement

In October 1993, the Board of Directors adopted a shareholders’ rights plan and entered into the
Rights Agreement. The Company distributed one Preferred Share Purchase Right (the “Rights”) for
each outstanding share of the Company’s Common Stock. The Rights are exercisable only if a person
or group acquires 20% or more of the Company’s Common Stock or announces a tender offer that
would result in ownership by a person or group of 20% or more of the Common Stock. In October
2003, the Board of Directors of Forest entered into the First Amended and Restated Rights Agreement
and issued rights that will expire on October 29, 2013, unless earlier exchanged or redeemed, that
entitle the holder thereof to purchase 1/100th of a preferred share at an initial purchase price of $120.

(7y STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic
value method prescribed in APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations. Under APB Opinion
No. 25, no compensation expense was recognized for stock options issued to employees if the grant
price equaled or was above the market price on the date of the option grant. Effective January 1, 2006,
the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective method. Under
this method, compensation cost is recorded for all unvested stock options, restricted stock, and
phantom stock units beginning in the period of adoption and prior period financial statements are not
restated. Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R), stock-based compensation is
measured at the grant date based on the value of the awards and the value is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period (usually the vesting period).

The table below sets forth total stock-based compensation recorded during 2007 and 2006 under
the provisions of SFAS 123(R}, the remaining unamortized amounts and the weighted average
amortization period remaining as of December 31, 2007. Approximately $9.7 million of the
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(7} STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION: (Continued)

$22.0 million of total stock-based compensation for 2006 was attributable to a partial settlement of the
Company’s restricted stock awards and phantom stock unit awards in connection with the Spin-off.

Phantom Stock
Stock Options  Restricted Stock Units Total"

(Im Thousands)

Year ended December 31, 2007:

Total stock-based compensation costs ... ... $ 5,006 10,142 2,177 17,325
Less: stock-based compensation costs
capitalized . . .......... ... ..., (1,485) (3,920) (1,381) (6,786)
Stock-based compensation costs expensed ...  § 3,521 6,222 796 10,539 ‘
Unamortized stock-based compensation costs
as of December 31,2007 ............... $ 5,566 29,431 5,362 40,359
Weighted average amortization period
TEMAININg . .. ..ot i e e 1.8 years 1.9 years 1.8 years 1.9 years
Year ended December 31, 2006: ‘
Total stock-based compensation costs ... ... $ 5348 14,551 1,890 21,789
Less: stock-based compensation costs |
capitalized . . .. ........ ... .. ... ..., (1,645) (5,279) (1,194) (8,118) '
Stock-based compensation costs expensed . .. § 3,703 9272 696 13,671

() The Company also maintains an employee stock purchase plan (which is not included in the table above) under which
$.4 million and $.3 million of compensation cost was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006, respectively, under the provisions of SFAS 123(R).

@ Based on the closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on December 31, 2007,

SFAS 123(R) required the Company to estimate forfeitures in calculating the cost related to stock-
based compensation as opposed to recognizing forfeitures and the corresponding reduction in expense
as the forfeitures occur. The cumulative adjustment recorded related to this change of approximately
$.1 million was recorded as a reduction in general and administrative expense and capitalized oil and '
gas properties during 2006 and was not presented separately in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations. The impact of adopting SFAS 123(R) as of January 1, 2006 resulted in a decrease to net
earnings of approximately $1.9 million, or $.03 per basic and diluted share, for the year ending
December 31, 2006.

Equity Incentive Plans

In 2007, the Company adopted the Forest Oil Corporation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2007
Plan”) under which qualified and non-qualified stock options, restricted stock, phantom stock units, and
other awards may be granted to employees, consultants, and non-employee directors. The aggregate
number of shares of Common Stock that the Company may issue under the 2007 Plan may not exceed
2.7 million shares. The exercise price of an option shall not be less than the fair market value of one
share of Common Stock on the date of grant. Options granted under the 2007 Plan generally vest in
increments of 25% on each of the first four anniversary dates of the date of grant and have a term of
ten years. Restricted stock awards generally vest three years from the date of the grant. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company had 2,166,985 shares available to be issued under the 2007 Plan.

In 2001, the Company adopted the Forest Oil Corporation 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001
Plan”) under which qualified and non-qualified stock options, restricted stock, and other awards may be
granted to employees, consultants, and non-employee directors. In 2003, the Company amended the
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(7Y STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION: (Continued)

2001 Plan to increase the number of shares reserved for issuance. The aggregate number of shares of
Common Stock that the Company may issue under the 2001 Plan may not exceed 5.0 million shares.
The exercise price of an option shall not be less than the fair market value of one share of Common
Stock on the date of grant. Options under the 2001 Plan generally vest in increments of 25% on each
of the first four anniversary dates of the date of grant and have a term of ten years. Restricted stock
awards generally vest three years from the date of the grant. As of December 31, 2007, the Company
had 112,975 shares available to be issued under the 2001 Plan. As a resuit of the Spin-off, outstanding
stock options and the shares available for grant for all employees under the 2001 Plan were adjusted to
reflect the economic effect of the Spin-off.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes stock option activity in the Company’s stock-based compensation
plans for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005. During 2006 the number of shares and
the exercise price of the outstanding stock options were adjusted so that the fair value of each award
was the same immediately before and after the Spin-off, in accordance with the anti-dilution provisions
in the 2001 Plan and 1996 Plan.

Weighted Aggregate

Average Intrinsie Number of
Number of Exercise Value (In Shares
Shares Price Thousands)!?  Exercisable
Outstanding at January 1, 2005 .............. ... 3,770,812 $26.82 $18,024 1,841,439
Granted at fairvalue. . ..... ... .. ... ... ... ... 180,700 38.82
Exercised . ....... ... . ... ... iiiiiinia (1,078,067y  26.32 13,469
Cancelled . . ... ... .. .. e (295,210 2771
Outstanding at December 31, 2005. . ............. 2,578,235 27.78 45,889 1,348,599
Granted . . .. ... . e e — —
Exercised .. ... i e e (58,337) 2871 1,255
Cancelled . . ....... ... .. ... . . . (98,587) 3091
Qutstanding at March 2,2006 .................. 2,421,311 27.63 55,723
Adjustment to give effect to Spin-off ... .... ... ... 1,176,804 —
Granted . ... . e e et 55,000 36.61
Exercised ..........couni i, (231,470) 1896 3,536
Cancelled . ......... ... ... i (93,366) 20.94
QOutstanding at December 31,2006, ... ........... 3,328,279 18.80 46,279 2,338,751
Granted . ... .0t e e 666,655 42.16
Exercised .......... ... . o i, (652,220)  18.07 15,610
Cancelled . .. ... .. i i i e (401,208) 40.07
Outstanding at December 31,2007 .. .. ........... 2,941,506 21.35 87,816 2,275,314

) The intrinsic value of a stock option is the amount by which the current market value of the underlying stock exceeds the
exercise price of the option.

Stock options are granted at the fair market value of one share of Common Stock on the date of
grant. Options granted to non-employee directors vest immediately and options granted to officers and
other employees vest ratably over four years. All outstanding options had a term of ten years at the
date of grant.
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(7Y STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION: (Continued)

The fair value of each option granted in 2007, 2006, and 2005 was estimated uvsing the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The following assumptions were used to compute the weighted average
fair market value of options granted during the periods presented:

2007 2006 2005
Expected life of options . . ......... .. ..., .. ..., 5.4 years 10 years 5 years
Risk free interest rates . .. ....... ...y 4.65% - 5.13% 4.64% - 5.13% 3.64% - 4.45%
Estimated volatility . . . . ......... ... ... ... ... 32% 45% 28%
Dividendyield ... .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Weighted average fair market value of options granted
duringtheyear ... ......... ... .. .. ... ... ... $16.14 $23.35 $12.77
The following table summarizes information about options outstanding at December 31, 2007:
Stock Options Qutstanding Stock Options Exercisable
Weighted Aggregate Aggregate
Average Weighted  Intrinsic Weighted  Intrinsic
Remaining  Average Value Average Value
Range of Number of Contractual Exercise (In Number Exercise (In
Exercise Prices Options Life (Years) Price Thousands) Exercisable Price Thousands)
$841-1682 ............ 716,748 4.82 $15.63 $25,496 716,748 $1563  $25496
16.83 -18.19 ............ 747.590 5.31 17.33 25,324 603,839 17.44 20,389
1826 -2047 .. .......... 230,800 3.56 19.82 7,244 215,758 19.83 6,769
2060-2060 ............ 612,760 6.89 20.60 18,754 432,492 20.60 13,236
2062 4457 ... L., 633,608 7.62 33.85 10,998 306,477 28.28 7,025
$841-4457 ... ... .. 2,941,506 5.88 21.35 $87,816 2,275,314 19.16  §72,915

Restricted Stock and Phantom Stock Units

The following table summarizes the restricted stock and phantom stock unit activity for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005. The grant date fair value of the restricted stock and
phantom stock units was determined by reference to the average of the high and low stock price of a
share of Common Stock as published by the New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant.

Restricted Stock Phantom Stock Units
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Number of  Grant Date Number of  Grant Date

Shares Fair Value!® Shares Fair ValueV
Unvested at January 1, 2005 ... ... . .............. 95,600 $29.44 —_ ' —
Awarded ... ..., . ... e e, 548,600 45.82 72,350 46.07
Vested . ... o (600) 30.61 — -
Forfeited . ....... ... .. .. i, (9,000) 30.61 — —
Unvested at December 31, 2005 . ................. 634,000 43.58 72,350 46.07
Awarded ... ... e 38,200 39.24 13,900 36.24
Vested . ... ... . i e, (200 46.07 — —
Forfeited ... ...... ... ., (44,550; 45,95 (8,300) 46.07
Unvested at December 31,2006 .................. 627,450 43.15 77,950 44.32
Awarded . ... .. .. .. e 784,700 4217 90,700 41.01
Vested ... (82,450) 30.26 — —
Forfeited . ..... ... ittt iy (48,700) 42.20 (4,150) 4417

Unvested at December 31, 2007 ... ............... 1,281,000 43.41 164,500 42.50

Y These per-share fair values represent the actual grant date fair value and have not been adjusted to give effect to the
Spin-off. In connection with the Spin-off, holders of restricted stock awards received 0.8093 unrestricted shares of MERI
for each share of restricted stock. Accordingly, compensation cost of approximately $8.4 million was recorded in the first
quarter of 2006 as a partial settlement of the restricted stock award, or approximately $13.00 per share. In addition, cash
bonuses totaling $1.2 million were paid to Canadian employees in the first quarter of 2006 who held phantom stock units
on that date representing the per-share value of the MERI shares received by each holder of restricted stock.
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The restricted stock and phantom stock units generally vest on the third anniversary of the date of
the award, but may vest earlier upon a qualifying disability, death, retirement, or a change in control of
the Company in accordance with the term of the underlying agreement. The phantom stock units can
be settled in cash, shares of Common Stock, or a combination of both. The phantom stock units have
been accounted for as a liability within the consolidated financial statements. The Company recorded
amortization of deferred stock-based compensation costs of $1.3 million during the year ended
December 31, 2005 related to these equity awards.

Emplovee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has a 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), under which it is
authorized to issue up to 300,000 shares of Common Stock. Employees who are regularly scheduled to
work more than 20 hours per week and more than five months in any calendar year may participate in
the ESPP. Currently, under the terms of the ESPP, employees may elect each calendar quarter to have
up to 15% of their annual base earnings withheld to purchase shares of Common Stock, up to a limit
of $25,000 of Common Stock per calendar year. The purchase price of a share of Common Stock
purchased under the ESPP is equal to 85% of the lower of the beginning-of-quarter or end-of-quarter
market price. ESPP participants are restricted from selling the shares of Common Stock purchased
under the ESPP for a period of six months after purchase. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had
128,876 shares available for issuance under the ESPP.

The fair value of each stock purchase right granted under the ESPP during 2007, 2006, and 2005
was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following assumptions were used to
compute the weighted average fair market value of purchase rights granted during the periods
presented:

2007 2006 2005
Expectedoption life .. ..................... 3 months 3 months 3 months
Risk free interestrates . . ................... 392% - 5.07% 4.16% - 5.08% 2.32% - 3.61%
Estimated volatility . . . .. ....... ... ... ... .. 26% 21% 26%
Dividendyield .................... ... ... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Weighted average fair market value of purchase
rightsgranted .. ... .................... $10.88 $9.38 $12.11

Pro Forma Effects

Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based compensation plans been determined using
the fair value of the options at the grant date as prescribed by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
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(7) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION: (Continued)

Based Compensation,” the Company’s pro forma net earnings and earnings per common share would
have been as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2005

(In Thousands,
Except Per Share

Amounts)

Net earnings, as reported . . . . ... .. i i i $151,568
Add: Stock-based employee compensation included in reported net earnings,

REL Of 1aX . . e e 457
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, netof tax. .. ........... (2,709)
Proformanetearnings . ........ ... 0.ttt $149,316
Basic earnings per common share:

Asteported . . ... e $ 247

Proforma ... ... .. ... . e 243
Diluted earnings per common share:

Asreported . . ... .. e e e § 241

Proforma . ... ... . .. e e 2.37

(8) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
Pension Plans and Postretirement Benefits

The Company has a qualified defined benefit pension plan that covers certain employees and
former employees in the United States (the “Forest Pension Plan™). The Company also has a
non-qualified unfunded supplementary retirement plan (the “Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan”
or “SERP”) that provides certain retired executives with defined retirement benefits in excess of
qualified plan limits imposed by federal tax law. The Forest Pension Plan and the SERP were curtailed
and all benefit accruals under both plans were suspended effective May 31, 1991. In addition, as a
result of The Wiser Oil Company acquisition in 2004, Forest assumed a noncontributory defined benefit
pension plan {the “Wiser Pension Plan™). The Wiser Pension Plan was curtailed and all benefit accruals
were suspended effective December 11, 1998. In October 2000, the Wiser Pension Plan was amended to
provide additional benefits by implementing a cash balance plan for the then current employees of
Wiser. In December 2004, all benefit accruals under the Wiser Pension Plan were suspended. In
conjunction with the Houston Exploration acquisition in June 2007, Forest assumed a non-qualified
unfunded supplementary retirement plan (the “Houston Exploration SERP”). The Houston
Exploration SERP was curtailed and all benefit accruals were suspended effective January 1, 2008. The
Forest Pension Plan, the Wiser Pension Plan, the SERP, and the Houston Exploration SERP are
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Plans.”

In addition to the Plans described above, Forest also provides postretirement benefits to employees
in the U.S. and Canada, their beneficiaries, and covered dependents. These benefits, which consist
primarily of medical benefits payable on behalf of retirees in the U.S. and Canada, are referred to as
“Postretirement Benefits” throughout this Note. The postretirement benefits in Canada are closed to
new participants.
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(8) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)
Investments of the Plans

The weighted average asset allocations of the Forest Pension Plan and Wiser Pension Plan at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 are set forth in the following table:

Forest Wiser
Pension Plan Pension Plan
2007 2006 2007 2006
Fixed income securities . . . .. . .. i e e e 33%  33% 29% 28%
Equity securities .. ... ..o i e e 66% 64% 0% 67%
01 4T 1% 3% _1% 5%

0% 100% 100% 100%

The overall investment goal for pension plan assets is to achieve an investment return that allows
plan assets to achieve the assumed actuarial interest rate and to exceed the rate of inflation. In order
to manage risk, in terms of volatility, the portfolios are designed to avoid a loss of 20% during any
single year and to express no more volatility than experienced by the S&P 500 Stock Index.

The Plans’ assets are invested with a view toward the long term in order to fulfill the obligations
promised to participants as well as to control future levels of funding. The current targeted goal for
equity securities exposure is 65% of plan assets at market value. There is no specified minimum equity
exposure for any point in time. The current targeted goal for fixed income exposure is 35% of the plan
assets at market value. There is no specified minimum fixed income exposure for any point in time.
This asset allocation is designed 1o achieve an appropriate balance between capital appreciation,
preservation of capital, and current income.

Expected Benefit Payments

In the future, it is anticipated that the Company will be required to provide benefit payments from
the Forest Pension Plan trust and the Wiser Pension Plan trust and fund benefit payments directly for
the SERP and the Houston Exploration SERP and the other postretirement benefits plans in 2008
through 2012 and in the aggregate for the years 2013 through 2017 in the following amounts:

2013-
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2017

(In Thousands)

Forest Pension Plan™ . .. ..... ... ... ... ...... $2,407 27397 2,378 2344 2293 10,837
SERP . ... 61 59 56 54 51 206
Wiser Pension Plan®™ . .. ............ ... ... ... 825 822 821 814 803 4,033
Houston Exploration SERP .. ................. 100 98 96 94 91 408
Postretirement benefits (U.S.) . ... ...... .. .. .. 574 566 569 575 554 2,723
Postretirement benefits (Canada) ............... 51 54 59 62 66 387

() Benefit payments expected to be made to participants in the Forest Pension Plan and Wiser Pension Plan are expected to
be paid out of funds held in trusts established for each plan.

Forest anticipates that it will make contributions in 2008 totaling $.2 million to the Plans and
$.5 million for the Postretirement Benefit plans, net of retiree contributions and expected medicare
reimbursements, as applicable.

The following tables set forth the estimated benefit obligations, the fair value of the assets, and the
funded status of the Plans and the Postretirement Benefit plans at December 31, 2007 and 2006.
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(8) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)

Amounts for the Forest Pension Plan, the SERP, the Houston Exploration SERP, and the Wiser
Pension Plan are combined in the “Pension Benefits” columns.

Benefit Obligations

Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
{In Thousands)
Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year . ... ........... 340,556 42,804 8457 10,297
ACQUISILION . . . . ... e e 1,064 —_ 585 -—
BeIVICE COSt . .. i e e e — — 467 580
Interest COSE . . . . L e e e e 2,247 2,192 453 453
Actuarial Bain. . ... . e e (164) (1,257) (1,210 (271)
Effect of curtailment. . . ........ ... .. . ... . ... — — —  (2,092)
Benefitspaid ........ ... .. i (3,282) (3,183) (520) (584)
Medicare reimbursements .. ........ ... ... ... . ... ... ..., — —_ 57 7
Retiree contributions .. .......... ... ... .., — — 67 68
Impact of foreign currency exchangerate . . ... .............. — — 220 (1)
Benefit obligation at the end of theyear .. ................. $40,421 40556 8576 8,457
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
(In Thousands)

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year .. ... ..... ... $37.,615 34472 — —
Actual return on plan assets .. ... ........ ... .. ...l 2875 3,761 — —
Retiree contributions . ........ ... ... . .. . . o, — — 67 68
Medicare reimbursements . . .. ... ... .. ... e — — 57 7
Employer contribution . ......... .. ... .. ... . L, 623 2,565 396 509
Benefitspaid . ........ ... .. .. ... . . . e (3,282) (3,183) (520) (584)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year. . .. .. ... .. ..., $37,831 37,615 — —
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(8) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)
Funded Status

Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Excess of benefit obligation over plan assets. . ............... $(2,590) (2,941) (8,576) (BA457)
Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain) ........... ... .. ... .... 9,169 10422 (1,326) (271)
Net amount recognized . . ... ....cvvir e $ 6,579 7481 (9,902) (8,728)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:
Accrued benefit liability . ... ... .. .. . . o oo oL $(2,590) (2,941) (8,576) (B,457)
Accumulated other comprehensive income—net actuarial loss
(BAIN) . . . e 9,169 10422 (1,326) (271)

Net amount recognized . . . ... ... ... ... $ 6579 7481 (9,902) (8,728)

The Company adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 106,
and I132(R),” and initially applied them to the funded status of its defined benefit post retirement plans
as of December 31, 2006. The initial recognition of the funded status of its defined benefit post
retirement plans resulted in an increase in accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’
equity of $.1 million.

The following table sets forth the projected and accumulated benefit obligations for the pension
plans compared to the fair value of the plan assets for the periods indicated.

December 31,

' . T 2007 2006
mousands)

Projected benefit obligation .................... ... ... .. $40,421 40,556

Accumulated benefit obligation . . .. ... ... . o oL 40,421 40,556

Fairvalue of planassets . . . ...... .. .. oo, 37.831 37,615
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(8) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)
Annual Periodic Expense and Actuarial Assumptions

The following tables set forth the components of the net periodic cost and the underlying weighted
average actuarial assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)

Servicecost . ....... ... ... $ — — — 467 580 671
Interestcost . . ............... 2,247 2,192 2,325 453 453 493
Curtailment gain®™ . . . .. ........ — —_ — — (1,851) —
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . (2,562}  (2,430)  (2,346) — — —
Recognized actuarial loss (gain) . . . . 778 899 753 (35) — —
Amortization of prior service cost . . . — 10 — — — —_
Total net periodic expense (benefit) . . $ 463 671 732 885 (818) 1,164
Assumptions used to determine net

periodic expense:
Discountrate ................ 5.64% & 5.90%  5.32% 575% 398% & 5.75% 4.72% & 5.46% 5.75% & 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . 7% 1% & 8% 7% & 8% nfa n/a n/a
Assumptions used to determine

benefit obligations:
Discountrate .. .............. 5.77% 5.64% 532% 5.39% & 6.02% 3.98% & 5.75% 4.72% & 5.46%

I} Forest recognized a $1.9 million curtailment gain in connection with the Spin-off on March 2, 2006, This gain was recorded
as a reduction in general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2006,

The discount rates used to determine benefit obligations were determined by adjusting the
Moody’s Aa Corporate bond yield to reflect the difference between the duration of the future
estimated cash flows of the Plans and the other postretirement benefit obligations and the duration of
the Moody’s Aa index.

The Company estimates that net periodic expense for the year ended December 31, 2008, will
include expense of $.5 million resulting from the amortization of its related accumulated actuarial foss
included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2007.

For measurement purposes, the annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health
care benefits for the U.S. Postretirement Benefits was held constant at 5.50% during 2007 and
thereafter. The annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits for the
Canadian Postretirement Benefits was assumed to be 4% per year for the dental plan; 5% per year for
Provincial health care; and 9% in 2008, 8% in 2009, 7% in 2010, and 6% thereafter for the medical
plan.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
postretirement benefits. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would
have the following effects for 2007:

Postretirement Benefits

1% Increase 1% Decrease
(In Thousands)
Effect on service and interest cost components . ......... $ 186 (143)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation . ... ......... $1,223 (988)
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(8) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (Continued)
Employee Retirement Savings Plans

Forest sponsors a qualified tax-deferred savings plan (“Retirement Savings Plan”) for its employees
in the U.S. in accordance with the provisions of Section 401(k} of the Internal Revenue Code.
Employees may defer up to 80% of their compensation, subject to certain limitations. From January 1,
2004 through December 31, 2007, the Company matching percentage was 7% of eligible employee
compensation. Effective January 1, 2008, the Company matching percentage increased to 8%. Expenses
associated with the Company’s contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan totaled $2.2 million in
2007, $1.9 million in 2006, and $2.2 million in 2005. In each of these years, the Company matched
employee contributions in cash.

Canadian Forest provides a savings plan (“Canadian Savings Plan”) that is available to all of its
employees. Employees may contribute up to 9% of their compensation, subject to certain limitations,
with Canadian Forest matching 4% of the eligible employee compensation. The expense associated with
Canadian Forest’s contributions to the plan was approximately $.3 million in 2007 and $.2 million in
each of 2006 and 2005. All employees of Canadian Forest also participate in a defined contribution
pension plan (the “Defined Contribution Pension Plan”). The expense associated with the contributions
made by Canadian Forest to the Defined Contribution Pension Plan was $.3 million in 2007, $.2 million
in 2006, and $.3 million in 2005.

Deferred Compensation Plan

Forest has an Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Executive Plan”) pursuant to which
certain officers may participate and defer a portion of their compensation after contributing the
maximum allowable amount to the Retirement Savings Plan. Prior to 2006, the Company recorded a
liability for matching contributions and accrued interest on each participant’s account balance at the
rate of 1% per month. Effective January 1, 2006 the interest rate was changed to .5% per month. The
expense associated with the Company’s matching contributions to the Executive Plan and interest was
$.2 million in 2007, $.3 million in 2006, and $.4 million in 2005. Beginning on January 1, 2007, the
Executive Plan was amended and under the modified structure, participants may designate how
deferred amounts are deemed to be invested. There are several investment options available to the
participants. As a result, the fair value of the liability recorded with respect to the deferred amounts
will fluctuate due to gains and losses associated with investment options selected by the participants.
The fair value of amounts deferred (including accrued interest) under the Executive Plan was
approximately $3.1 million and $2.4 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

In conjunction with the Houston Exploration acquisition, Forest assumed Houston Exploration’s
deferred compensation plan (the “Houston Exploration Plan™). The Houston Exploration Plan was
frozen to new employees, and all deferrals into the plan {including matching contributions) were
suspended on January 1, 2008, The assets of the Houston Exploration Plan are held by a grantor trust
and are invested, at the direction of the employee, in various investment funds. At December 31, 2007,
the fair value of the assets held in the trust {the main component of which is trust owned life insurance
policies) was $10.5 million. The expense associated with the Company’s matching contributions to the
Houston Exploration Plan was $.1 million in 2007. The fair value of the amounts deferred under the
Houston Exploration Plan was $7.4 million at December 31, 2007.

Split Dollar Life Insurance

The Company provides life insurance benefits for certain retirees and former executives under split
dollar life insurance plans. Under the life insurance plans, the Company is assigned a portion of the
benefits. No current employees are covered by these plans.
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(9) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND FIXED-PRICE CONTRACTS:
Derivative Instruments

Forest periodically enters into derivative instruments such as swap, basis swap, and collar
agreements in order to provide a measure of stability to Forest’s cash flows in an environment of
volatile oil and gas prices and to manage the exposure to commodity price risk. Forest’s commodity
derivative instruments generally serve as effective economic hedges of commodity price exposure.
Various circumstances can cause commodity hedges to not qualify for cash flow hedge accounting either
at the inception of the hedge or during the term of the hedge. When the criteria for cash flow hedge
accounting are not met or when cash flow hedge accounting is not elected, realized gains and losses
(i.e., cash settlements) are recorded in other income and expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Similarly, changes in the fair value of the derivative instruments are recorded as unrealized
gains or losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. In contrast, cash settlements for
derivative instruments that qualify for cash flow hedge accounting are recorded as additions to or
reductions of revenues while changes in fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized, to the extent the
hedge is effective, in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings.

As a result of production deferrals experienced in the Gulf of Mexico related to hurricanes Katrina
and Rita, Forest was required to discontinue cash flow hedge accounting on some of its natural gas and
oil hedges during the third and fourth quarters of 2005. Additionally, as a result of the Spin-off on
March 2, 2006, additional commodity swaps and collars formerly designated as cash flow hedges of
offshore Gulf of Mexico production also no longer qualified for hedge accounting. Because a significant
portion of the Company’s derivatives no longer qualified for hedge accounting and to increase clarity in
its financial statements, the Company elected to discontinue hedge accounting for all of its commodity
derivatives beginning in March 2006. This change in reporting has not impacted the Company’s
reported cash flows, although the results of operations have been affected by mark-to-market gains and
losses, which fluctuate with volatile oil and gas prices. Subsequent to March 2006, the Company has
recognized all mark-to-market gains and losses in earnings, rather than deferring such amounts in
accumulated other comprehensive income included in shareholders’ equity.

The table below summarizes the realized and unrealized gains and losses Forest incurred related to
its oil and gas derivative instruments for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
{In Thousands)

Realized losses on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges™ ... .. .. $ — 43,813 186,442
Realized (gains) losses on derivatives not designated as cash flow

hedges@® (75,491) 23,864 35,390
Ineffectiveness recognized on derivatives designated as cash flow

hedges ..o e —  (5573) 5147
Unrealized losses (gains) on derivatives not designated as cash flow

hedges® . 112,778 (78,056} 15,626
Total realized and unrealized losses (gains) recorded . . ............. $ 37,287 (15,952} 243,205

@ Included in “Revenues” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Realized gains or losses on derivatives that had
previously been designated as cash flow hedges at the time the Company elected to discontinue hedge accounting were
required to be included as part of “Revenues”.

@ Included in “Other income and expense” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

G} Includes total proceeds of $6.9 million for two oil swap agreements that the Company unwound in 2007, which covered
1,000 Bbl per day in 2009 and 500 Bbl per day in 2010.
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(9) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND FIXED-PRICE CONTRACTS: (Continued)

The tables below set forth Forest’s outstanding commodity swaps and collars as of December 31,
2007:

Swaps
Natural Gas (NYMEX HH) Oil (NYMEX WTI)
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Bbtu Hedged Price Barrels Hedged Price

Per Day*! per MMBtu Per Day per Bbl

Calendar 2008 . .. ...... ... ... ... . ... 50 $8.38 6,500 $69.72
Calendar 2009 . ........ ... ... .. i — — 4,500 69.01
Calendar 2010 . . .......... ... .. ... — — 1,500 72.95

(10 Bbtu per day is subject to a $6.00 written put.

Costless Collars
Natural Gas (NYMEX EH)

Weighted Average
Hedged Floor and
Bbtu per Day  Ceiling Price per MMBtu
January — February 2008 . .. ... ... .. o 130 $7.39/8.89
March -~ December 2008 . . .. ... it e e e 80 7.33/8.87

Three-Way Costless Collars
Natural Gas (NYMEX HH)

Weighted Average Hedged
Bbtu Lower Floor, Upper Floor, and
per Day Ceiling Price per MMBtu

January — February 2008 . .......... .. ... ... .. . . . 20 $6.00/8.00/10.00
March — December 2008 . .. . ... .. i e 30 6.00/8.00/10.00

Forest also uses basis swaps in connection with natural gas swaps in order to fix the price
differential between the NYMEX price and the index price at which the natural gas production is sold.
As of December 31, 2007, the Company had basis swaps outstanding covering 80 Bbtu per day for
2008.

At December 31, 2007, the fair values of Forest’s commodity derivative instruments are presented
within the Consolidated Balance Sheet as liabilities of $106.1 million, of which $70.6 million is classified
as current, and assets of $30.0 million, all of which is classified as current. Forest is exposed to risks
associated with swap and collar agreements arising from movements in the prices of oil and natural gas
and from the unlikely event of non-performance by the counterparties to the swap and collar
agreements.

In January and February 2008, the Company entered into six additional gas swap agreements for
60 Bbtu per day at a weighted average hedged price per MMBtu of $8.99 for calendar 2009. In
February 2008, the Company entered into an additional gas costless collar agreement for 20 Bbtu per
day with a hedged floor and ceiling price per MMBtu of $8.00 and $10.56, respectively, for calendar
2009.

The Company may enter into interest rate swap agreements in an attempt to normalize the mix of
fixed and floating interest rates within its debt portfolio. Unrealized gains, losses, or any settlements are
recorded in other income and expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Pursuant to the
requirements under the Alaska Credit Agreements, Forest Alaska entered into two floating to fixed
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(9) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND FIXED-PRICE CONTRACTS: (Continued)

interest rate swaps. In August 2007, Forest Alaska novated these interest rate swaps to Forest. The
Company has maintained these interest rate swaps to fix a portion of its variable rate interest on its
Credit Facility borrowings which are LIBOR based. As of December 31, 2007, we had entered into the
following interest rate swaps:

Notional Floating Fixed
Term Amount Rate Rate
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
Interest Rate Swap A............. April 2007 -~ April 2010 § 75,000 1 month LIBOR 4.80%
Interest Rate Swap B . ......... ... April 2007 - April 2010 112,500 1 month LIBOR  4.96%

At December 31, 2007, the fair value of the interest rate swaps was a liability of $4.7 million, of
which $2.1 million was classified as current. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company
recorded unrealized losses related to the interest rate swaps of $4.7 million and realized gains related
to the interest rate swaps of $.5 million.

In January 2008, the Company entered into a $100 million floating to fixed interest rate swap for
three years commencing on June 13, 2008. The floating rate is one month LIBOR and the fixed rate is
2.75%.

Fixed-Price Contracts

A portion of Canadian Forest’s natural gas production is sold in a joint venture with other -
producers (the “Canadian Netback Pool”}. The Canadian Netback Pool’s resale markets are comprised
of market based and fixed-price contracts. These contracts are considered to be normal sales and,
therefore, are not subject to the accounting requirement of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”. The table below sets forth the relevant information regarding the
fixed-price sales contracts as of December 31, 2007:

Bbtu Per Weighted Average

Dayl Price per MMBtu®
January 2008 — April 2009 . . . . .. ... e 15 $2.67
May 2009 - June 2011 ... ... ... 5 3.80

) These volumes are based on Forest's expected share of total Netback Pool supply volumes as of December 31, 2007 and are
subject to change to the extent other Netback Pool producers’ dedicated Netback Pool production volumes increase or
decrease disproportionately to Forest’s dedicated production volumes. Changes are not expected to be material.

2 Based on the Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rate at December 31, 2007. U.S, dollars received will fluctuate based
upon foreign currency exchange rates. Changes are not expected to be material.

(10) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Beginning in 1995, the Company consummated certain transactions with The Anschutz
Corporation (“Anschutz”) pursuant to which Anschutz acquired a significant ownership position in the
Company. As of December 31, 2007, Anschutz owned approximately 9% of Forest’s outstanding
common stock. Based on reports filed with the SEC, as of January 31, 2008, Anschutz has entered into
forward sales contracts covering a portion of its Forest common stock, although Anschutz retains voting
rights for these shares through the settlement dates.

In 1998, Forest purchased certain oil and gas assets from Anschutz, including two concessions in
South Africa. Over the years, the parties have entered into agreements concerning the development of
these concession blocks. In March 2003, Forest entered into a Participation Agreement regarding the
development of offshore South Africa acreage, including the Ibhubesi Gas Field, with The Petroleum
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(10) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: (Continued)

Oil and Gas Corporation of South Africa (Pty) Limited (“PetroSA”) and Anschutz Overseas South
Africa (Pty) Limited (“Anschutz Overseas”). As of February 27, 2008, the parties’ interests in the
concessions were as follows: Forest 53.2%, Anschutz Overseas 22.8%, and PetroSA 24.0%. Forest is the
operator of these concession btocks and is reimbursed by the partners for exploration expenditures and
general, technical, and administrative overhead.

(11) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Future rental payments for office facilities, office equipment, drilling rigs, and well equipment
under the remaining terms of non-cancelable operating leases are $18.1 million, $16.6 million,
$14.5 million, $14.4 million, and $13.5 million for the years ending December 31, 2008 through 2012,
respectively. Future rental payments under the remaining terms of non-cancelable operating leases for
fiscal periods beyond 2012 total $27.4 mitlion. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
the Company received approximately $.6 million and $5.0 million, respectively, in corporate office lease
concessions and incentives. These incentives were deferred and will be amortized as reductions in office
lease expense over the term of the lease through 2016. Amortization of lease concessions and
incentives was $.5 million in 2007, $.5 million in 2006, and $.1 million in 2005. Remaining terms for
unconditional purchase obligations consisting of firm commitments for drilling, gathering, processing,
and pipeline capacity are $42.9 million, $27.1 million, $1.6 million, $.5 million, and $.1 million for the
years ending December 31, 2008 through 2012, respectively.

Net rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases applicable to exploration and
development activities and capitalized to oil and gas properties were $8.0 million in 2007, $2.2 million
in 2006, and $2.8 million in 2005. Net rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases charged
to expense amounted to $4.5 million in 2007, $3.5 million in 2006, and $4.3 million in 2005. There are
no leases that are accounted for as capital leases.

Forest, in the ordinary course of business, is a party to various lawsuits, claims, and proceedings.
While we believe that the amount of any potential loss upon resolution of these matters would not be
material to our consolidated financial position, the ultimate outcome of these matters is inherently
difficult to predict with any certainty. In the event of an unfavorable outcome, the potential loss could
have an adverse effect on Forest’s results of operations and cash flow in the reporting periods in which
any such actions are resolved. Forest is also involved in a number of governmental proceedings in the
ordinary course of business, including environmental matters.

(12) OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE:

The components of other income and expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)

Realized foreign currency exchange gains . .................. .. ... .. $(7,721) (315) —
Unrealized foreign currency exchange (gain) loss. ...... ... .......... (7,694) 3,931 —
Franchise taXes . . .o vttt it e it et e e et e e 2,322 1,410 1,963
Share of (income) loss of equity method investee .................... (275) (2,334) 562
Unrealized loss on other investments .. ......... ... .. iirinonnn 4,948 — —
Debt extinguishment coSts . .. ... .. oot 12,215 — —
Other, NEL. ... ... e e e (2,214) 1,135 3,722
Total other expense, NEL . . . .. ... ... .. it $ 1,581 3,827 6,247
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(13) SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudited):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

{In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts}

2007

Revenue . ....... ... .. .. i, $182,609 254,669 313,025 333,589
NetearningsV . .. ... ... . ... ... . . . . $ 6,891 76,799 57,987 27,629
Basic earnings pershare. .. ... ... ... L Lo L. $ 1 1.11 67 32
Diluted earnings pershare . ......................... q1 1.08 .65 31
2006

Revenue ........ ... ... .. ... ... . i $221,446 211,853 202,839 183,854
NetearningsV . .. ... .. ... .. . . ... . .. .. .. $ 3,671 57,048 76,934 30,849
Basic earnings pershare. ... ........ ... ... ... $ .06 92 1.24 49
Diluted earnings pershare . . ... ..................... .06 .90 1.21 A48

I Net earnings have been subject to large fluctuations due to the discontinuance of cash flow hedge accounting as discussed
in Note 9.

(14) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS:

Segment information has been prepared in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” At December 31, 2007, Forest conducted operations
in one industry segment, that being the oil and gas exploration and production industry, and had three
reportable geographical business segments: United States, Canada, and International. The Company’s
remaining activities are not significant and therefore are not reported as a separate segment, but are
included as a reconciling item in the information below. The segments were determined based upon the
geographical location of operations in each business segment. The segment data presented below was
prepared on the same basis as the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Oil and Gas Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2007

Total
United States Canada International Company

(In Thousands)

Revenue .. ...ttt $ 892,818 190,263 — 1,083,081
Expenses:
Lease operating expenses . ... .........onu... 135,983  31.490 — 167,473
Production and property taxes ................ 51,822 3,442 — 55,264
Transportation and processing costs. ... ......... 9,729 10,471 — 20,200
Depletion . ........ ... . ... . .. e 301,048 84,181 — 385,229
Accretion of asset retirement obligations . .. ... ... 5,111 903 50 6,064
Earnings (loss) from operations ................. $ 389,125 59,776 (50) 448,851
Capital expenditures™ . .. ... .. ... ... . ... $2,807,936 173,218 15,853 2,997,007
Goodwill . . . ... .. ... ... $ 248,138 17480 — 265,618

@ Includes estimated discounted asset Tetirement obligations of $37.8 million related to assets placed in service during the
year ended December 31, 2007.
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(14) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS: (Continued)
Information for reportable segments relates to the Company’s 2007 consolidated totals as follows:

(In Thousands)

Earnings from operations for reportable segments .. .......... ..o $ 448,851
Marketing, processing, and other . . ... ... ... . L i 811
General and administrative expense (including stock-based compensation) . .......... (63,751)
INLETESE EXPEIMSE . « . . v e v o et e e e et mam s (113,162)
Administrative asset depreciation. . .. .. ... . (5,109)
Realized gains on derivative instruments, N€t .. ... ... .o 75,965
Unrealized losses on derivative instruments, net . .. .. ... .. v vy (117,499)
Gaill On A1 OF BS8ELS . - o v v i ettt e o e e e e 7,176
OtheT EXPENSE, MEL « . o« oottt e et m e e e (1,581)
Earnings before income taxes and discontinued operations . ................oo. .. $ 231,701

(il and Gas Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2006

Total
United States Canada International  Company

i {In Thousands}

REVEIUE . vttt ettt e e et me ety $636,897 177,572 — 814,469
Expenses:
Lease operating eXpenses .. ........ccooesovo.- 126,647 28,227 — 154,874
Production and property taxes. . .. ......... ... 36,060 2,981 —_ 39,041
Transportation and processing costs . . ............ 11,941 9,935 — 21,876
Depletion . ........ ..ot irens 188,073 75,366 — 263,439
Accretion of asset retirement obligations . ... ...... 6,046 1,004 46 7,096
Impairment and other. ... ............ ... ..., — — 3,668 3,668
Earnings (loss) from operations . ................. $268,130 60,059 (3,714) 324,475
Capital expenditures™ .. ... ... oo $784,250 152,005 6,984 943,239
Goodwill . . ... e $ 71,377 14,869 _— 86,246

%  Includes estimated discounted asset retirement obligations of $2.4 million related 10 assets placed in service during the year
ended December 31, 2006.
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(14) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS: (Continued)

Information for reportable segments relates to the Company’s 2006 consolidated totals as follows:

{In Thousands)

Earnings from operations for reportable segments . ................. . ... . ..., $324,475
Marketing, processing, and other . . . .. .. ... . . L L e 5,523
General and administrative expense (including stock-based compensation) .. ......... (48,308)
INLETESt EXPENSE . . . . ottt i e e e e e {71,787)
Administrative asset depreciation. . .. ... .. ... .. . e (3,442)
Spim-off COStS . . L e (5,416)
Realized losses on derivative instruments, net. .. ............ ... ... ..., {23,864)
Unrealized gains on derivative instruments, net . ... ........ ... ... vt .. 83,629
Other eXpense, NEL . .. oo e e e e e e e e (3,827
Earnings before income taxes and discontinued operations . ... .................. $256,983

Qil and Gas Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Total
United States  Canada  International  Company

(In Thousands)

Revenue . ... ... e $885,616 176,901 - 1,062,517
Expenses:
Lease operating expenses . . .................. 180,867 18,894 — 199,761
Production and property taxes ................ 39,819 2,796 — 42,615
Transportation and processing costs. . ........... 13,805 5,694 — 19,499
Depletion .......... ... ... .. ... .. ... .. 301,536 63,335 — 364,871
Accretion of asset retirement obligations . . .. ... .. 16,323 962 32 17,317
Impairmentand other . .. ..................... 8,208 — 2,924 11,132
Earnings (loss) from operations ... .............. $325,058 85,220 (2,956) 407,322
Capital expenditures™™ . ... ........ ... ... ...... $732952 117,042 3,688 853,682
Goodwill. .. ... ... . § 71,377 15,695 — 87,072

M Includes estimated discounted asset retirement obligations of $16.3 million related to assets placed in service during the
year ended December 31, 2005.

Information for reportable segments relates to the Company’s 2005 consolidated totals as follows:

Earnings from operations for reportable segments ... ... .. ... ... . ... $407,322
Marketing, processing, and other . . . . ... ... ... .. L 9,528
General and administrative expense (including stock-based compensation) . ... .. ... .. (43,703)
Interest @Xpense . . ... oo e e (61,403)
Administrative asset depreciation. . . .. .. ... ... e (3,808)
Realized losses on derivative instruments, net. . .. ... .. . it e (35,390)
Unrealized losses on derivative instruments, net . .. ... ..o, (21,373)
Other expense, NEt . . ... .. . e e (6,247)
Earnings before income taxes and discontinued operations . .................. ... $244,926
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(14) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS: (Continued}

The following tables set forth information regarding the Company’s total assets by segment and

long-lived assets by geographic area:

Total Assets
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)
United States . . .. . . i i i e e e e $4,828,582 2,534,087 3,068,250
Canada ... ...t e e e e 791,714 595,341 513,536
International . . . . vt ot e e e e e e e e 75,252 59,644 63,760
Tota] A8SEL8 .+ o it e e e e e $5,695,548 3,189,072 3,645,546
Long-Lived Assets"
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{In Thousands)
United States . . . . ot o i e e e $4.487257 2,278,733 2,760,317
Canada . .. e e e e e s 730,418 538,844 470,080
INernationAl . « o v s ot e e e e e 73,758 58,595 56,693
Total long-lived assets .. ......... v $5,291,433 2,876,172 3,287,090

M Includes net property and equipment and goodwill,

(15) CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

Each of the Company’s 8% senior notes due 2008, 8% senior notes due 2011, 7%% senior notes
due 2014, and 7% senior notes due 2019 are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company {the “Guarantor Subsidiary”’). The Company’s remaining subsidiaries (the
“Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries™) have not provided guarantees. Based on this distinction, the following
presents condensed consolidating financial information as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and for the

three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 on an issuer (parent company), guarantor

subsidiary, non-guarantor subsidiary, eliminating entries, and consolidated basis. Elimination entries

presented are necessary to combine the entities.
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(16) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA—OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (unaudited):

The following information is presented in accordance with SFAS No. 69, “Disclosures about Qil and
Gas Producing Activities”,

(A} Costs Incurred in Oil and Gas Acquisition, Exploration, and Development Activities. The
following costs were incurred in oil and gas acquisition, exploration, and development activities during
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005:

United

States Canada International Total
{In Thousands)

2007
Property acquisition costs:

Proved properties . .. ... $1,744 087 6 - 1,744,093

Unproved properties . .. .......... . 449,346 — _ 449,346
Exploration COStS . ... .ovovitvn 96,483 35,861 15,853 148,197
Development COSES . .. oo v ein e 518,020 137,351 — 655,371
Total costs incurred(? . ... ... .. e $2,807,936 173,218 15,853 2,997,007
2006
Property acquisition costs:

Proved properties .. ......... .. v $ 262,534 _— —_ 262,534

Unproved properties . .. ........ ..o 53,788 — — 53,788
Exploration costs . . .. ..o v 155,824 99,657 6,984 262,465
Development COStS . .. .o v e a o 312,104 52,348 — 364,452
Total costs incurred™ . . .. ... . $ 784,250 152,005 6,984 943,239
2005
Property acquisition costs:

Proved properties .. .. ... $ 236,629 3,018 — 239,647

Unproved properties . ... ...t 69,288 4,580 — 73,868
Exploration CoSts . .. oo ovvevninn e 179,006 77,448 3,688 260,142
Development costs . .. ... 248,029 31,996 — 280,025

Total costs incurred™ . .. . .. ... e $ 732,952 117,042 3,688 853,682

@ TIncludes amounts relating to estimated asset retirement obligations of $37.8 million, $2.4 million, and $16.3 million for
assets placed in service in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

(B) Aggregate Capitalized Costs. The aggregate capitalized costs relating to oil and gas activities at
the end of each of the years indicated were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)
Costs related to proved properties . ..................... $ 7,157,249 4,751,171 5,957,805
Costs related to unproved properties .................... 568,510 261,259 275,684
7,725,759 5,012,430 6,233,489
Less accumulated depletion . . ... e (2,742,539) (2,265,018) (3,059,031)

$ 4983220 2,747412 3,174,458
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{C) Results of Operations from Producing Activities. Results of operations from producing
activities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 are presented below.

United
States Canada Total
{In Thousands)
2007
Qiland gassales . ........ ... ittt $892,818 190,263 1,083,081
Expenses:
Production expense . . ... ... ... ... i 197,534 45,403 242,937
Depletion expense . ................ e 301,048 84,181 385,229
Accretion of asset retirement obligations . .. ........ .. ... ... 5,111 903 6,014
Income 1ax EXPENSE . ... ... .. .. e 139,696 16,486 156,182
Total expPenses . . . o e e 643,389 146,973 790,362
Results of operations from producing activities . ................ $249429 43,290 292,719
Depletionrate perMcfe . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... $ 242 2.68 247
2006
Oiland gassales . ........ ... ... . . . i, $£636,897 177,572 814,469
Expenses:
Production expense . .. ... ... .. i 174,648 41,143 215,791
Depletion expense . ......... ... it 188,073 75,306 263,439
Accretion of asset retirement obligations .. .................. 6,046 1,004 7,050
Income tax eXpense . ....... ... .. e e 103,498 17,970 121,468
Total eXpenses . . ... ... e 472,265 135,483 607.748
Results of operations from producing activities ................. $164,632 42,089 206,721
Depletionrate per Mcfe . ... ...... .. ... ... .. .. ... . . ... .. $ 209 2.42 217
2005
Oilandgassales .......... ... .. i, $885,616 176,901 1,062,517
Expenses:
PrOduCtion CXPeNSE . . .. e e 234491 27,384 261 875
Depletion EXPense . .. ... .. e 301,536 63,335 364,871
Impairmentand other . .. ...... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ..., 8,208 — 8,208
Accretion of asset retirement obligations .. .................. 16,323 962 17,285
INCOME tAX EXPENSE . . . vt ittt it et et e 123,522 28,463 151,985
Total eXpenses. . ..o e e 684,080 120,144 804,224
Results of operations from producing activities .. ............... $201,536 56,757 258,293
Depletionrate per Mcfe . ... . .......... .. ... ... ... ... $ 217 2.40 2.21

(D) Estimated Proved Qil and Gas Reserves. The Company’s estimate of its net proved and
proved developed oil and gas reserves and changes for 2007, 2006, and 2005 follows. Proved oil and gas
reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids that geological
and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from
known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions, that is, prices and costs as of the

date the estimate is made.
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Prices include consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by contractual
arrangement, but not on escalations based on future conditions. Prices do not inciude the effects of
commodity hedges. Purchases of reserves in place represent volumes recorded on the closing dates of
the acquisitions for financial accounting purposes.

Proved developed oil and gas reserves are reserves that can be expected to be recovered through
existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods. Additional oil and gas expected to be
obtained through the application of fluid injection or other improved recovery techniques for
supplementing the natural forces and mechanisms of primary recovery are included as “proved
developed reserves” only after testing by a pilot project or after the operation of an installed program
has confirmed through production response that increased recovery will be achieved.

Proved undeveloped oil and gas reserves are reserves that are expected to be recovered from new
wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing wells where a relatively major expenditure is required for

recompletion.

Balance at January 1,2005. ... ..
Revisions of previous estimates . . .
Extensions and discoveries
Production. . ...............
Sales of reserves in place
Purchases of reserves in place

Balance at December 31, 2005 . ..
Revisions of previous cstimates . . .
Extensions and discoveries
Production. . ...............
Sales of reserves in place
Purchases of rescrves in place

Batance at December 31, 2006 . . .
Revisions of previous estimates . . .
Extensions and discoveries
Production. ................
Sales of reserves in place
Purchases of reserves in place ...

Balance at December 31, 2007 . ..

Proved developed reserves at:
December 31, 2005
December 31, 2006
December 31,2007 . . .........

Liquids Gas
(MBbls) (MMecf)

United United Total

States Canada Ttaly Total States  Canada Italy Total MMcfe
83,063 5,750 — 88,813 683,578 117,547 — 801,125 1,334,003
10225  (551) — 9,674 11,720 1,299 -—_ 13,019 71,063
3,388 1,002 — 4,390 50,276 38,651 —_ 88,927 115,267
(9,316) (1,252 — (10,568) (82,912) (18,921) — (101,833) (165,241)
(1,272) — — (1,272  (7,390) — — (7,390 (15,022)
5,990 43 — 6,033 87,902 2,933 — 90,835 127,033
92078 4992 — 97,070 743,174 141,509 — 884,683 1,467,103
26,286 735 — 27021  (83435) 28451 —  (54,984) 107,142
4,850 1,107 — 5957 102,173 52,333 — 154306 190,248
(6,887) (1,139) —  (8,026) (48,674) {24,350) —  (73,024) (121,180)
(13,047) —  — {13,047) (248,028) — — (248,028) (326,310)
. 3,889 — 3,889 114,886 — — 114,886 138,220
107,169 5,695 — 112,864 580,09 197,943 — 778,039 1,455,223
(836) (357)y — (1,193) (21,202) (12,837) —  (34,039) (41,197)
10981 3,041 — 14022 202,349 48171 56,308 306,828 390,960
(6,885) (1,060) —  (7,945) (82,963) (25,079) — (108,042) (155,712)
(29,749) — — (29,749) (7983) — — (7,983) (186,477)
6,477 _ = 6477 617,573 _ — 617,573 656,435
87,157 7319 — 94,476 1,287,870 208,198 56,308 1,552,376 2,119,232
66,818 4779 — 71,597 524,424 114,932 — 639,356 1,068,938
73239 5041 — 78280 407,965 158,174 — 566,139 1,035,819
61,650 4947 — 66,597 900,483 163,438 28,154 1,092,075 1,491,657

(E) Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows. Future oil and gas sales and
production and development costs have been estimated using prices and costs in effect at the end of
the years indicated, except in those instances where the sale of oil and natural gas is covered by
contracts. Where the sale is covered by contracts, the applicable contract prices, including fixed and
determinable escalations, were used for the duration of the contract. Thereafter, the current spot price
was used. All cash flow amounts, including income taxes, are discounted at 10%.
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Future income tax expenses are computed by applying the appropriate year-end statutory tax rates
to the estimated future pretax net cash flows relating to proved oil and natural gas reserves, less the tax
bases of the properties involved. The future income tax expenses give effect to tax credits and
allowances, but do not reflect the impact of general and administrative and interest expense.

Changes in the demand for oil and natural gas, inflation, and other factors make such estimates
inherently imprecise and subject to substantial revision. This table should not be construed to be an
estimate of the current market value of the Company’s proved reserves. Management does not rely
upon the information that follows in making investment decisions.

December 31, 2007

United States Canada Italy Total
{In Thousands)

Future oil and gassales . . ............., ...... $14,248411 1,850,767 957,010 17,056,188
Future production costs . . ............ ... ..... (3,249,115)  (410,650) (71,658) (3,731,423)
Future development costs. . ................... (1,086,890) (141,838) (37,067) (1,265,795)
Future income taxes. . . ... .c.vvvvneennrnnnn.. (2,504,853) (277,975) (348,467) (3,131,295)
Future netcashflows . . . ..... ... ... ........ 7407553 1,020,304 499,818 8,927,675
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash

flows . ... ... e (3,790,817) (388,956) (208,767) (4,388,540)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash

flows . ... .. i e $ 3,616,736 631,348 291,051 4,539,135

December 31, 2006
United States Canada Italy Total
(In Thousands)

Future oiland gassales . ..................... $ 8,600,619 1,276,442 — 9,877,061
Future production costs . .. ................... (2,349,072) (287,054) —  (2,636,126)
Future development costs. ... ................. (681,060)  (87,555) — (768,615)
Future income taxes. .. .. .......... .. ... ..... (1,317,621) (214,804) —  (1,532,425)
Futurenetcashflows. . ........ ... ... ... .... 4,252,866 687,029 — 4,939,895
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash

flows . ... . e e (2,109,005) (236,526) — (2,345,531
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash

flows . ... ... . . $ 2,143,861 450,503 — 2,594,364
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December 31, 2005
United States Canada Italy Total
(In Thousands)

Future oil and gassales . ..................... $11,247,050 1,322,259 — 12,569,309
Future production costs . . ............ .. ...... (2,359,620) (232,520) —  (2,592,140)
Future development costs. . ... . ... vvueaive o (803,078)  (56,662) — (859,740)
Future income taxes. . . ... ... .oovrenvuunnenon (2,514,541) (256,888) —  {2,771,429)
Future netcash flows. .. ..... .. ... . ... ... 5,569,811 776,189 — 6,346,000
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash

LOWS « v ot e e e e e (2,230,609) (262,766) — (2,493,375
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash

fOWS . o e $ 3,339,202 513,423 — 3,852,625

(F) Changes in the Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to
Proved Oil and Gas Reserves. An analysis of the changes in the standardized measure of discounted
future net cash flows during each of the last three years is as follows:

December 31, 2007

United
States Canada Italy Total
(In Thousands)

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash

flows relating to proved oil and gas reserves, at

beginning of year . ...... ... ... . .o $2,143,861 450,503 — 2,594,364
Changes resulting from:
Sales of oil and gas, net of production costs, . ........ (695,321) (144,860) —  (840,181)
Net changes in prices and future production costs . . ... 1,258,999 171,640 — 1,430,639
Net changes in future development costs . .. ......... (78,440) 5,576 — (72,864)
Extensions, discoveries, and improved recovery ....... 445794 115,047 481,250 1,042,091
Development costs incurred during the period . .. ... .. 399,218 54,296 — 453,514
Revisions of previous quantity estimates ............ (85,383)  (48,8006) —  (134,189)
Changes in production rates and other .. ........... 6,889 (2,197 — 4,692
Sales of reserves inplace ........ ... ... ........ (871,495) — —  (871,495)
Purchases of reserves inplace . ............. ... .. 1,369,079 — — 1,369,079
Accretion of discount on reserves at beginning of year

before INCOME TAXES - . - . i v v v v et oo s o 268,804 57,650 —_ 326,454
Net change in income taxes . .................... (545,269) (27,501) (190,199) (762,969}
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash

flows relating to proved oil and gas reserves, at end of

VEAT o ot et i e $3,616,736 631,348 291,051 4,539,135

The computation of the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to
proved oil and gas reserves at December 31, 2007 was based on weighted average year-end spot natural
gas prices of approximately $6.20 per Mcf in the United States, approximately $6.12 per Mcf in
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Canada, and $17.00 per Mcf in Italy, and on weighted average year-end spot liquids prices of

approximately $71.89 per barrel in the United States and approximately $78.71 per barrel in Canada.

December 31, 2006

United States

Canada

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows
relating to proved oil and gas reserves, at beginning of

VAL © ottt it e e e e e $ 3,339,202 513,423
Changes resulting from:;
Sales of oil and gas, net of productioncosts . .. ..... ... . (507,337y  (136,429)
Net changes in prices and future production costs .. ... .. (1,245,361) (241,144)
Net changes in future development costs ... ....... .. .. (151,433)  (9,971)
Extensions, discoveries, and improved recovery ......... 286,598 136,881
Development costs incurred during the period ... ... .. .. 311,883 51,729
Revisions of previous quantity estimates. . ............. 304,238 84,013
Changes in production rates and other .. ............. (454,458)  (45,975)
Salesof reservesinplace .............. . ... ....... (1,380,077) -
Purchases of reservesinplace . ..................... 371,265 —
Accretion of discount on reserves at beginning of year

before INCOME tAXES . . .. v vttt ittt i i me e ie e e 468,429 67,036
Net change inincome taxes. ... .................... 800,912 30,940
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows

relating to proved oil and gas reserves, at end of year ... § 2,143,861 450,503

Italy
(In Thousands}

Total

3,852,625

(643,766)
(1,486,505)
(161,404)
423,479
363,612
388,251
(500,433)
(1,380:077)
371,265

535,465

831,852

2,594,364

The computation of the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to
proved oil and gas reserves at December 31, 2006 was based on weighted average year-end spot natural
gas prices of approximately $5.28 per Mcf in the United States and approximately $5.05 per Mcf in
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Canada, and on weighted average year-end spot liquids prices of approximately $51.69 per barrel in the
United States and approximately $48.76 per barrel in Canada.

December 31, 2005

United
States Canada  Italy Total
(In Thousana

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows

relating to proved oil and gas reserves, at beginning of year . . $2,226,276 289,281 — 2,515,557
Changes resulting from:
Sales of oil and gas, net of productioncosts . .............. (840,297) (149,517y —  (989,814)
Net changes in prices and future production costs........... 1,539,485 217937 — 1,757,422
Net changes in future development costs ................. (135,308) (14,601) —  (149,909)
Extensions, discoveries, and improved recovery .. ... ...... .. 284,981 214,016 -— 498,597
Development costs incurred during the period .. ........... 235,521 30,683 — 266,204
Revisions of previous quantity estimates . . ................ 209,948  (7,930) — 202,018
Changes in production rates and other . . . ................ (124,669) (11,437) —  (136,106)
Salesof reservesinplace. .. ... ..o i (44,100) - - (44,100)
Purchases of reserves inplace .. ... ... ... .. . ... . 298,189 9,186 — 307,375
Accretion of discount on reserves at beginning of year before

INCOME LAXES - & o v it v e oot a et em e at s 296.413 34,730 — 331,143
Net change in incOme taxes . . . ... ovovvv e e (607,237) (98,925) —  (706,162)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows

relating to proved oil and gas reserves, at end of year ... .. $3,339,202 513423 — 3,852,625

The computation of the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to
proved oil and gas reserves at December 31, 2005 was based on weighted average year-end spot natural
gas prices of approximately $8.44 per Mcf in the United States and approximately $7.78 per Mcf in
Canada, and on weighted average year-end spot liquids prices of approximately $54.03 per barrel in the
Unites States and approximately $44.34 per barrel in Canada.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures,
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

We have established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to Forest and its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to the Officers who certify Forest’s
financial reports and the Board of Directors.

Our Chief Executive Officer, H. Craig Clark, and our Chief Financial Officer, David H. Keyte,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), as of the end
of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K (the “Evaluation Date”). Based on this
evaluation, they believe that as of the Evaluation Date our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (i) is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within
the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms; and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to
Forest’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate,
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Contrels over Financial Reporting.

There has not been any change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during our quarterly period ended December 31, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Managements’ Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in the Exchange Act, Rules 13a-15(f}. Under the supervision
and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in [nternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007. The effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Forest Qil Corporation

We have audited Forest Oil Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Forest
0il Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Forest Qil Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Forest Oil Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended and our report dated February 27, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 27, 2008
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The names of the executive officers of Forest and their titles, ages, and biographies required by
this Item are incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Executive
Officers of Forest” included in Part [, Item 4A of this Form 10-K.

The following information will be included in Forest’s Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders
and Proxy Statement (the “Proxy Statement”) to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after Forest’s
fiscal year end of December 31, 2007 and is incorporated herein by reference:

* Information concerning Forest’s directors is incorporated by reference to the information under
the caption “Proposal No. 1—Election of Directors”

* Information concerning Forest’s procedures for recommending nominees to the Board and
Forest’s Audit Committee and designated “audit committee financial expert” is set forth under
the caption “Corporate Governance Principles and Information about the Board and its
Committees”

* Information about Forest’s code of ethics for directors, officers, and employees is set forth under
the caption “Corporate Governance Principles and Information about the Board and its
Committees”

* Information about compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, is set forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compiiance”

Item 11. Executive Compensation,

Information regarding Forest’s compensation of its named executive officers is set forth under the
captions “Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein
by reference. Information regarding Forest’s compensation of its directors is set forth under the caption
“Executive Compensation—Director Compensation” in the Proxy Statement, which information is
incorporated herein by reference. See also “Executive Compensation—Compensation Committee
Report, and Corporate Governance Principles and Information About the Board and Its Committees—
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” for additional information, which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficizl Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners, directors, and executive
officers is set forth under the caption “Common Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in the Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding Forest's equity compensation plans is set forth under the caption “Executive
Compensation—Equity Compensation Plan Information™ in the Proxy Statement, which information is
incorporated herein by reference,

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is set forth under the caption
“Transactions with Related Persons, Promoters and Certain Control Persons,” and information
regarding director independence is set forth under the caption “Corporate Governance Principles and
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Information about the Board and its Committees—Board Independence” included in the Proxy
Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information regarding principal auditor fees and services is set forth under the captions “Principal
Accountant Fees and Services” and “Report of the Audit Committee” in the Proxy Statement, which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report or are incorporated by reference:

(1) Financial Statements:

1.
2.
3.

Independent Auditors’ Report
Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Operations—Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity—Years Ended December 31, 2007,
2006, and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005

(2) Financial Statement Schedules: All schedules have been omitted because the information is
either not required or is set forth in the financial statements or the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits: See the Index of Exhibits listed in Item 15(b) hereof for a list of those exhibits filed
as part of this Form 10-K.
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(b) Index of Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number

3.1

32

313

3.4

3.5

36

4.1

42

4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Forest Oil Corporation dated October 14, 1993,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i) to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation
for the quarter ended September 30, 1993 (File No. 0-4597).

Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated as of July 20,
1995, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(a) to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil
Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 1995 (File No. 0-4597).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, dated as of July 26, 1995,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(b) to Form 10-Q for Forest Qil Corporation
for the quarter ended June 30, 1995 (File No. 0-4597).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation dated as of January 5, 1996,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i}(c) to Forest Oil Corporation Registration
Statement on Form S-2 (File No. 33-64949).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation dated as of December 7, 2000,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(i)(d) to Form 10-K for Forest Qil Corporation
for the year ended December 31, 2000 (File No. 001-13515).

Bylaws of Forest Oil Corporation Restated as of February 14, 2001 as amended by
Amendments No. 1, No. 2 and No. 3, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 o
Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 (File

No. 001-13515).

Indenture dated as of June 21, 2001 between Forest Qil Corporation and State Street Bank
and Trust Company, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 10-Q for
Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 001-13515).

Indenture dated December 7, 2001 between Forest Qil Corporation and State Street Bank
and Trust Company, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Forest Qil
Corporation Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated February 6, 2002 (File

No. 333-82254).

Indenture dated as of April 25, 2002 between Forest Oil Corporation and State Street Bank
and Trust Company, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Forest Qil
Corporation Registration Statement on Form $-4 dated June 11, 2002 (File No. 333-90220).
Indenture dated as of June 6, 2007 between Forest Qil Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil
Corporation for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 10, 2000, by and between Forest Oil
Corporation and the other signatories thereto, incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 4.15 to Forest Qil Corporation Registration Statement on Form S-4, dated
November 6, 2000 (File No. 333-49376).

Registration Rights Agreement between Forest Oil Corporation and the other signatories
thereto dated as of June 6, 2007, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to

Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007 (File
No. 001-13515).

First Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2003, between
Forest Oil Corporation and Mellon Investor Services LLC, incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K for Forest Oil Corporation, dated October 17, 2003 (File

No. 001-13515).
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Exhibit
Number

4.8

49

4.10

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

Description

Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Assignment, Security Agreement, Financing Statement and Fixture
Filing from Forest Oil Corporation to Robert C. Mertensotto, trustee, and Gregory F.
Williams, trustee (Utah), and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Global Administrative Agent,
dated as of December 7, 2000, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to

Form 10-K for Forest Oil Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2000 (File

No. 001-13515).

U.S. Credit Agreement—Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
June 6, 2007 among Forest Oil Corporation, each of the lenders that is party thereto, Bank
of America, N.A. and Citibank, N.A., as Co-Global Syndication Agents, BNP Paribas, BMO
Capital Markets Financing, Inc., Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch, and Deutsche Bank
Securities, Inc., as Co-U.S. Documentation Agents, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,, as
Global Administrative Agent, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 10-Q
for Forest Oil Corporation dated August 9, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Canadian Credit Agreement—Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
June 6, 2007 among Canadian Forest Oil Ltd., each of the lenders party thereto, Bank of
America, N.A. and Citibank, N.A., as Co-Global Syndication Agents, Bank of Montreal and
The Toronto Dominion Bank, as Co-Canadian Documentation Agents, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., Toronto Branch, as Canadian Administrative Agent, and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as Global Administrative Agent, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5
to Form 10-Q for Forest Qil Corporation dated August 9, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Forest Oil Corporation 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and Option Agreement, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement on Form S-8 for Forest Oil
Corporation dated June 7, 1996 (File No. 0-4597).

First Amendment to Forest Oil Corporation 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter ended
June 30, 2001 (File No. 001-13515).

Second Amendment to Forest Oil Corporation 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter
ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 001-13515).

Amendment No. 3 to Forest Qil Corporation 1996 Stock Incentive Plan dated December 6,
2003, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-K for Forest Qil
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-13515).

Forest Oil Corporation 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement on Form S-8 for Forest Oil Corporation dated June 6,
2001 (File No. 333-62408).

Amendment No. 1 to Forest Oil Corporation’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter
ended June 30, 2003 (File No. 001-13515).

Amendment No. 2 to Forest Oil Corporation’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation for the quarter
ended March 31, 2004 (File No. 001-13515).

Amendment No. 3 to Forest Qil Corporation 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, dated January 10,
2006, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Form 10-K for Forest Oil
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-13515).

Amendment No. 4 to Forest Oil Corporation 2001 Stock Incentive Plan dated June 5, 2007,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation
dated November 8, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).
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Exhibit
Number

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*
10.14*
10.15*
10.16*
10.17*
10.18*
10.19*
10.20*
10.21*
10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

Description

Form of Employee Stock Option Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2
to Registration Statement on Form S-8 for Forest Qil Corporation dated June 6, 2001 (File
No. 333-62408).

Form of Non-Employee Director Stock Option Agreement, incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to Registration Statement on Form S-8 for Forest Oil Corporation dated

June 6, 2001 (File No. 333-62408).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation dated November 9, 2004 (File No. 001-13515).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
Form 10-K for Forest Qil Corporation for the vear ended December 31, 2005 (File

No. 001-13515).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant to the Forest Oil Corporation 2001 Stock
Incentive Plan, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q
for Forest Qil Corporation dated August 9, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Form of Phantom Stock Unit Agreement pursuant to the Forest Oil Corporation 2001 Stock
Incentive Plan, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q
for Forest Qil Corporation dated August 9, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Forest Oil Corporation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex E to
Forest Oil Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form 5-4, dated April 30, 2007 (File
No. 333-140532).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant to the Forest Oil Corporation 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil
Corporation dated August 9, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Form of Phantom Stock Unit Agreement pursuant to the Forest Oil Corporation 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil
Corporation dated August 9, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Form of Severance Agreement for Grandfathered Executive Officer, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K for Forest Oil Corporation dated December 17, 2007
(File No. 001-13515).

Form of Severance Agreement for Senior Vice President, incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K for Forest Oil Corporation dated December 17, 2007 (File

No. 001-13515).

Form of Severance Agreement for Vice President, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K for Forest Oil Corporation dated December 17, 2007 (File

No. 001-13515).

Form of Severance Agreement for Grandfathered Vice President, incorporated hergin by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 8-K for Forest Qil Corporation dated December 17, 2007
(File No. 001-13515).

Forest Qil Corporation Pension Trust Agreement dated as of January 1, 2002 by and
between Forest Oil Corporation and the trustees named therein or their successors,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Qil Corporation
dated November 14, 2002 (File No. 001-13515).

First Amendment to Forest Oil Corporation Pension Trust Agreement as Amended and
Restated January 1, 2002, effective as of May 10, 2005, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation dated August 9, 2005 (File

No. 001-13515).
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Exhibit
Number

10.25*

19.26*

10.27*

10.28*
10.29*

10.30*

10.31*
10.32*
10.33*

10.34*

Description

Second Amendment to Forest Oil Corporation Pension Trust Agreement as Amended and
Restated January 1, 2002, effective as of May 10, 2006, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Qil Corporation dated August 9, 2006 (File

No. 001-13515).

Forest Oil Corporation Amended and Restated Salary Deferral Compensation Plan,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q for Forest Qil Corporation
dated November 13, 2003 (File No. 001-13515).

First Amendment to the Forest Oil Corporation Amended and Restated Salary Deferral
Compensation Plan, effective as of December 31, 2005, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 to Form 10-K for Forest Oil Corporation for the year ended December 31,
2005 (File No. 001-13515).

Amendment to Forest Oil Corporation Salary Deferral Deferred Compensation Plan dated
August 30, 2007, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q for Forest
Qil Corporation dated November 8, 2007 (File No. 0{1-13515).

Forest Qil Corporation 2005 Salary Deferred Compensation Plan, effective as of
December 31, 2004, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Form 10-K for
Forest Oil Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2004 (File No. 001-13515).

Forest Oil Corporation Amended and Restated 2005 Salary Deferred Compensation Plan,
effective as of December 31, 2004, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to
Form 10-K for Forest Oil Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File

No. 001-13515).

Amendment to Forest Oil Corporation Amended and Restated 2005 Salary Deferred
Compensation Plan dated August 30, 2007, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation dated November 8, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).
Forest Qil Corporation Change of Control Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Form 10-K for Forest Qil Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-13515).

Forest Oil Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan as Amended and Restated,
effective as of January 1, 2005, incorporated by reference to Form 10-K for Forest Oil
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-13515).

First Amendment to Forest Oil Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan as
Amended and Restated Effective as of January 1, 2005, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation dated November 8, 2007 (File

No. 001-13515).

10.35*1 Forest Oil Corporation 2008 Annual Incentive Plan.

10.36*

10.37

10.38

10.39

Forest Qil Corporation 2007 Annual Incentive Plan, as revised on October 24, 2007,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K for Forest Oil Corporation
dated October 25, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Forest Oil Corporation, MJCO Corporation
and The Houston Exploration Company dated as of January 7, 2007, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K for Forest Qil Corporation dated January 7, 2007 (File
No. 001-13515).

Standstill Agreement dated January 7, 2007, between Forest Oil Corporation and JANA
Partners LLC, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to Forest Oil Corporation
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140532).

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of September 9, 2005 among Forest Qil
Corporation, SML Wellhead Corporation, Mariner Energy, Inc. and MEI Sub, Inc.,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for Forest Oil Corporation
dated November 9, 2005 (No. 001-13515).
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Exhibit
Number

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

14.1%
21.1%
23.1%
23.2%
23.3%
24.1%
31.1%

31.2¢

Description

Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated as of May 24, 2007, among Forest Alaska
Operating LLC, Forest Oil Corporation, and Pacific Energy Resources Ltd., incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 1011 to Form 8-K for Forest Oil Corporation dated May 28,
2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Asset Sales Agreement dated as of May 24, 2007, between Forest Oil Corporation and
Pacific Energy Resources Ltd., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K
for Forest Qil Corporation dated May 28, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Amendment No. 1 to Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated July 31, 2007, among
Forest Alaska Holding LLC, Forest Alaska Operating LLC, Forest Oil Corporation, and
Pacific Energy Resources Ltd., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K
for Forest Oil Corporation dated July 31, 2007 (File No. 001-13515).

Amendment No. 1 to Asset Sales Agreement dated July 31, 2007, between Forest Oil
Corporation and Pacific Energy Resources Ltd., incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K for Forest Qil Corporation dated July 31, 2007 (File

No. 001-13515).

Forest Oil Corporation Proper Business Practices Policy Revised as of January 21, 2005.

List of Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton.

Powers of Attorney (included on the signature pages hereof).

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of Forest Qil Corporation as required by

Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Act of 1934,

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of Forest Oil Corporation as required by

Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Act of 1934.

32.1** Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Forest Oil Corporation pursuant to

18 U.S.C. §1350.

32.2** Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Forest Oil Corporation pursvuant to

18 U.S.C. §1350.

EEd

Contract or compensatory plan or arrangement in which directors and/for officers participate.

Not considered to be “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the
liabilities of that section.

Indicates Exhibits filed with this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 28, 2008 FOREST OIL CORPORATION
(Registrant)
By: /s/ H, CRAIG CLARK

H. Craig Clark
President and Chief Executive Officer

Power of Attorney

The officers and directors of Forest Qil Corporation, whose signatures appear below, hereby
constitute and appoint H. Craig Clark, David H. Keyte, Cyrus D. Marter IV, and Victor A. Wind and
each of them (with full power to each of them to act alone), the true and lawful attorney-in-fact to sign
and execute, on behalf of the undersigned, any amendment(s) to this Form 10-K Annual Report for the
year ended December 31, 2007, and any instrument or document filed as part of, as an exhibit to or in
connection with any amendment, and each of the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his
own act and deed all that said attorneys shall do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures % Date
/s H. CRAIG CLARK President and Chief Executive Officer and February 28, 2008
H. Craig Clark Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Davib H. KEYTE Executive Vice President and Chief Financial February 28, 2008
David H. Keyte Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ VICTOR A, WIND Corporate Controller (Principal Accounting February 28, 2008
Victor A. Wind Officer)
/s/{ FORREST E. HOGLUND Chairman of the Board February 28, 2008
Forrest E. Hoglund
/s/ WILLIAM L. BRITTON Director February 28, 2008
William L. Britton
/s/ LOREN K. CARROLL Director February 28, 2008
Loren K. Carroll
fs/ DOD. A. FRASER Director February 28, 2008
Dod. A. Fraser
/s/ JAMES H. LEE Director February 28, 2008
James H. Lee
/s/ JAMES D. LIGHTNER Director February 28, 2008

James D. Lightner
s/ PATRICK R. MCDONALD Director February 28, 2008
Patrick R. McDonald
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Exhibit
Number

Index to Exhibits

Description

10.35
14.1
21.1
23.1
232
233
311

31.2

32.1*

32.2*

Forest Qil Corporation 2008 Annual Incentive Plan.

Forest Qil Corporation Proper Business Practices Policy Revised as of January 21, 2005.
List of Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of Forest Qil Corporation as required by
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Act of 1934.

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of Forest Oil Corporation as required by
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Act of 1934,

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Forest Oil Corporation pursuant to 18 U.5.C.
§1350.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Forest Oil Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C,
§1350.

Furnished herewith.
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Additional Information

INDEPENDENT RESERVE ENGINEERS

DeGolyer and MacNaughton
5001 Spring Volley Road
Suite 80O East

Dallas, Texas 75244
214.368.63%91

{NDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Ernst & Young LLP

370 Seventeenth Street, Suite 3300
Denver, Colorado 80202
720.931.4000

STOCK

Common Stock Listed ond Traded on:
The New York Stock Exchange
NYSE Symbol - FST

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
FOR COMMON S5STOCK

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City, New Jersey 07310-1900
888.213.0882

TOD for Hearing Impaired: 800.231.5469
Foreign Shareholders: 201.680.6578
TDD Foreign Shareholders: 201.680.6610
www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Additional information, including an tnvestor Package, may
be obtained from:

Forest Oil Corporation

Patrick J. Redmond, Director — Investor Relations

707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 3600

Denver, Colorado 80202

InvestorRelations@forestoil.com or visit our website at

www . forestoil.com

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The annual meeting of shareholders of
Forest Oil Corporation will be held at

707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 3600
Denver, Colorade 80202

Thursday, May 8, 2008 at 9:00 a.m. (MDT)

CERTIFICATIONS

The most recent certifications by our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, are filed as exhibits to our
Form 10-K. Forest has also submitted to the New York Stock
Exchange a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer certifying
that he is not aware of any violations by Forest of the NYSE
corporate governance |isﬁng standards.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

In this annual report, Forest has reported net earnings odjusted for certain items,
@ non-GAAP financial measure, which facilitates comparisons to earnings fore-
casts prepared by stock anclysts and other third parfies. Such forecasts gener-
ally exclude the effects of items that are difficult to predict or to mecsure in
advonce and are not directly reloted to Forest's ongoing operations. Net earn-
ings excluding the effects of certain items should not be considered a substi-
tute for net eamings as reported in accardance with GAAP.

Forest reported adjusted EBITDA, which consists of net earnings plus income
tax expense—discontinued operations, income tax expense — confinuing
eperations, unredlized losses [guins) on derivative instruments, net, ynrealized
foreign currency exchange [goins) losses, unrealized losses on ather investments,
realized foreign currency exchonge gains, interest expense, write-off of
unamortized debt costs and prepayment premiums, accretion of asset retirement
abligations, depreciation and depletion, impairments and stack-based
compensafion, Forest further reported adjusted discretionary cash flow, which
consists of adjusted EBITDA minus inferest expense, write-olf of unamortized
debt costs and prepayment premiums, current income tax benefil [expense}
and other non-cash items. Management uses adjusted EBITDA and adjusted
discrefionary cash flow as measures of operafional performonce. Adjusted
EBITDA and adjusted discretionary cash flow should not be considered os
alternatives to net earnings as reported under GAAP.

Fores! reported total cosh costs as a non-GAAP measure calculated in accor-
dance with oil and gas industry standards that is used by management to
ossess the cash operating performance. Total cash costs is defined as all cash
operating costs, including production expense, general and administrative
expense (excluding stock-based compensation), interest expense and current
income tax [benefil) expense.

All-Sources Reserve Replacement Ratic

Forest all-sources reserve replocement rotie of 703% was calculated by
dividing the sum of total estimated proved reserve additions, 1,047 Bele, by
2007 net soles volumes of 149 Befe.

FD&A Costs

Forest FDRA casts of $2.27 per Mcfe were caleulated by dividing the sum of
total exploration, development, and aequisition costs, $2.375 billion, by the
sum of total addifions to estimeted proved reserves during 2007 of 1,047 Bcfe.

Organic Reserve Replacement Ratio

Forest arganic reserve replacement ratio of 236% was calculated by dividing
the sum of tatal additions to estimated proved reserves during 2007, including
revisions and excluding purchases of properties of 352 Bele, by 2007 net soles
volumes of 149 Befe.

Organic F&D Costs

Fores! organic F&D costs of $2.21 per Mcfe were calculated by dividing the
sum of tofal exploration and development costs, $777 million, by the sum of
tatal additions to estimated proved reserves during 2007, induding revisions and
excluding purchases of properties of 352 Befe.

The reconciliotion of net earnings adjusted For certain items, adjusted EBITDA,
adjusted diseretionary cash flow and total cash costs to their most comparable
GAAP measures and the estimated proved reserve information are presented
in Forest's February 21, 2008 year-end press release, which ean be viewed
at www.foresioil.com.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report includes forward-looking statements, including
those related to oil and gos reserve estimates, within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securifies Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Please
see ltem 1, header “Forward-Looking Statements” and ftem
1A, header “Estimates of oil and gas reserves are uncertain
and inherently imprecise,” in Forest's 2007 10K for
additional disclosures.
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